
 

 
Citizen Information 

If you wish to speak at the City Council meeting, please fill out a sign-up card and present it to the City Clerk.  
 
Persons with disabilities planning to attend the meeting who need sign language interpretation, assisted listening systems, Braille, 
taped material, or special transportation, should contact the City Manager’s Office at 303 335-4533. A forty-eight-hour notice is 
requested. 

 
City of Louisville 

City Council     749 Main Street     Louisville CO 80027 

303.335.4533 (phone)     303.335.4550 (fax)     www.louisvilleco.gov 

 
City Council 

Agenda 

Tuesday, August 4, 2015 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

749 Main Street 
7:00 PM 

Note: The time frames assigned to agenda items are estimates 
for guidance only. Agenda items may be heard earlier or later 

than the listed time slot. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
Council requests that public comments be limited to 3 minutes. When several people wish to speak on the same position on 
a given item, Council requests they select a spokesperson to state that position. 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
The following items on the City Council Agenda are considered routine by the City Manager and shall be approved, adopted, 
accepted, etc., by motion of the City Council and roll call vote unless the Mayor or a City Council person specifically 
requests that such item be considered under “Regular Business.” In such an event the item shall be removed from the 
“Consent Agenda” and Council action taken separately on said item in the order appearing on the Agenda. Those items so 
approved under the heading “Consent Agenda” will appear in the Council Minutes in their proper order. 

A. Approval of Bills 
B. Reject Bids for Miner’s Field Restroom Facility Remodel Project 
C. Authorize City Manager to Execute Agreement and Contract Regarding 

Franchise, Sales and Use Tax Audits of Public Service Company of Colorado 
 
6. COUNCIL INFORMATIONAL COMMENTS ON PERTINENT ITEMS 

NOT ON THE AGENDA (Council general comments are scheduled at the end of the Agenda.) 

7. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

8. REGULAR BUSINESS 
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A. PRESENTATION – GINNY VIDULICH, LOUISVILLE MIDDLE 
SCHOOL 

 Presentation 
 

B. REVIEW OF 2014 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
REPORT 
 Presentation 
 Public Comments (Please limit to three minutes each) 
 Council Questions & Comments 

 
C. BOULDER COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY ANNUAL 

REPORT 
 Staff Presentation 
 Public Comments (Please limit to three minutes each) 
 Council Questions & Comments 
 Action 

 
D. DISCUSSION/DIRECTION/ACTION – FINANCIAL 

CONTRIBUTION TO PARTICIAPTE IN THE CONSORTIUM OF 
CITIES PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING STUDY 

 Staff Presentation 
 Public Comments (Please limit to three minutes each) 
 Council Questions & Comments 
 Action 

 
E. RESOLUTION NO. 52, SERIES 2015 – A RESOLUTION 

REMOVING THE LEE AVENUE CONNECTION FROM THE 
ADOPTED HIGHWAY 42 GATEWAY PLAN 

 Staff Presentation 
 Public Comments (Please limit to three minutes each) 
 Council Questions & Comments 
 Action 

 
F.  EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 

1. CITY MANAGER ANNUAL EVALUATION 
(Louisville Code of Ethics, Section 5-2(b), CRS 24-6-402(4)(f) – 
Authorized topics) 
 
Mayor is Requesting the City Council Convene An 
Executive Session for the Purpose of Conducting An 
Annual Performance Review of the City Manager 

 
 

9:15 – 10:30 pm 

    7:15 – 7:25 pm 

7:25 – 7:40 pm 

7:40 – 8:00 pm 

8:15 – 8:35 pm 9:00 – 9:15 pm 
8:15 – 9:15 pm 

8:00 – 8:15 pm 
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REGULAR BUSINESS ITEMS SUSPENDED 

 
 Requests for Executive Session 
 City Clerk Statement 
 City Attorney Statement of Authority 
 City Council Action on Motions for Executive Session 
 Executive Session 
 Council Reconvene 

REGULAR BUSINESS ITEMS CONTINUED 

G. REPORT – DISCUSSION/DIRECTION/ACTION – CITY 
MANAGER EVALUATION 

 
 

9. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

10. COUNCIL COMMENTS, COMMITTEE REPORTS, AND 
IDENTIFICATION OF FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
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Cash Disbursement Edit List
City of Louisville07/23/15 11:43

ap215_lv_pg.php/Job No: 21906
Page 1 of 2
USER: DIANEK

Batch: 91135 Period: 07/23/15

Vendor/

Remit#

Invoice

Number Description

Invoice

Date

Due

Date

Invoice

Amount

Check

Amount

FOR BANK ACCOUNT: 4 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF COLORAD Control Disbursement Account

11298-1 DELTA DENTAL OF COLORADO

DELTA0815 #007562-0000 AUG 15 EMPL PREM 07/22/15 08/21/15       13,554.53       13,554.53  

5255-1 FAMILY SUPPORT REGISTRY

071715 EMPLOYEE GARNISHMENT PP#15 07/17/15 08/16/15          211.50          211.50  

6455-1 KAISER PERMANENTE

0017481343 05920-01-16 AUG 15 EMPL PREM 07/07/15 08/06/15      137,497.02      137,497.02  

14002-1 KANSAS PAYMENT CENTER

071715 EMPLOYEE GARNISHMENT PP#15 07/17/15 08/16/15          270.46          270.46  

7735-1 LINCOLN FINANCIAL GROUP

LIFE0815 000010008469 AUG 15 LIFE/AD&D 08/01/15 08/31/15        5,989.04 

LTD0815 000010008470 AUG 15 LTD PREM 08/01/15 08/31/15        3,130.16        9,119.20  

3370-1 PETTY CASH - JILL SIEWERT

071615 PETTY CASH LIBRARY 07/16/15 08/15/15           91.53           91.53  

14129-1 TOM CZAJKA

072015 COMPUTER LOAN 07/20/15 08/19/15          757.11          757.11  

14128-1 US ASSURE INC

062515 WWTP BUILDERS RISK INSURANCE 06/25/15 07/25/15      128,656.00      128,656.00  

3875-1 XCEL ENERGY

464110714 JUN 15 GROUP ENERGY 07/15/15 08/14/15       29,607.96 

464110714 JUN 15 GROUP ENERGY 07/15/15 08/14/15        1,819.07 

464110714 JUN 15 GROUP ENERGY 07/15/15 08/14/15        5,175.02 

464110714 JUN 15 GROUP ENERGY 07/15/15 08/14/15        1,007.86 

464110714 JUN 15 GROUP ENERGY 07/15/15 08/14/15        5,432.62       43,042.53  

   ------------    ------------

BANK TOTAL PAYMENTS      333,199.88      333,199.88 

   ------------    ------------

GRAND TOTAL PAYMENTS      333,199.88      333,199.88 
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Cash Disbursement Edit List
City of Louisville07/29/15 10:14

ap215_lv_pg.php/Job No: 22349
Page 1 of 7
USER: DIANEK

Batch: 91229 Period: 08/04/15

Vendor/

Remit#

Invoice

Number Description

Invoice

Date

Due

Date

Invoice

Amount

Check

Amount

FOR BANK ACCOUNT: 4 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF COLORAD Control Disbursement Account

5369-1 ACCUTEST MOUNTAIN STATES INC

D6-63757 LAB ANALYSIS FEES WWTP 07/01/15 07/31/15          294.00 

D6-63865 LAB ANALYSIS FEES WWTP 07/01/15 07/31/15          375.00 

D6-63926 LAB ANALYSIS FEES WWTP 07/01/15 07/31/15          263.00 

DA-10606CM CREDIT OVERPAY INV DY-44013 02/11/14 03/13/14          264.00-

DA-448404CM CREDIT OVERPAY INV D4-48404 07/28/15 08/27/15           44.00-          624.00  

355-1 AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOC

10500089 WATER LINE CLASS FARRELL 02/17/15 03/19/15           90.00           90.00  

10493-1 ARROW OFFICE EQUIPMENT LLC

471992-0 OFFICE FURNITURE PD 07/14/15 08/13/15        2,081.50        2,081.50  

14132-1 ATLAS COPCO COMPRESSORS LLC

511931 AIR FILTER ELEMENT WWTP 07/14/15 08/13/15          698.68          698.68  

13344-1 BROWN HILL ENGINEERING & CONTROLS LLC

10008 RAW WATER VALVE CONTROLS NWTP 07/17/15 08/16/15          170.50 

9967 SCADA MAINTENANCE WTP 07/10/15 08/09/15        1,175.00 

9968 INSTALL HACH METER WWTP 07/10/15 08/09/15          522.75        1,868.25  

13994-1 BRYAN CONSTRUCTION INC

PP08053115 CITY SERVICES FACILITY 05/31/15 06/30/15      378,921.55 

PP08053115 CITY SERVICES FACILITY 05/31/15 06/30/15      378,921.55 

PP08053115 CITY SERVICES FACILITY 05/31/15 06/30/15      378,921.55 

PP08053115 CITY SERVICES FACILITY 05/31/15 06/30/15      378,921.56    1,515,686.21  

248-1 CDW GOVERNMENT

WH75086 MS SURFACE PRO 3 LAPTOPS 06/23/15 07/23/15        3,510.95        3,510.95  

935-1 CENTENNIAL PRINTING CO

57603 CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT 06/30/15 07/30/15        2,937.35 

57715 BUSINESS CARDS 07/15/15 08/14/15          332.00 

57715 BUSINESS CARDS 07/15/15 08/14/15           42.00 

57767 PROPERTY REPORTS PD 07/13/15 08/12/15           48.75        3,360.10  

1005-1 CHEMATOX LABORATORY INC

17411 DUI BLOOD TEST 07/11/15 08/10/15           20.00           20.00  

2220-1 CHEMTRADE CHEMICALS US LLC

91571861 ALUMINUM SULFATE WTP 07/10/15 08/09/15        2,313.34 

91571862 ALUMINUM SULFATE WTP 07/10/15 08/09/15        2,298.79        4,612.13  

4785-1 CINTAS CORPORATION #66

66343329 UNIFORM RENTAL WTP 07/06/15 08/05/15          138.58 

66346796 UNIFORM RENTAL WTP 07/13/15 08/12/15          138.58 

66350351 UNIFORM RENTAL WTP 07/20/15 08/19/15          141.27          418.43  

14047-1 CITY OF NORTHGLENN

876 LAB ANALYSIS FEES WTP 06/30/15 07/30/15          210.00          210.00  
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Cash Disbursement Edit List
City of Louisville07/29/15 10:14

ap215_lv_pg.php/Job No: 22349
Page 2 of 7
USER: DIANEK

Batch: 91229 Period: 08/04/15

Vendor/

Remit#

Invoice

Number Description

Invoice

Date

Due

Date

Invoice

Amount

Check

Amount

1120-1 COLORADO ANALYTICAL LABORATORY

150622027 LAB ANALYSIS FEES WWTP 06/30/15 07/30/15          380.00          380.00  

11264-1 COLORADO DEPT OF PUBLIC HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT

900025049 DRINKING WATER PERMIT FEE 07/15/15 08/14/15        1,850.00        1,850.00  

13859-1 COLORADO DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION

1800004455 HPTE US 36 PHASE II 06/30/15 07/30/15      160,808.00      160,808.00  

10164-1 COLORADO MOTOR VEHICLES

063015 DEFAULT JUDGMENT FEES 06/30/15 07/30/15           90.00           90.00  

13970-1 CONCRETE WORKS OF COLORADO INC

PP3071715 WATER LINE REPLACEMENT 07/20/15 08/19/15       63,069.55       63,069.55  

10842-1 COZY CORNER TOWING

69496 RELOCATE VEHICLE 07/01/15 07/31/15           80.00 

69576 RELOCATE VEHICLE 07/01/15 07/31/15           60.00          140.00  

13685-1 DEWBERRY ENGINEERS INC

1212523 WWTP CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 07/16/15 08/15/15       30,980.20       30,980.20  

13929-1 DHE COMPUTER SYSTEMS LLC

91197 DELL MONITORS LIB 07/17/15 08/16/15          378.00          378.00  

13950-1 DIAZ CONSTRUCTION GROUP

PP4071715 SANITARY SEWER REPLACEMENT 07/20/15 08/19/15       63,464.75       63,464.75  

1505-1 DPC INDUSTRIES INC

7347002871-15 CHLORINE WTP 07/14/15 08/13/15          798.00 

737001987-15 CHLORINE WTP 05/26/15 06/25/15          798.00 

737002588-15 CAUSTIC SODA WTP 06/29/15 07/29/15        3,666.17 

737002615-15 CHLORINE WTP 06/30/15 07/30/15          798.00        6,060.17  

13790-1 EAGLE-NET ALLIANCE

10811 JUL 15 INTERNET SERVICE 07/10/15 08/09/15          870.20          870.20  

13963-1 ENSCICON CORPORATION

88137 ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/15/15 08/14/15          256.14 

88137A ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/15/15 08/14/15          227.68 

88137B ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/15/15 08/14/15          284.60 

88137C ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/15/15 08/14/15        1,309.16 

88137D ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/15/15 08/14/15          284.60 

88137E ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/15/15 08/14/15           56.92 

88194 ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/21/15 08/20/15          170.76 

88194A ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/21/15 08/20/15           56.92 

88194B ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/21/15 08/20/15          284.60 

88194C ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/21/15 08/20/15          483.82 

88194D ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/21/15 08/20/15        1,195.32 

88194E ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/21/15 08/20/15           56.92 

88194F ENGINEERING SERV TOWNSEND 07/21/15 08/20/15           56.92        4,724.36  
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Cash Disbursement Edit List
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ap215_lv_pg.php/Job No: 22349
Page 3 of 7
USER: DIANEK

Batch: 91229 Period: 08/04/15

Vendor/

Remit#

Invoice

Number Description

Invoice

Date

Due

Date

Invoice

Amount

Check

Amount

14114-1 FIBERCON INC

0210806 FIBER PULLS LIB/MUS 07/16/15 08/15/15        3,573.00        3,573.00  

2070-1 FLOOD & PETERSON INSURANCE INC

20955 WORKERS COMP PREMIUM 7 OF 10 07/20/15 08/19/15       15,783.00       15,783.00  

14070-1 FORENSIC TRUTH GROUP LLC

072115 PRE-EMPLOYMENT POLYGRAPH 07/21/15 08/20/15          140.00          140.00  

6847-1 GENERAL AIR SERVICE & SUPPLY

91533734-1 CYLINDER RENTAL WWTP 06/30/15 07/30/15           52.43           52.43  

2415-1 HARCROS CHEMICALS INC

100102157 FLUORIDE WTP 07/13/15 08/12/15        1,200.00 

100102158 FLUORIDE WTP 07/13/15 08/12/15        1,200.00        2,400.00  

11361-1 HARMONY K LARKE

1522194-3 CONTRACTOR FEES STAR WARS CAMP 07/16/15 08/15/15          378.00          378.00  

13565-1 HATCH MOTT MACDONALD LLC

IV214867 SLUDGE TREATMENT DESIGN 07/15/15 08/14/15       17,195.99       17,195.99  

13989-1 HORIZON VEGETATION MANAGEMENT

22203 NOXIOUS WEED CONTROL 07/17/15 08/16/15        1,274.35 

22204 NOXIOUS WEED CONTROL 07/17/15 08/16/15        5,792.25        7,066.60  

2780-1 KAISER LOCK & KEY SERVICE INC

102022 REKEY LOCKS WWTP 06/29/15 07/29/15           84.00           84.00  

14133-1 KAREN NEWLON

072215 WATER SAFETY INSTRUCTOR CLASS 07/22/15 08/21/15          250.00          250.00  

14130-1 KUHN NORTH AMERICA INC

36987/34 EQUIPMENT BLADES/AXLES 06/15/15 07/15/15          665.09          665.09  

11075-1 LEFT HAND TREE & LANDSCAPE LLC

071415 PRUNE TREES MCCASLIN MEDIAN 07/14/15 08/13/15        1,350.00        1,350.00  

3070-1 LL JOHNSON DISTRIBUTING CO

1085014-00 MARKING PAINT GC 06/26/15 07/26/15          267.88          267.88  

5432-1 LOUISVILLE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

116104 DUI BLOOD DRAWS 6/20-7/3/15 07/15/15 08/14/15          105.00          105.00  

11072-18 MERRICK AND COMPANY

141899 ELDORADO CONSTRUCTION MGMT 07/22/15 08/21/15          118.75 

141900 ELDORADO CONSTRUCTION MGMT 07/22/15 08/21/15          547.80          666.55  

6 ADAMS COUNTY EXTENSION


S15-113 SUMMER CAMP PROGRAM 07/01/15 07/31/15           40.00           40.00  

9668-1 MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION

258426 MUNICIPAL CODE #59 UPDATE 1 07/24/15 08/23/15        1,282.00        1,282.00  

13086-1 PETERSON PREDICTIVE MAINTENANCE

1408 PREVENTIVE MAINT WWTP 07/10/15 08/09/15          950.00          950.00  

11329-1 POLYDYNE INC
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ap215_lv_pg.php/Job No: 22349
Page 4 of 7
USER: DIANEK

Batch: 91229 Period: 08/04/15

Vendor/

Remit#

Invoice

Number Description

Invoice

Date

Due

Date

Invoice

Amount

Check

Amount

977032 CE-879 POLYMER 06/23/15 07/23/15        5,290.00        5,290.00  

3815-1 POSTMASTER

072815 CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT 07/28/15 08/27/15        2,134.86        2,134.86  

13668-1 RESOURCE BASED INTERNATIONAL

2015-06 JUN 15 WATER RIGHTS ADMIN 07/17/15 08/16/15        9,545.00        9,545.00  

14062-1 ROCKY MOUNTAIN WATERJET

15148 TEE MARKERS 07/24/15 08/23/15        2,979.20        2,979.20  

8513-1 SAFETY & CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY

24554-IN UNIFORM SHIRTS OPS 05/21/15 06/20/15          833.15 

24554-IN UNIFORM SHIRTS OPS 05/21/15 06/20/15          833.15 

24554-IN UNIFORM SHIRTS OPS 05/21/15 06/20/15          833.14 

24874-IN UNIFORM SHIRTS OPS 06/03/15 07/03/15          124.41 

24874-IN UNIFORM SHIRTS OPS 06/03/15 07/03/15          124.41 

24874-IN UNIFORM SHIRTS OPS 06/03/15 07/03/15          124.42        2,872.68  

4300-1 SILL-TERHAR MOTORS INC

131374 2016 FORD EXPLORER UNIT 2180 07/17/15 08/16/15       29,187.00 

131375 2016 FORD EXPLORER UNIT 2181 07/17/15 08/16/15       29,187.00 

131376 2016 FORD EXPLORER UNIT 2181 07/17/15 08/16/15       29,187.00       87,561.00  

13538-1 SQUARE STATE SKATE

1525202-4 CONTRACTOR FEE SKATEBOARD CAMP 07/13/15 08/12/15          147.00 

1525203-4 CONTRACTOR FEE SKATEBOARD CAMP 07/14/15 08/13/15           98.00 

1525204-4 CONTRACTOR FEE SKATEBOARD CAMP 07/15/15 08/14/15           98.00 

1525206-4 CONTRACTOR FEE SKATEBOARD CAMP 07/17/15 08/16/15           49.00 

1525207-4 CONTRACTOR FEE SKATEBOARD CAMP 07/17/15 08/16/15        1,120.00 

1525208-7 CONTRACTOR FEE SKATEBOARD CAMP 07/17/15 08/16/15          280.00        1,792.00  

11151-1 SUMMIT CHEMICALS

W150338-IN ALUMINUM CHLOROHYDRATE WTP 07/15/15 08/14/15       11,886.42       11,886.42  

10414-1 TANK EQUIPMENT INC

150577 CAUSTIC PUMP WTP 07/02/15 08/01/15        1,703.25        1,703.25  

1047-1 THE DAVEY TREE EXPERT COMPANY

909154220 TREE PRUNING 07/16/15 08/15/15        1,450.00        1,450.00  

14065-1 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC

045-139877 TYLER SOFTWARE 07/15/15 08/14/15          446.25 

045-139877 TYLER SOFTWARE 07/15/15 08/14/15           95.62 

045-139877 TYLER SOFTWARE 07/15/15 08/14/15           95.63          637.50  

6509-1 USA BLUEBOOK

675767 LAB SUPPLIES WWTP 06/19/15 07/19/15          166.53 

676445 LAB SUPPLIES WWTP 06/19/15 07/19/15          235.55          402.08  

5115-1 WL CONTRACTORS INC

25807 SECURITY CAMERA MAINT WTP 07/15/15 08/14/15          153.00 
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ap215_lv_pg.php/Job No: 22349
Page 5 of 7
USER: DIANEK

Batch: 91229 Period: 08/04/15

Vendor/

Remit#

Invoice

Number Description

Invoice

Date

Due

Date

Invoice

Amount

Check

Amount

25809 JUN 15 FIBER MAINTENANCE 07/15/15 08/14/15          100.00          253.00  

10884-1 WORD OF MOUTH CATERING INC

2015-17 SR MEAL PROGRAM 7/20-7/24/15 07/24/15 08/23/15        1,141.50        1,141.50  

13507-1 YATES LAW FIRM LLC

070115 JUN 15 WATER LEGAL FEES 06/02/15 07/02/15        8,447.00        8,447.00  

13558-1 ZIONS CREDIT CORP

598317 JUL 15 SOLAR POWER EQUIP LEASE 07/21/15 08/20/15        1,767.62 

598317 JUL 15 SOLAR POWER EQUIP LEASE 07/21/15 08/20/15          883.81        2,651.43  

   ------------    ------------

BANK TOTAL PAYMENTS    2,058,991.94    2,058,991.94 

   ------------    ------------

GRAND TOTAL PAYMENTS    2,058,991.94    2,058,991.94 
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
AGENDA ITEM 5B 

SUBJECT: REJECT BIDS FOR MINER’S FIELD RESTROOM FACILITY 
REMODEL PROJECT 

 
DATE:  AUGUST 4, 2015 
 
PRESENTED BY: JOE STEVENS, PARKS AND RECREATION DIRECTOR 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
Previously, the City of Louisville completed a Federally Mandated American’s with 
Disability Act Transition Plan for the City of Louisville’s Parks and Recreation 
Department.  In 2014 the Miner’s Field Restroom Facility was included with the City 
Adopted Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).  The City contracted with Lodestone Design 
Group to design and prepare construction documents to include the following: 
 

 Remodel the existing restrooms for commercial grade fixtures and current ADA 
standards. 

 Remove second story structure and redesign roof. 
 
This restroom facility has been closed for approximately eight years; the score booth is 
not accessible to the public and has not been used, as intended, for decades. 
 
After construction documents were completed and rollover funds approved, an Invitation 
to Bid was posted on the City website and published in the Daily Camera on June 5th 
and June 12th, and was advertised on Rocky Mountain Bid System.  The bid opening 
occurred on July 1st with the following bids accepted: 
 
Company Address Base Bid Amount 
Orion Environmental 4875 Newport St., 

Commerce City, CO 
$96,000 

Growling Bear Co. 2330 4th Ave., Greeley, CO $189,538 
Travis/Russell Construction 
LLC 

588 U.S. Hwy. 287, #202, 
Lafayette, CO 

$96,369 

Whitestone Construction 1930 Central Ave., Boulder, 
CO 

$48,993 

 
Whitestone Construction has completed similar projects for the City and is considered a 
qualified contractor for this scope of work.   
 
Based on qualifications and in combination with low bid, staff recommended awarding 
the Miner’s Field Restroom Facility Remodel Project to Whitestone Construction along 
with the two bid alternates for a project amount of $52,306.  Details on the bid alternates 
are shown below. 
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

SUBJECT: REJECT BIDS FOR MINER’S FIELD RESTROOM FACILITY REMODEL 
PROJECT 

DATE: AUGUST 4, 2015 PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

 
 Alternate #1:  Saw cut concrete and trench for new conduit for existing power line 

running from concession area to pitching machine. 
 Alternate #2: Install a cold water pressure tank to increase water pressure and 

volume to toilet flush valves.  Provide 10 gallon pressure tank and all required 
associated controls, fittings, and connections. 

 
Notification was given to Whitestone Construction of staff’s recommendation to award a 
bid to Whitestone at the August 4, 2015 City Council Meeting.  On July 17, 2015 staff 
received notification from Bob Bosshart, President of Whitestone Construction Services, 
Inc.  Mr. Bosshart stated that “Whitestone can NOT honor its bid for this project.” 
 
A bid bond of 5% of the bid price was secured from Whitestone Construction and will be 
collected by the City. 
 
The remaining bids exceed the project budget.  Staff is recommending that all bids be 
rejected and the project rebid with hopes of obtaining another bid from a qualified 
contractor. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None 
 
  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends City Council direct staff to reject the remaining Miner’s Field 
Restroom Facility Remodel Project bids and rebid the project. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   
None 
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
AGENDA ITEM 5C 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT 
AND CONTRACT AMENDMENT OR NEW CONTRACT 
REGARDING THE FRANCHISE, SALES, AND USE TAX AUDIT 
OF PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF COLORADO 

 
DATE:  AUGUST 4, 2015 
 
PRESENTED BY: MALCOLM FLEMING, CITY MANAGER 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
On November 4, 2013, City Council awarded a bid for franchise, sales, and use tax 
audits of Comcast and Public Service Company of Colorado (Xcel Energy) to Allixa 
Consulting, Inc. and approved execution of a contingency fee contract with Allixa for 
that work. Since that time City staff and Allixa have been working with Xcel to secure 
the auditor’s access to information needed to complete the audit and ensure compliance 
with applicable requirements. To date, Xcel has not provided access to the information 
needed, citing concerns with the contingency fee approach to the audit and with 
ensuring the confidentiality of information required to complete the audit.  
 
To address Xcel’s concerns and to secure the City’s interests in commencing and 
completing the audit, the City Manager asks Council to authorize the City Manager to 
execute (1) an agreement with Xcel, and (2) a contract amendment with Allixa or a new 
contract with Allixa or another contract auditor, provided the terms of any agreements 
(A) are consistent with applicable State law and City of Louisville Charter and Code 
provisions and with the City Manager’s purchasing authority, (B) enable the auditor to 
have access to information required to complete the audit in a timely manner while 
ensuring applicable confidentiality of information that must be protected according to 
applicable requirements, and (C) are no more costly to the City than the existing 
agreement with Allixa approved by the City Council.     
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Under the current agreement between the Allixa and the City, Allixa would receive 40% 
of all payments, refunds, credits, or other consideration received by the City as a result 
of Allixa’s audit findings.  For recurring future revenue received by the City associated 
with Allixa’s audit findings, Allixa would receive 40% of the incremental revenue realized 
by the City for 24 consecutive months following correction of the error resulting in the 
additional revenue. Therefore, the total fiscal impact of the existing agreement depends 
on the extent to which the audit identifies additional taxes are due or a refund is owed.  
It is the City Manager’s intent and expectation to negotiate and execute agreements that 
enable the auditor to complete the audit without increasing the City’s costs associated 
with the audit.  
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY TAX AUDIT  
 
DATE: AUGUST 4, 2015        PAGE 2 OF 2 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends Council authorize the City Manager to execute (1) an agreement with 
Xcel, and (2) a contract amendment with Allixa or a new contract with Allixa or another 
contract auditor, provided the terms of any agreements (A) are consistent with 
applicable State law and City of Louisville Charter and Code provisions and with the 
City Manager’s purchasing authority, (B) enable the auditor to have access to 
information required to complete the audit in a timely manner while ensuring applicable 
confidentiality of information that must be protected according to applicable 
requirements, and (C) are no more costly to the City than the existing agreement with 
Allixa approved by the City Council.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

None 
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
AGENDA ITEM 8A 

SUBJECT: PRESENTATION – GINNY VIDULICH, LOUISVILLE MIDDLE 
SCHOOL 

 
DATE:  AUGUST 4, 2015 
 
PRESENTED BY: CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
Ginny Vidulich, Principal of Louisville Middle School (LMS) has asked to give a short 
presentation recapping the year at LMS. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
N/A 
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
AGENDA ITEM 8B 

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF 2014 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

 
DATE:  AUGUST 4, 2015 
 
PRESENTED BY: KEVIN WATSON, FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
   DAVE DEZUTTER, PARTNER, EIDE BAILLY, LLC 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
David DeZutter, Audit Partner with Eide Bailly LLP, the City’s external auditors, will be at 
the meeting to discuss the 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).   
 
Attached is a digital copy of the 2014 CAFR. A hard copy of the report was distributed 
during the first week of July to the Council, City Manager, and all departments. 
Additional bound copies of the 2014 CAFR are available for public inspection in the City 
Manager’s Office, the Finance Department, and at the Louisville Public Library.  The 
2014 CAFR can also be accessed from the City’s Website. 
 
Also, in compliance with Statements on Auditing Standards (SAS), as codified into AU-
C Sections, attached is a letter from Eide Bailly.  This is standard communication and 
reviews management’s responsibilities, accounting estimates, disclosures, and any 
difficulties, misstatements, or disagreements that occurred during the 2014 audit 
engagement. 
 
The 2014 CAFR and auditor communications under Statement on Auditing Standards 
(SAS) were presented to the Finance Committee on June 29, 2015.  Copies of the 
Finance Committee packet and minutes of the meeting are available for public 
inspection in the Finance Department and on the City’s Website 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
None – for review and discussion purposes only. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report  
2. AU-260 Communication Letter 
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June 29, 2015 
 
 
Citizens, Mayor Muckle, Members of the City Council: 
 
We submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of 
Louisville for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.  Responsibility for both the 
accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including 
all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed 
data reflects accurately in all material respects and is reported in a manner that presents 
fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the City.  We 
have also included all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an 
understanding of the City's financial activities.  We also suggest that readers of this 
document review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section for a more detailed 
discussion on the financial information. 
 
This report includes all funds of the City. In addition, the Urban Revitalization District 
meets established criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity and, therefore, is also 
included within this report. 
 
 
 ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 
 
The City of Louisville has often been recognized for its livability.  Money magazine 
named Louisville No. 1 in its 2009 “Best Place to Live” issue, and then in an 
unprecedented action again named Louisville No. 1 in its 2011 “Best Place to Live” 
issue. In 2013, Louisville slipped ever so slightly in the Money magazine rankings and 
landed in the No. 2 slot. We will find out Louisville’s ranking for 2015 later this year. 
Many things contribute to this exemplary quality of life and positive economic condition. 
Among other things, we have beautiful open spaces and parks around and throughout 
the City, dozens of great eateries, a thriving arts scene, great neighborhoods, among the 
best schools in the State and numerous job opportunities with employers such as Sierra 
Nevada, which works on the next space shuttle and other space systems, Pearl Izumi, 
which has its world headquarters here, Trelleborg Sealing Solutions, which in opened a 
major manufacturing facility in Louisville in 2014 specializing in engineered seals and 
bearings for industries such as aerospace, automotive and offshore oil and gas, and 
other employers expanding or moving here. As the first Money article noted, “Add in dry, 
clear weather, little crime, good health care, low taxes, and Louisville is pretty tough to 
beat.” 
 
Louisville is located in the Denver metropolitan region, approximately 6 miles east of the 
City of Boulder and 25 miles northwest of Denver.   Louisville has an incorporated area 

Office of the City Manager 
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of approximately 7.9 square miles and a population of approximately 20,000.  The City’s 
residential growth peaked in 1992, then remained fairly steady through the 2010 census, 
and then picked up in the past several years as the last large developable parcels build 
out and the City nears the target population of about 23,000 that is reflected in the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.   There is significant activity on the commercial land available in 
Louisville as the City is strongly influenced by the U.S. Highway 36 corridor from Denver 
to Boulder, proximity to nearby national laboratories and universities, easy access to 
Denver International Airport, and numerous world-class recreational and cultural 
opportunities.   
 
 

MAJOR INITIATIVES IN 2014 
 
The City of Louisville Home Rule Charter suggests that the City’s mission is to provide 
basic municipal services in an efficient and cost-effective manner and maintain the 
qualities that make Louisville unique by protecting and enhancing the City's natural, 
cultural, and recreational resources, and preserving the City's scenic, historic, and 
aesthetic features through open and ethical government in which every member of the 
community has an opportunity to participate. Consistent with this mission, in addition to 
every day delivering services Louisville residents, businesses and visitors rely on, and 
along with many other projects, City leaders and staff accomplished the following during 
2014: 
 
 Repaired, restored and reconstructed flood damaged facilities and infrastructure 

throughout the City, including: 
o Completely rebuilding Coal Creek Golf Course 
o Completely rebuilding Coal Creek Trail 
o Significant repairs on Coyote Run Open Space Trail 
o Significant repairs on Davidson Mesa Open Space Trail 
o Completely rebuilding the Eldorado Springs Water Intake Structure (in progress) 
o Completely redesigning and rebuilding County Road Bridge (in progress) 
o Significant repairs on Dillon Road bridge (in progress) 
o Major debris removal throughout Coal Creek and elsewhere  
o Drainage mitigation around the Golf Course 

 Updated the City’s Building Code to reflect the latest International Building Code 

 Secured Historic Landmark status for 740 Front Street and 927 Main Street  

 Purchased the former 1st Baptist Church property and expanded Cottonwood Park 

 Conducted a detailed evaluation of the City’s utility rates and adopted a new rate 
structure, rates and tap fees   

 Conducted/Developed a Downtown Parking Study & Downtown Parking Action Plan 

 Updated the City’s Storm Drainage Criteria Manual 

 Updated the City’s Cemetery Rules and Regulations  

 Completed ADA improvements at the Recreation Center and Memory Square 

 Secured a $1 million grant for the Wastewater Treatment Plant project 

 Secured a $1 million grant for the City Services Facility 
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 Completed the Washington/McCaslin Underpass 

 Broke ground on the City Services Facility 

 Completed the Historical Museum Needs Assessment 

 Implemented the new City website  

 
 

PROJECTS PLANNED IN 2015 
 
The City reviews and publishes its Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan on an annual 
basis.  Planned City projects for 2015 amount to over $40 million and include: 
 

     
Project  Source   2015 

Description  of Funds  Estimate 
Wastewater Plant Upgrade  Wastewater Utility Fund (Bond)  $14,600,000
City Services Facility  Various Funds  10,722,000
City-Wide Storm Sewer Improvmts  Storm Water Utility Fund (Bond)  5,000,000
Bridge Reconstruction  Capital Project Funds (& FEMA)  3,204,600
South Street Underpass  Capital Projects & Storm Water  2,610,250
Sludge Treatment/Handling  Water Utility Fund  2,210,000
Street Reconstruction Program  Capital Projects Fund  1,770,000
McCaslin/US36 Interchange (DDI)  Capital Projects Fund  1,248,730
Eldorado Intake Reconstruction  Water Utility Fund (& FEMA)  1,100,000
    

  
Operationally, we will finish the reconstruction and grow-in of the Coal Creek Golf 
Course in early-2015 and will have a grand reopening for public on June 27, 2015.  We 
will also begin implementing City’s the new enterprise resource planning system in early-
2015. 
 
 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
City management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls that 
are designed to ensure the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse. 
Also, management ensures that financial statements are prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles through the compilation of adequate 
accounting data.  Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance these objectives are met.  The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes 
that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) 
the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 
 
Budgetary Controls.  The City maintains budgetary controls.  The objective of these 
budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual 
appropriated budget approved by the City Council.  The level of budgetary control (that 
is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is 
established at the fund level.  The City also maintains an encumbrance accounting 
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system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.  Encumbered amounts do 
not lapse at year-end and are generally re-appropriated the following year. 
 
As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of 
the report, the City continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.   
 
  

OTHER INFORMATION 
 
Independent Audit.  State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified 
public accountants.  The accounting firm of Eide Bailly LLP was retained by City Council 
for this purpose. Eide Bailly has issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2014.  The auditors’ report on the Basic 
Financial Statements is included in the financial section of this report.  
 
Awards.  The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and 
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting to the City of Louisville for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2013. This was the twenty-fourth consecutive year the 
City of Louisville has received this prestigious award.  In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report must satisfy both 
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our 
current Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of 
Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine 
its eligibility for another certificate. 
 
In addition, the City of Louisville also received the GFOA's Award for Distinguished 
Budget Presentation for the 2014 fiscal year.  This was the twenty-fifth consecutive year 
the City of Louisville has received this award.  In order to qualify for the Distinguished 
Budget Presentation Award, the City's budget document was judged to be proficient as a 
policy document, financial plan, operations guide, and communications device. 
 
Acknowledgments.  The preparation of this report would not have been possible 
without the efficient and dedicated efforts of the entire City staff.  We especially thank all 
members of the City’s Finance Department for their exceptional efforts and the staff of 
Eide Bailly LLP for the professional manner in which they have accomplished our audit 
and their assistance in the publication of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report.  We thank the Mayor and City Council for their effective fiscal and policy 
direction and their support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City 
in a responsible and progressive manner. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Malcolm Fleming       Kevin C. Watson 
Malcolm Fleming Kevin C. Watson 
City Manager Director of Finance 

426



527



Mayor &
City Council

City Manager
 

Boards & Commissions

Planning Commission
Board of Adjustments

Building Code Board of Appeals
Library Board of Trustees

Citizens Open Space Advisory Board
Cultural Council

Historic Preservation Commission
Historic Commission

Horticultural & Forestry Advisory Board
Local Licensing Authority

Resource Conservation Advisory Board
Revitalization Commission

Senior Advisory Board
Youth Advisory Board

 

Municipal 
Court Judge

Prosecuting 
Attorney

City Attorney
 

Planning
 

Deputy City
Manager

Public Library
 

Police
 

Public Works
 

Parks & 
Recreation

 

Finance &
Information 

Services

Public Information
Central Records
Municipal Court

City Clerk
Human Resources

Information 
Technology

Accounting & 
Financial Reporting
Cash Management & 

Investments
Budget Preparation

Purchasing & 
Disbursements

Payroll
Utility Billing

Cash Receipting

Planning
Zoning

Building Safety

Water Treatment
Wastewater 
Treatment

Engineering
Street 

Maintenance
Water Distribution

Wastewater 
Collection

Vehicle 
Maintenance

Building 
Maintenance

Adult Services
Teen Services

Children’s 
Services

Circulation 
Services
Technical 
Services

Patrol
Investigations

Records/
Evidence

Code 
Enforcement

Youth Services
Emergency 

Preparedness

Parks/Open Space
Forestry

Cemetery
Athletic Field 
Maintenance
Golf Course

Recreation Programs
Aquatics

Fitness & Wellness
Youth/Teen Activities
Memory Square Pool

Youth Sports
Adult Sports
Gymnastics

Cultural Activities
Senior Programs

Residents
 

             
Economic 

Development 
Director

 

Business 
Retention
Business 

Development
Economic 
Analysis

City of Louisville Organizational Chart

1/1/2015

6

28



 
 

  
  

 

City of Louisville, Colorado 
Directory of City Officials 

December 31, 2014 
  

 
Mayor 

  
Robert P. Muckle 

 
 

City Council 
 

Ward I .............................................................................................. Jay Keany, Chris Leh 
Ward II ............................................................................................ Jeff Lipton, Susan Loo 
Ward III ............................................................................ Hank Dalton, Ashley Stolzmann 
 
 

Appointed Officials 
 

City Manager .......................................................................................... Malcolm Fleming 
Deputy City Manager ................................................................................. Heather Balser 
City Attorney ................................................................................................. Samuel Light 
City Clerk ....................................................................................................... Nancy Varra 
Municipal Judge ......................................................................................... W. Bruce Joss 
Prosecuting Attorney .............................................................................. K. Colette Cribari 
 

Department Directors 
 

Director of Economic Development ............................................................ Aaron DeJong 
Director of Finance ...................................................................................... Kevin Watson 
Director of Human Resources ....................................................................... Kathleen Hix 
Director of Information Technology ................................................................ Chris Neves 
Director of Library Services ............................................................................ Beth Barrett 
Director of Parks and Recreation ................................................................... Joe Stevens 
Director of Planning ........................................................................................... Troy Russ 
Chief of Police ................................................................................................ Dave Hayes 
Director of Public Works ................................................................................... Kurt Kowar  
 
  

729



 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page intentionally left blank) 

830



 
 
 

www.eidebai l ly.com 
  

440 Indiana St., Ste. 200  |  Golden, CO 80401-5021  |  TF 877.882.7929  |  T 303.986.2454  |  F 303.980.5029  |  EOE 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Louisville, Colorado 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Louisville, Colorado as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2014, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Louisville, Colorado, as of December 31, 2014, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Comparative Statements 
We have previously audited the City's 2013 financial statements, and we expressed unmodified audit opinions on the 
respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information in our report dated June 10, 2014. In our opinion, the summarized 
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013 is consistent, in all 
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis on pages 11 to 21 and the budgetary comparison information on pages 64 to 66 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses 
to our inquires, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of Louisville, Colorado’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, statistical section and local highway finance report are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. 
 
The combining and individual nonmajor find financial statements and schedules and the local highway finance 
report are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated 
in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29, 2015 on our 
consideration of the City of Louisville’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  

That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the City of Louisville’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
Golden, Colorado 
June 29, 2015 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

This section of City of Louisville, Colorado’s annual financial report presents the discussion and 
analysis of the City’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on December 31, 
2014.  City staff encourages readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction 
with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the financial statements, which follow this 
section.     
 
Financial Highlights 
 
 The City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred 

inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $214.3 million (net 
position).  Of this amount, $25.4 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the 
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.     
 

 The City’s total net position increased by $11.8 million, or 5.8%.   
 

 During the year, the City’s revenue from taxes and other revenues for governmental 
programs exceeded the expenses by $1.0 million.  This is a decrease of $2.9 million from 
the prior year.   
 

 In the City’s business-type activities, net position increased by $10.8 million.   
 

 The City’s total long-term debt, excluding compensated absences payable, and excluding 
the debt issued from the Urban Revitalization District, decreased by $1.3 million. 
 

 At the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $20.5 million, a decrease of $3.6 million from the previous year.  Of 
this amount, $2.3 million (11%) is deemed unassigned fund balance, $0.2 million (1%) is 
assigned, $0.5 million (3%) is committed, $16.8 million (82%) is restricted, and $0.6 million 
(3%) is non-spendable. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This annual report consists of four parts – management’s discussion and analysis (this section), 
basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and a section that presents 
combining statements for non-major governmental funds and internal service funds.  The report 
also presents budgetary comparison statements.   
 
The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of 
the City: 
 
 The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-

term and short-term information about the City’s overall financial status. 
 

 The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the 
City government, reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide 
statements. 

 
o The governmental fund statements tell how general government services were financed 

in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 
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o Proprietary fund statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about 

the activities the government operates like businesses, such as utilities. 
 

The basic financial statements also include Notes to the Financial Statements that explain some 
of the information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data.  The basic 
financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further 
explains and supports the information in the financial statements.  Figure 1 shows how the 
individual sections of this annual report are arranged and related to one another.   
 
Figure 2 summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements, including the portion 
of the City government they cover and the types of information they contain.  The remainder of 
this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure and 
contents of each of the statements. 
 
 

Figure 1 
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Figure 2 

 
                    |-------------------------Fund Statements-----------------------| 
 Government-wide 

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds 
Scope Entire City government The activities of the 

City that are not 
proprietary, such as 
police, public works, 
and parks and 
recreation 

Activities the City 
operates similar to 
private businesses:  
The utilities and the 
golf course 

Required financial 
statements 

 Statement of net 
position 
 Statement of 

activities 

 Balance sheet 
 Statement of 

revenues, 
expenditures, and 
changes in fund 
balances 

 Statement of net 
position 
 Statement of 

revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net 
position 
 Statement of cash 

flows 
Accounting basis 
and measurement 
focus 

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus  

Modified accrual 
accounting and current 
financial resources 
focus 

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus 

Type of asset/liability 
information 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and capital, 
and short-term and 
long-term 

Only assets expected 
to be used up and 
liabilities that come 
due during the year or 
soon thereafter; no 
capital assets included 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and capital, 
and short-term and 
long-term 

Type of 
inflow/outflow 
information 

All revenues and 
expenses during year, 
regardless of when 
cash is received or 
paid 

Revenues for which 
cash is received 
during or soon after 
the end of the year; 
expenditures when 
goods or services 
have been received 
and payment is due 
during the year or 
soon thereafter 

All revenues and 
expenses during year, 
regardless of when 
cash is received or 
paid 

 
 
Government-wide Statements 
 
The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting 
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies.  The statement of net position 
includes all of the City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources and all liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.  Over time, increases or 
decreases in the City’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving 
or deteriorating, respectively.  To assess the overall health of the City, additional nonfinancial 
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factors need to be considered, such as changes in the City’s tax base and the condition of the 
City’s infrastructure. 
 
The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into two categories: 
 
Governmental activities – Most of the City’s basic services are included here, such as the public 
safety, public works, parks and recreation, library services, and general administrative services.  
Sales and use taxes, property taxes, other taxes, charges for services, and intergovernmental 
revenue finance most of these activities. 
 
Business-type activities – The City charges user fees to customers to recover most of the costs 
of providing certain services.  The City’s water, wastewater, storm water, and solid waste 
utilities, as well as golf facilities, are included here. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant 
funds – not the City as a whole.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to 
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  
The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements.  Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.  Other funds are 
established by the City Council to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show 
that it is properly using certain taxes and grants. 
 
All of the funds currently used by the City can be divided into two categories:  governmental 
funds and proprietary funds: 
 
 Governmental funds – Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, 

which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets can readily be converted to cash 
flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.  
Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that 
helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in 
the near future to finance the City’s programs.  Because this information does not 
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide 
additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement, or on the 
subsequent page, that explains the relationship (or differences) between them. 
 

 Proprietary funds – Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally 
reported in proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, 
provide both long-term and short-term financial information. 

 
o The City uses enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) to report its business-type 

activities and provide more detailed and additional information, such as cash flows. 
 

o The City uses internal service funds (the other type of proprietary fund) to report 
activities that provide services and asset replacement for the City’s other programs and 
activities – such as the City’s Fleet Management Fund.  These funds are reported with 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
Net Position 
 
As of December 31, 2014, the City’s assets and deferred outflow of resources exceeded its 
liabilities and deferred inflow of resources by $214.3 million (Figure 3).  This amounts to an 
increase in combined net position of $11.8 million, or 5.8%, from 2013 to 2014.  The largest 
portion of the City’s net position (77%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is 
still outstanding.  The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the City’s 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.   
 

 
 
Sales and use tax are the City’s largest revenue source and account for 35% of all revenues 
(Figure 4).  Sales and use tax are the main funding source for the City’s governmental activities.  
Charges for services are the main funding source for the City’s business-type activities and 
account for 30% of all City revenue.  The City’s largest expenses come from business activities 
that include water, wastewater, storm water, solid waste, and golf course services (Figure 5). 
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Figure 4 

 
 

Figure 5 
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Changes in Net Assets  
 
Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $1.0 million during 2014.  Business-
type activities increased the City’s net position by $10.8 million during 2014. 
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Financial Analysis of Funds 
 
As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$20.5 million, a decrease of $3.6 million (15.0%) from last year.  Some items to be noted, within 
various funds are: 

 
 The General Fund balance declined by $2.8 million, or 44%, during 2014.  This was due to 

$5.9 million of transfers to other funds, including $5.6 million to the Capital Projects Fund 
and $200,000 to the Golf Course Fund.  This large decline was actually less than anticipated 
due to higher than anticipated receipts of sales and use tax and building-related revenue.  In 
addition, total General Fund expenditures came in at 5.2% under budget.   
 

 As anticipated, the Open Space & Parks Fund balance declined by nearly $2.1 million 
during 2014 due to a significant amount of capital projects.  However, the fund balance 
remained at $5.3 million.  As with the General Fund, the decline was less than expected.  
Although fund revenue came in under-budget by $75,000, fund expenditures came in under-
budget by $1.4 million, mainly due to unfinished capital projects. 
 

 Although the Capital Projects Fund balance was projected to decline significantly during 
2014, it increased by over $1.8 million.  This was due to capital expenditures being under-
budget by nearly $6 million because of delayed capital projects.  The majority of this unused 
budget will be re-appropriated for 2015 in order to complete the projects.     

  
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
For 2014, General Fund revenue exceeded budget by $980,000 (6%).  As previously stated, 
this was primarily due to positive budget variances in sales tax revenue ($171,000) use tax 
revenue ($393,000), and licenses and permits ($141,000).  The only significant negative 
revenue variance occurred because the City failed to sell property as anticipated at the time of 
budget adoption ($1 million).  In addition, continued emphasis on cost-containment resulted in 
General Fund expenditures (excluding interfund transfers) coming in over $1 million (6%) below 
budget.  Excluding interfund transfers and sales of assets, the positive variances in revenue and 
expenditures total approximately $2 million. 
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets   
 
At the end of 2014, the City had invested $276.0 million (Figure 7) in a broad range of capital 
assets, including land, water rights, streets, and utility infrastructure.  Net of accumulated 
depreciation, the City’s capital assets total $184.2 million.  More detailed information on capital 
asset activity can be found in the notes to the financial statements, Note 6: Capital assets. 
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Long-term Debt   
 
On October 23, 2014, the Urban Revitalization District (Louisville Revitalization Commission) 
issued $750,000 of Tax Increment Financing Bonds for the DELO Project.  The District is a 
blended component unit of the City and the debt does not constitute a direct obligation of the 
City.   
 

 
 
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt is provided in Note 7 to the financial 
statements. 
 
Bond Ratings 
 
The 2004 Library Limited Tax General Obligation Library Bonds were issued with an insured 
rating (MBIA) from Standard & Poor’s of AAA and an underlying rating of AA-.  In early 2011, 
Standard & Poor’s increased the underlying rating to AA.  In early 2014, Standard & Poor’s 
again increased the underlying rating to AA+    
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Limitations on Debt 
 
The state limits the amount of general obligation debt the City can issue to 3 percent of the 
actual value of all taxable property within the City’s corporate limits.  The current debt limit is 
$109.8 million.  In contrast, the City currently has only $3.1 million in outstanding debt 
applicable to the debt limit. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
 After reaching over $10.4 million in 2005, sales tax revenue declined by 12% in 2006, 

increased by 3.3% in 2007, and remained relatively steady through 2008.  Due to the 
national and regional recessions, sales tax revenue for 2009, excluding the new Historical 
Preservation Sales Tax of 0.125%, declined by 7.0%.  Due to the continued recession and 
the closing of Sam’s Club and Safeway, sales tax revenue declined an additional 2.8% in 
2010.  However, since 2011, sales tax revenue has increased each year – 3.7% in 2011, 
7.3% in 2012, 7.2% in 2013, and 8.7% in 2014.  Staff projects sales tax to continue 
increasing at an average annual rate of approximately 3.5% for 2015 through 2019.    
 

 After a flat year in 2010, the City experienced its first decline in assessed valuation in many 
years in 2011.  Assessed valuation for 2011, which determined the property tax revenue for 
2012, declined by 2.2% from 2010.  The 2012 assessed valuation increased by 1.3%, 2013 
assessed valuation increased by 2.5%, and the 2014 assessed valuation increased by 
2.2%.  Staff expects the assessed valuation for years 2015 through 2019 to increase at an 
average rate of 3.4% per year.  The projected increase is partially due to the new residential 
development at Steel Ranch, North End, commercial development in the Colorado 
Technology Center and the Centennial Valley Business Park and redevelopment activity 
throughout the City.   

 
 The City conducted a comprehensive utility system and rate study in late 2013 and early 

2014. This study identified infrastructure replacements and improvements needed to enable 
the City’s water, wastewater and storm water utilities to comply with new State and Federal 
regulations and to continue to provide safe and reliable water, and wastewater and storm 
water treatment. To fund these improvements, the City increased water, wastewater, and 
storm water utility rates on May 1, 2014 by 2%, 27%, and 30%, respectively.  The study 
recommended additional increases. Based on staff’s additional analysis this year of the 
most recent projected costs and revenues, the City Council approved increases in water, 
wastewater and storm water rates of 32.4%, 6.3%, and 0.0% respectively going into effect 
on May 1, 2015. Staff projects the average annual increases from 2016 through 2019 at 
5.5% for water, 6.1% for wastewater, and 3.2% for storm water for a residential customer’s 
average monthly bill. 
 

 After increasing by 5.4% in 2012 and 3.1% in 2013, total employee wages (including full-
time, part-time, and overtime) increased by 5.3% in 2014.  Due to new City staffing of the 
Coal Creek Golf Course, staff expects total city-wide wages to increase by 10.7% in 2015.  
Staff projects an average annual increase of 4.5% from 2016 through 2019. 
 

 Due to an overall reduction in health care benefits, total health care benefit costs declined in 
2010.  However, from 2011 through 2013 health care costs increased an average of 7.1% 
per year for the same level of benefits.  Total employee benefit costs (including FICA, 
retirement, health care, and workers compensation) increased by 7.9% in 2014 and staff 
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projects they will continue to increase by approximately 6.75% per year from 2016 through 
2019. 

 
Staff and the City Council considered the above indicators when developing the budget for 
2015.  Total estimated expenditures for 2015, excluding interfund transfers, are currently $85.0 
million, which includes nearly $40 million in capital improvements.  This is an increase of $39.9 
million (88%) over 2014 actual expenditures, on a budgetary basis.   
 
Due to the significant amount of capital improvements planned for 2015, City Council has 
approved transferring an additional $1.3 million of excess reserves from the General Fund to the 
Capital Projects Fund.  The decline in General Fund balance for 2015 is currently projected at 
approximately $350,000. 
 
Contact Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and 
creditors of the City of Louisville a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate 
the City’s accountability for the money it receives.  Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to City of 
Louisville, Finance Department, 749 Main Street, Louisville, Colorado 80027, (303) 335-4500.   
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 Exhibit 1

Governmental Business-type Prior Year
Activities Activities Total Total

Assets:
Pooled Cash and Investments 22,001,832$   22,153,201$   44,155,033$    46,776,929$   
Restricted Cash -                 144,407         144,407          144,392         
Receivables (net)

Property Taxes 3,460,684      -                 3,460,684       3,193,646      
Sales and Use Taxes 1,614,949      -                 1,614,949       1,648,267      
Interest 14,817           65,600           80,417            22,168           
Intergovernmental 263,341         569,562         832,903          315,072         
Other  346,428         696,698         1,043,126       992,770         

Inventories 15,063           -                 15,063            26,500           
Prepaid expenses 170,917         -                 170,917          46,443           
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable capital assets 37,766,445    44,090,606    81,857,051     70,738,440    
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 62,535,627    39,781,222    102,316,849   98,378,648    

Total assets 128,190,103  107,501,296  235,691,399   222,283,275  

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Loss on refunding -                 8,414             8,414              11,220           

Total deferred outflows of resources -                 8,414             8,414              11,220           

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,938,490      1,999,627      4,938,117       3,043,564      
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 469,158         764,628         1,233,787       1,160,114      
Due in more than one year 4,385,565      7,325,681      11,711,246     12,329,287    

Total liabilities 7,793,213      10,089,936    17,883,149     16,532,965    

Deferred Infows of Resources:
Deferred revenue - property taxes 3,460,547      -                 3,460,547       3,193,646      
Deferred revenue - other 46,535           -                 46,535            45,760           

Total deferred inflows of resources 3,507,082      -                 3,507,082       3,239,406      

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 95,447,349    75,983,429    171,430,778   156,725,170  
Restricted for:

Emergency reserves (TABOR) 933,822         -                 933,822          761,218         
Debt service and operating reserves -                 144,407         144,407          144,392         

 Library debt service 664,665         -                 664,665          696,968         
Library construction -                 -                 -                  -                 
Conservation sites 5,877,216      -                 5,877,216       7,841,829      
Historic Preservation 905,271         -                 905,271          1,783,276      
Capital improvements 8,468,346      -                 8,468,346       5,904,618      

Permanently Restricted for: 
Permanent fund - perpetual care 456,256         -                 456,256          424,221         

Unrestricted 4,136,883      21,291,938    25,428,821     28,240,432    
Total net position 116,889,808$ 97,419,774$   214,309,582$  202,522,124$ 

Primary Government

City of Louisville, Colorado
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 2 

   

               

Charges for
Expenses Services

Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government 5,367,677$           194,017$               
Finance 408,029               -                        
Police 4,553,551            190,378                 
Public works 4,936,452            50,601                  
Planning 900,062               1,003,724              
Library 1,702,806            93,910                  
Parks and recreation 3,590,187            2,241,053              
Interest on long-term debt 143,261               -                        

Total governmental activities 21,602,024          3,773,683              

Business-type activities:
Water & Wastewater 6,925,945            7,639,334              
Golf 725,639               61,271                  
Solid Waste & Recycling 1,308,423            1,331,448              

Total business-type activities 8,960,007            9,032,053              

Total primary government 30,562,031$         12,805,736$          

Functions / Programs

City of Louisville, Colorado
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 2 
(continued)

Operating Capital
Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Prior Year 

Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Total

207,082$               -$                       (4,966,578)$          -$                      (4,966,578)$           (3,995,630)$          
-                         -                         (408,029)               -                       (408,029)               (359,659)               
-                         -                         (4,363,173)            -                       (4,363,173)            (4,237,666)            

720,958                 330,355                 (3,834,538)            -                       (3,834,538)            (3,925,011)            
253,877                 -                         357,539                -                       357,539                361,724                

-                         -                         (1,608,896)            -                       (1,608,896)            (1,448,780)            
5,406                     616,162                 (727,566)               -                       (727,566)               (1,122,274)            

-                         -                         (143,261)               -                       (143,261)               (200,664)               
1,187,323              946,517                 (15,694,501)          -                       (15,694,501)         (14,927,960)          

-                         4,814,288              -                        5,527,677            5,527,677             4,616,617             
-                         1,978,938              -                        1,314,570            1,314,570             87,783                  
-                         29                          -                        23,054                 23,054                  (35,857)                 
-                         6,793,255              -                        6,865,301            6,865,301             4,668,543             

1,187,323$            7,739,772$            (15,694,501)          6,865,301            (8,829,200)            (10,259,417)          

General revenue:
  Taxes:
    Property taxes 3,187,825             -                       3,187,825             2,982,528             
    Sales tax 11,230,542           -                       11,230,542           10,441,013           
    Use tax 3,740,268             -                       3,740,268             3,808,835             
    Franchise tax 1,123,485             -                       1,123,485             1,059,412             
    Other tax 711,022                -                       711,022                640,578                
  Intergovernmental revenue 123,200                -                       123,200                78,281                  
  Investment earnings 102,904                91,010                 193,914                151,085                
  Miscellaneous 306,402                -                       306,402                461,101                
      Total general revenue 20,525,648           91,010                 20,616,658           19,622,833           
Extraordinary Loss -                        -                       -                        (1,971,987)            
Transfers (3,828,821)            3,828,821            -                        -                        

16,696,827           3,919,831            20,616,658           17,650,846           

Change in net position 1,002,326             10,785,132          11,787,458           7,391,429             
Net position - beginning 115,887,482          86,634,642          202,522,124        195,130,695         
Net position - ending 116,889,808$        97,419,774$         214,309,582$       202,522,124$       

      items, and transfers

Primary Government
and Changes in Net Position

Net (Expense) Revenue 

      Total general revenue, extraordinary 

Program Revenue

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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 Exhibit 3 

Major Special Major Capital
Revenue Funds Project Funds

Other Total
Open Space Capital Governmental Governmental

General and Parks Projects Funds Funds

Assets:
Pooled Cash and Investments 3,683,737$          5,394,523$          7,885,355$          4,120,818$          21,084,433$        
Receivables:

Property taxes 2,370,143            -                      -                      1,090,541            3,460,684            
Sales and use taxes 974,956               168,841               414,871               56,281                 1,614,949            
Other revenue 272,504               55,317                 -                      6,371                   334,192               
Interest 2,860                   3,537                   4,696                   3,072                   14,165                 
Intergovernmental 87,297                 24,046                 143,098               8,900                   263,341               

Inventories 15,063                 -                      -                      -                      15,063                 
Prepaid items 170,192               725                      -                      -                      170,917               

Total assets 7,576,752$          5,646,989$          8,448,020$          5,285,983$          26,957,744$        

Liabilities:  
Accounts payable 1,032,925$          344,611$             665,995$             326,698$             2,370,229$          
Accrued liabilities 468,500               49,230                 40,287                 9,328                   567,345               

Total liabilities 1,501,425            393,841               706,282               336,026               2,937,574            

Deferred Infows of Resources:
Deferred revenue - property taxes 2,370,006            -                      -                      1,090,541            3,460,547            
Deferred revenue - other 46,535                 -                      -                      -                      46,535                 

Total deferred inflows of resources 2,416,541            -                      -                      1,090,541            3,507,082            

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable:

Inventories 15,063                 -                      -                      -                      15,063                 
Prepaids 170,192               -                      -                      -                      170,192               
Cemetery care -                      -                      -                      456,256               456,256               

Restricted for:
Emergency reserves (TABOR) 933,822               -                      -                      -                      933,822               
Conservation sites -                      5,253,148            -                      624,068               5,877,216            
Takoda Metro District improvements -                      -                      259,221               -                      259,221               
General capital improvements -                      -                      7,482,517            -                      7,482,517            
URD Improvements -                      -                      -                      726,608               726,608               
Historic preservation -                      -                      -                      905,271               905,271               
Debt service -                      -                      -                      664,665               664,665               

Committed to:
Public access television capital -                      -                      -                      43,598                 43,598                 
Public Parking Improvements -                      -                      -                      6,095                   6,095                   
Development impact capital -                      -                      -                      332,633               332,633               
Cemetery maintenance and capital -                      -                      -                      100,222               100,222               

Assigned 242,521               -                      -                      -                      242,521               
Unassigned Fund Balance 2,297,188            -                      -                      -                      2,297,188            

Total fund balance 3,658,786            5,253,148            7,741,738            3,859,416            20,513,088          

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances 7,576,752$          5,646,989$          8,448,020$          5,285,983$          26,957,744$        

 

City of Louisville

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014

Governmental Funds

 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 3
(continued)

Balance sheet - total fund balances 20,513,088$        

 

98,655,289          

              (855,986)

2,576,154            

(3,998,738)           

Net position of governmental activities 116,889,808$     

City of Louisville

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (Exhibit 1) are 
different because:

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as 
fleet, computer replacement, and building maintenance to individual funds.  The assets and 
liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of 
net position.

Some liabilities, including bonds payable ($3,985,000) and premium on bonds payable  ($13,738) 
are not included in governmental funds. Both the premium and the cost of refunding will be 
amortized over the life of the bonds. 

Compensated absences are not recorded in government funds because they are not due and 
payable at year end. 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The amount is $100,302,072 less the 
internal service funds of $1,646,783.

December 31, 2014
to the Statement of Net Position

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 4

Major Special Major Capital
Revenue Funds Project Funds

Other Total
Open Space Capital Governmental Governmental

General and Parks Projects Funds Funds

Revenue:
Taxes:

Property taxes 2,311,424$         -$                    -$                    876,401$            3,187,825$         
Sales tax 6,396,965           1,227,792           3,197,060           408,725              11,230,542         
Use tax 1,888,509           418,803              1,292,501           140,455              3,740,268           
Lodging tax 428,075              -                      -                      -                      428,075              
Franchise tax 1,123,485           -                      -                      -                      1,123,485           
Other taxes 282,947              -                      -                      -                      282,947              

Licenses and Permits 1,025,248           -                      -                      534,022              1,559,270           
Intergovernmental 1,329,779           283,660              274,915              218,333              2,106,687           
Charges for services 1,822,560           -                      -                      31,227                1,853,787           
Fines and forfeits 250,633              -                      -                      -                      250,633              
Miscellaneous:    

Investment income 27,957                21,731                29,382                19,582                98,652                
Other 296,334              115,564              62,719                -                      474,617              

Total revenue 17,183,916         2,067,550           4,856,577           2,228,745           26,336,788         

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 2,309,740           1,728,545           492,981              488,626              5,019,892           
Finance 408,370              -                      -                      -                      408,370              
Police 4,646,953           -                      -                      -                      4,646,953           
Public works 2,474,100           -                      -                      -                      2,474,100           
Planning 864,280              -                      -                      -                      864,280              
Library services 1,616,093           -                      -                      -                      1,616,093           
Parks and Recreation 2,776,040           -                      -                      -                      2,776,040           
Capital outlay -                      2,834,406           5,546,709           445,042              8,826,157           

Debt service:     
Principal -                      -                      -                      575,000              575,000              
Interest -                      -                      -                      145,223              145,223              

Total expenditures 15,095,576         4,562,951           6,039,690           1,653,891           27,352,108         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 2,088,340           (2,495,401)          (1,183,113)          574,854              (1,015,320)          

Other Financing Sources (Uses):  
Developer Contributions -                      -                      -                      93,440                93,440                
Bond Proceeds -                      -                      -                      750,000              750,000              
Bond Issuance Costs -                      -                      -                      (55,500)               (55,500)               
Transfers in 1,000,000           408,480              6,641,193           72,993                8,122,666           
Transfers (out) (5,919,881)          -                      (3,620,370)          (1,986,463)          (11,526,714)        

Total other financing sources (uses) (4,919,881)          408,480              3,020,823           (1,125,530)          (2,616,108)          

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,831,541)          (2,086,921)          1,837,710           (550,676)             (3,631,428)          

Fund balance, January 1 6,490,327           7,340,069           5,904,028           4,410,092           24,144,516         

Fund balance, December 31 3,658,786$         5,253,148$         7,741,738$         3,859,416$         20,513,088$       

City of Louisville, Colorado

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

Governmental Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 4
(continued)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (3,631,428)$         

5,322,939            

21,942                 

(750,000)              

575,000               

(536,127)              

Change in net position of governmental activities 1,002,326$         

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of 
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which net capital outlays ($8,861,021) exceeded 
depreciation ($3,538,082) in the current period.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as 
fleet, computer replacement, and building maintenance to individual funds.  The aggregate net 
revenue of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment 
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.  This is the amount of debt 
repayments.

City of Louisville
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,

to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net activities (Exhibit 2) are 
different because:

The issuance of bonds is revenue in the governmental funds, but increases long-term liabilities in 
the statement of net position.  This is the amount of additonal bonded debt.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 5

Internal
Water & Golf Solid Waste Service

Wastewater Course & Recycling Total Funds
Assets:

Current assets:
Pooled Cash and Investments 22,010,713$ 142,488$     -              22,153,201$    917,399$     
Receivables:  

Interest 65,195        405             -              65,600             652             
Accounts (net of allowance  

for doubtful accounts) 458,033      -              238,665      696,698           12,236        
Grants 12,619        556,943      -              569,562           -              

Total current assets 22,546,560 699,836      238,665      23,485,061      930,287      

Noncurrent assets:
Cash restricted for debt service 144,407      -              -              144,407           -              
Advances To Other Funds 1,357,495   -              -              1,357,495        -              

Capital assets:  
Property, plant and equipment:  
Land / land improvements 1,262,961   2,336,019   -              3,598,980        -              
Water rights 31,340,150 -              -              31,340,150      -              
Construction-in-progress 3,746,020   5,405,456   -              9,151,476        -              
Buildings 252,573      966,014      -              1,218,587        374,536      
Improvements other than buildings 1,824,005   1,309,369   -              3,133,374        -              
Treatment / pumping plants 21,533,016 -              -              21,533,016      -              
Reservoirs / storage facilities 6,072,151   -              -              6,072,151        -              
Collection system 37,097,746 -              -              37,097,746      -              
Machinery and equipment 3,000,824   52,642        -              3,053,466        2,734,938   
Office furniture and fixtures 102,125      -              -              102,125           145,141      
Less: Accumulated depreciation (30,838,528) (1,590,715)  -              (32,429,243)     (1,607,832)  

Total capital assets (net of accumulated  
depreciation) 75,393,043 8,478,785   -              83,871,828      1,646,783   

Total noncurrent assets 76,894,945 8,478,785   -              85,373,730      1,646,783   

Total assets 99,441,505$ 9,178,621$  238,665$     108,858,791$  2,577,070$  

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Loss on refunding 8,414          -              -              8,414               -              

Total deferred outflows of resources 8,414$         -$             -$             8,414$             -$             

City of Louisville, Colorado

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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 Exhibit 5
 (continued)

Internal
Water & Golf Solid Waste Service

Wastewater Course & Recycling Total Funds
Liabilities:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,153,158$  388,173$     131,551$     1,672,882$      916$            
Bank Overdraft -              -              26,668        26,668             -              
Accrued liabilities 169,543      129,580      954             300,077           -              
Compensated absences payable - current 20,904        174             206             21,284             -              
Bonds payable - current 690,000      -              -              690,000           -              
Capital lease payable - current 53,344        -              -              53,344             -              

Total current liabilities 2,086,949   517,927      159,379      2,764,255        916             
 

Long-term liabilities:  
Advances from other funds -              1,357,495   -              1,357,495        -              
Compensated absences payable 169,136      1,412          1,664          172,212           -              
Bonds payable 7,035,000   -              -              7,035,000        -              
Capital lease payable 118,469      -              -              118,469           -              

Total long-term liabilities 7,322,605   1,358,907   1,664          8,683,176        -              

Total liabilities 9,409,554   1,876,834   161,043      11,447,431      916             
 

Net Position:  
Net investment in capital assets 67,504,644 8,478,785   -              75,983,429      1,646,783   
Restricted for debt service and future operations 144,407      -              -              144,407           -              
Unrestricted 22,391,314 (1,176,998)  77,622        21,291,938      929,371      

Total net position 90,040,365$ 7,301,787$  77,622$       97,419,774$    2,576,154$  

Enterprise Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 6

Internal
Water & Golf Solid Waste Service

Wastewater Course & Recycling Total Funds

Operating revenue:
Charges for services:  

Water and wastewater sales 7,569,464$  -$             -$             7,569,464$   -               
Solid waste and recycling sales -              -              1,331,448   1,331,448     -               
Other sales for services 69,870        61,271        -              131,141        279,528        

Total operating revenue 7,639,334   61,271        1,331,448   9,032,053     279,528        
 

Operating expenses:  
Cost of sales and services 4,188,074   650,402      1,279,841   6,118,317     125,686        
Administration 942,396      -              28,582        970,978        -               
Depreciation and amortization 1,541,204   49,048        -              1,590,252     232,643        

Total operating expenses 6,671,674   699,450      1,308,423   8,679,547     358,329        

Operating income (loss) 967,660      (638,179)     23,025        352,506        (78,801)         
 

Nonoperating revenue (expenses)  
Investment income 90,129        4                 877             91,010          4,252            
Grant revenue 49,371        1,978,938   29                2,028,338     -               
Interest expense (254,271)     (5,139)         -              (259,410)       -               
Loss on asset write-off -              -              -              -               (36,805)         
Loss on WGP Termination Agreement -              (21,050)       -              (21,050)         -               

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) (114,771)     1,952,753   906             1,859,938     (32,553)         

852,889      1,314,574   23,931        2,191,394     (111,354)       
Capital contributions - tap fees and other 4,764,917   -              -              4,764,917     -               
Transfers in (out) -              3,828,821   -              3,828,821     (424,773)       

Change in net postion before extraordinary item 5,617,806   5,143,395   23,931        10,785,132   (536,127)       
Extraordinary Loss -              -              -              -               -               

Change in net position 5,617,806   5,143,395   23,931        10,785,132   (536,127)       
 

Net position January 1 84,422,559 2,158,392   53,691        86,634,642   3,112,281     
Net position December 31 90,040,365$ 7,301,787$  77,622$       97,419,774$ 2,576,154     

 

  extraordinary items, and transfers

Enterprise Funds

City of Louisville, Colorado

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Proprietary Funds

Income (loss) before, capital contributions, 

 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 7

Internal
 Water & Golf Solid Waste Service
 Wastewater Course & Recycling Total Funds

 
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers 7,765,745$   (401,562)$     1,284,204$   8,648,387$    267,445$      
Payments to suppliers (2,118,854)   (74,210)        (1,268,080)   (3,461,144)     (124,977)      
Payments to employees (2,451,901)   (97,326)        (17,029)        (2,566,256)     -               

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3,194,990    (573,098)      (905)              2,620,987      142,468       
 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:  
Internal activity - payments to other funds -               -               -                -                (424,773)      
Internal activity - payments from other funds -               3,828,821    -                3,828,821      -               

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities -               3,828,821    -                3,828,821      (424,773)      
 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:  
Capital contributions 2,750,564    -               -                2,750,564      -               
Capital Grant Proceeds 49,371         1,978,938    29                 2,028,338      -               
Loss on WGP Termination Agreement -               (21,050)        -                (21,050)          -               
Purchases of capital assets (3,874,993)   (5,197,581)   -                (9,072,574)     (503,846)      
Principal paid on capital debt (680,625)      -               -                (680,625)        -               
Interest paid on capital debt (254,271)      -               -                (254,271)        -               

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing 
activities

(2,009,954)     (3,239,693)     29                  (5,249,618)     (503,846)        

 
Cash flows from investing activities:  

Interest earnings 29,658         (341)             877               30,194           4,252           
 

Net increase (decrease) in pooled cash and investments 1,214,694    15,689         -                1,230,384      (781,899)      

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 20,940,426  126,799       -                21,067,225    1,699,298    
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 22,155,120$ 142,488$      -$               22,297,609$  917,399$      

 
Operating income (loss) 967,660$      (638,179)$     23,025$        352,506$       (78,801)$       

 
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,541,204    49,048         -                1,590,252      232,643       

Change in assets and liabilities:  
Receivables 126,411       (462,833)      (47,244)        (383,666)        (12,083)        
Prepaid expenses 2,291           -               -                2,291             -               
Compensated absenses (18,588)        1,586           200               (16,802)          -               
Accounts payable 583,761       347,700       25,563         957,024         709              
Accrued liabilities (7,749)          129,580       39                 121,870         -               
Cash Overdraft -               -               (2,488)           (2,488)            -               

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3,194,990$   (573,098)$     (905)$             2,620,987$    142,468$      

Non-cash capital and related financing activities
Contributed assets 2,014,353$   -$              -$               2,014,353$    -$              

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 

City of Louisville, Colorado

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

Enterprise Funds

Proprietary Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Louisville 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 
 
Note 1:  Summary of significant accounting policies 
 

The City of Louisville (City) was founded in 1878 and incorporated in 1882.  The 
registered electors voted to become a home rule city on November 6, 2001 under 
the provisions of Article XX of the Constitution of the State of Colorado.  The City is 
a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and six-member council.  
The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles.  The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described 
below. 

 
A. Reporting entity 
 

The accompanying financial statements present the City and its component units, 
entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.  
Blended component units are, in substance, part of the City’s operations, even 
though they are legally separate entities.  Thus, blended component units are 
appropriately presented as funds of the City, the primary government.  A discretely 
presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the government-
wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.   
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity:  Omnibus an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 
34 provides additional criteria for classifying entities as component units to better 
assess the accountability of elected officials by ensuring that the financial reporting 
entity includes only organizations for which the elected officials are financially 
accountable or that are determined by the government to be misleading to exclude.   
 
The City presently has one blended component unit included within the reporting 
entity; the Urban Revitalization District, which is presented as a special revenue 
fund.  The City Council is essentially the governing body of the District, but 
appoints the Louisville Revitalization Commission (LRC) to oversee the general 
operations of the District.  The City provides all administrative, financial, and legal 
support services to the District.  By Cooperation Agreement between the City and 
the LRC, the City Council must approve the District’s budget, expenditures made 
by the District, the issuance of debt, and the execution of contractual obligations.  
The City has no discreetly presented component units. 

 
B. Government-wide and fund financial statements 

 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary 
government.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed 
from these statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are charges for interfund 
services that are reasonably equivalent to the services provided.  Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, 
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant 
extent on fees and charges for support.   
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City of Louisville 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 
 
Note 1:  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
B. Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued) 

 
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses 
of a given function or segment is offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are 
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program 
revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues.   

 
C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement 

presentation 
 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary 
funds.  Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds 
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the 
proprietary fund financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned, and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for 
which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as 
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.   
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this 
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 
days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service 
expenditures are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
Property taxes, sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, lodging taxes, and interest 
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to 
accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  Most 
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the 
City receives cash. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund.  It is used to account 
for most of the day-to-day operations of the City, which are financed from 
sales taxes, property taxes, and other general revenues.  Activities financed 
by the General Fund include those of line and staff departments within the 
City, except for activities of the enterprise funds. 
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City of Louisville 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 
 
Note 1:  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
C.   Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 

(continued) 
 

 The Open Space & Parks Fund is a special revenue fund and accounts for a 
temporary sales and use tax of three-eighths percent (3/8%) to be in effect 
for ten years, beginning January 1, 1994.  The voters extended this tax in 
2002 for another ten years beginning January 1, 2004 and extended the tax 
again in 2012 for another ten years beginning January 1, 2014 and ending 
on December 31, 2023.  Revenues from the three-eighths percent are used 
exclusively for the acquisition and maintenance of land in and around 
Louisville for open space buffer zones, trails, wildlife habitats, wetlands 
preservation, and future parks. 

 
  The Capital Projects Fund was created in 1985 to account for the service 

expansion fee and the major thoroughfare fee.  These fees were collected 
through the building permit process and were restricted for construction or 
renovation of park and building facilities; improvements to streets, alleys, 
sidewalks, and trails; acquisitions of City trees, improvements to drainage 
system; and for capital equipment.  This fund now accounts for the monies 
received from a one-percent (1%) sales tax, which became effective July 1, 
1989.  This one-percent sales tax funds various capital improvements and, 
in the past, has funded debt service on sales tax revenue bonds.   

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services 
and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s 
principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the water and 
wastewater utilities, the golf course, the solid waste enterprise funds, and the City’s 
internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services.  The 
utilities recognize the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting 
new customers to the system as operating revenue.  Operating expenses for 
enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses.  
 
The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 
 The Water & Wastewater Fund accounts for the operations and capital 

needs to provide water, wastewater, and storm water services within the 
boundaries of the City. 

 
 The Golf Course Fund accounts for the operations and capital needs of Coal 

Creek Golf Course, which, due to the flood of 2013, did not have any 
operations during 2014 for reconstruction. 

 
 The Solid Waste & Recycling Fund accounts for the operations of providing 

solid waste pickup and single-stream recycling. 
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
C.   Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 

(continued) 
 
Additionally, the City reports the following fund type: 
 
 Internal Service Funds account for fleet and technology replacements 

provided to all departments of the City, and for repairs and maintenance to 
City facilities.  The activity of the Internal Service Funds has been eliminated 
from the government-wide financial statements.  

 
The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to 
governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial 
reporting.  
 
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as 
program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
City’s policy to use restricted resources, then unrestricted resources as needed. 

 
D. Assets, liabilities, and net position/fund balance 
 
  1.  Cash, cash equivalents and investments 
 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts in demand 
deposits, amounts in local government investment pools, and investments 
with maturity dates within five years of the date acquired by the City.  
Investments are stated at fair value. 
 

2. Interfund receivables/payables and advances 
 

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing 
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as 
either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or 
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund 
loans).  Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental 
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements as “internal balances.” Advances from other funds, as 
reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve 
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate they are not available 
for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 
 

3. Inventories 
 

Inventories are valued at cost, using the first-in/first-out method.  The costs of 
inventories are recorded as an expense or expenditure when consumed 
rather than when purchased.  The inventory balance, as reported in the fund 
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December 31, 2014 
 
Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
D.     Assets, liabilities, and net position/fund balance (continued)  

 
financial statements, is offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable 
governmental funds to indicate they are not available for appropriation and 
are not expendable available financial resources. 
 

4. Prepaid items 
 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond year-
end are recorded as prepaid items.  The prepaid balances, as reported in the 
fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in 
applicable governmental funds to indicate they are not available for 
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 
 

5. Restricted assets  
 
 Restricted assets in the enterprise funds are cash set aside for the repayment 

of debt in compliance with bond covenants and cash restricted for future 
operations in compliance with escrow reserve agreements.   

 
6. Capital assets 
 
 Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure 

assets (e.g., roads, sidewalks, traffic signals, trails, and similar items) 
purchased or constructed since 1980, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements.  Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial 
individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of two 
years.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost 
if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at 
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

  
 The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of      

the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.  Improvements 
are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related 
assets, as applicable. 

 
 Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets acquired with tax-exempt 

debt.  The amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting 
interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing until completion of 
the project with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same period.  
In 2014, no interest was capitalized. 
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
D.     Assets, liabilities, and net position/fund balance (continued)  
 

6. Capital assets (continued) 
 

Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight 
line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Assets  Years 
Buildings  50 
Building Improvements  30 
Streets & Sidewalks  35 
Water, Wastewater, & Storm Water Systems  50 
Vehicles  3 – 7 
Machinery & Equipment  5 – 10 
Computer Equipment  3 – 10 

 
7. Compensated absences 
 
 Upon termination, employees are paid for all unused time in their paid leave 

bank and compensatory time bank.  Accumulated paid leave and 
compensatory time for employees paid out of governmental funds are 
recorded as a fund liability when due.  All unused time is recorded as a 
liability in the governmental activities column in the Statement of Net 
Position.  As the paid leave and compensatory time benefits accrue to 
employees of proprietary funds, an expense and liability is recorded in those 
funds.  

 
8. Long-term obligations 
 
 In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in 

the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations 
are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-
type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.   

 
 In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond 

discounts and issuance costs in the current period.  Bond 
premiums/discounts for proprietary fund types are capitalized and amortized 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the bonds using the straight-line 
method, which approximates the effective interest method.  Bond 
premiums/discounts are presented as an increase in or reduction form the 
face amount of bonds payable.   Bond issuance costs are expensed as 
incurred.  

 
9. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that 
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/ expenditure) until then.  The City has only one item that 
qualifies for reporting in this category – the deferred charge on refunding 
reported in the government-wide statement of net position.  A deferred 
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
D.     Assets, liabilities, and net position/fund balance (continued)  

 
9. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (continued) 

 
charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of 
refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred over the 
shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. 
 
Deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time.  The City has two items that qualify for 
reporting in this category – deferred revenues from two sources: property 
taxes and miscellaneous other.  These amounts are deferred and 
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become 
available.   

 
10. Fund Balances 
 

The City reflects fund balances in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, 
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB 
54).  This Statement defines the different types of fund balances that a 
governmental entity must use for financial reporting purposes.   
 
GASB 54 requires that all fund balance amounts be properly reported within 
one of the following fund balance categories: 
 
1. Nonspendable, such as fund balance associated with inventories, 

prepaid expenditures, and long-term loans and notes receivable. 
2. Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent 

only for specific purposes as stipulated by external resource providers or 
by law through constitution provisions or enabling legislation. 

3. Committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be 
used only for the specific purposes as determined by City Council 
ordinance.  An ordinance is required to establish, rescind, or modify a 
fund balance commitment. 

4. Assigned fund balance classifications are intended to be used by the 
government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be 
classified as restricted or committed.  As of December 31, 2014, the City 
Council has not authorized any official to assign fund balance other than 
through the execution of purchase orders. 

5. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General 
fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other 
classifications 

 
The City does not have an accounting policy regarding which resources 
(restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent 
first for expenditures for which more than one resource classification is 
available and by default have determined committed amounts to be reduced 
first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts. 
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
D.  Assets, liabilities, and net position/fund balance (continued)  

 
10. Fund Balances (continued) 

 
Per Resolution No. 42, Series 1996, the City established policy in which the 
General Fund will maintain a minimum fund balance of 15% of the then 
current operating budget. 
 
In compliance with GASB 54, the City has reported fund balance at 
December 31, 2014 in the following manner: 
 

Nonspendable:  The City maintains an inventory of fuel for various 
vehicles and equipment ($15,063).  The City has prepaid various 
amounts in 2014 that will be recorded as expenses in 2015 ($170,192).  
The total equity within the Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund, a Permanent 
Fund, is non-spendable ($456,256). 
 
Restricted:  The Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights (TABOR) requires a certain 
level of reserves within the City’s General Fund.  The City has calculated 
a required reserve of $933,822 at December 31, 2014.  The total equity 
within the Open Space & Parks Fund ($5,253,148), which contains 
proceeds from a 3/8% sales and use tax, is restricted by voter approval 
to acquisition and maintenance of open space and parks land.  The total 
equity in the Conservation Trust – Lottery Fund ($624,068), which 
contains State lottery proceeds, is restricted by State law to acquisition 
and development of conservation sites.  The Capital Projects Fund 
contains a contribution from the Takoda Metropolitan District ($259,221) 
that is restricted by intergovernmental agreement for specific capital 
improvements.  The remaining equity within the Capital Projects Fund 
($7,482,517), which includes proceeds from a 1% sales & use tax, is 
restricted by voter approval for capital improvements.  The total equity 
within the Urban Revitalization District Fund ($726,608) is restricted to 
improvements within the district or services related to district operations.  
The total equity in the Historic Preservation Fund ($905,271), which 
contains proceeds from a 1/8% sales and use tax, is restricted by voter 
approval to historic preservation purposes.  The total equity in the Debt 
Service Fund ($664,665) is restricted by voter approval for debt service 
on the City’s 2004 General Obligation Library Bonds. 
 
Committed:  The total equity within the PEG Fees Fund ($43,598), which 
contains proceeds from a 50-cent per account per month cable television 
fee, is committed by Council action to capital outlay for public access 
television.  The total equity in the Parking Improvement Fund ($6,095), 
which contains parking exactions, is committed by Council action for 
public parking improvements.  The total equity within the Impact Fee 
Fund ($332,633), which contains proceeds from developer impact fees, 
is committed by Council action for specific growth-related capital 
projects.  The total equity within the Cemetery Fund ($100,222) is 
committed by Council action to cemetery maintenance and 
improvements. 
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Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
D.  Assets, liabilities, and net position/fund balance (continued)  

 
10. Fund Balances (continued) 

 
Assigned:  The total amount of encumbrances (outstanding purchase 
orders) within the General Fund at December 31, 2014 was $242,521. 

 
11.    Contraband forfeitures 
 
 In accordance with the Colorado Contraband Forfeiture Act (CRS-16-13-501 

to 511) forfeitures from the seizure of contraband are used for the specific 
purpose of law enforcement activities. These funds are included in the City's 
General Fund. 

 
12.  Estimates  
 
  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 

accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
that could affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
13.  Comparative Data 
 
  Certain comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the 

accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of 
changes in the City’s financial position and operations.  However, complete 
comparative data in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles has not been presented since its inclusion would make the 
financial statements unduly complex and difficult to read.  

 
Note 2: Stewardship, compliance, and accountability 
 
A. Budgetary information 

 
Budgets for the governmental funds are adopted on a basis consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  Budgets for the proprietary 
funds are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP, except that the budgeted 
expenditures also include capital outlay and bond principal payments and exclude 
depreciation.  Council legally adopts all governmental and proprietary fund 
budgets.  The level on which expenditures may not exceed appropriations is the 
legally adopted annual operating budget for each fund.   All annual appropriations 
lapse at year end.  The City Council may amend the budget by resolution.  The 
City requires all governmental and all proprietary funds adopt an annual budget. 
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Note 2: Stewardship, compliance, and accountability (continued) 
 
A. Budgetary information (continued) 

 
On or before the first day of September, each department director submits to the 
City Manager the department’s proposed budget for the next fiscal year.  On or 
before the third Tuesday in October, the City Manager submits to the Council the 
proposed budget for the next fiscal year.  Within fourteen days after receiving the 
proposed budget from the City Manager, City Council sets the date and time for at 
least one public hearing on the proposed budget.  On or before December 15, the  
City Council adopts the budget by resolution.   
 
Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods 
and services.  Encumbrance accounting – under which purchase orders, contracts, 
and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve 
that portion of the applicable appropriation – is utilized in all funds.  Encumbrances 
outstanding at year-end are continued into the subsequent year.  Encumbrances at 
year-end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will 
be re-appropriated during the subsequent year.  

 
B.     Excess of expenditures over appropriations 

 
For the year ended December 31, 2014, total expenditures exceeded 
appropriations in the Urban Revitalization District Fund by $117,820 and the Solid 
Waste & Recycling Fund by $80,823.  This may be a violation of Colorado State 
Statutes 

 
Note 3: Deposits and investments  
 
A. Cash and deposits 

 
As of December 31, 2014 the summary of the carrying values of deposits and 
investments is as follows:   

 
Petty Cash  $          2,845
Deposits  3,732,880
Investments (at fair value)  40,563,715
  $ 44,299,440

 
The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (“PDPA”) requires that all units of local 
government deposit cash in eligible public depositories.  Eligibility is determined by 
State regulators.  Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must 
be collateralized.  The eligible collateral is determined by the PDPA.  PDPA allows 
the institution to create a single collateral pool for all public funds.  The pool is to be 
maintained by another institution or held in trust for all the uninsured public 
deposits as a group.  The market value of the collateral must be at least equal to 
102% of the aggregate uninsured deposits.  The City has $641,840 of FDIC-
insured deposits and $4,594,484 of collateralized deposits under PDPA as of 
December 31, 2014.  
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Note 3: Deposits and investments (continued)  
 
B. Investments  
 

The types of investments which are authorized to be made with City funds are 
controlled by state statutes and the investment policies of the City.  Colorado 
statutes and the City’s investment policies specify investments instruments 
meeting defined rating risk criteria in which the City may invest:   

 
a. Any security issued by, fully guaranteed by, or for which the full credit of the 

United States Treasury is pledged for payment.  
b. Any security issued by, fully guaranteed by, or for which the full credit of the 

following is pledged for payment:  The Federal Farm Credit Bank, a Federal 
Home Loan Bank, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and the 
Federal National Mortgage Association.  

c. Any security that is a general obligation of any state of the United States.  
d. Any interest in a local government investment pool.  
e. Any corporate bank security issued by a corporation or bank that is organized 

and operated within the United States.  
f. Any money market fund that is registered as an investment company under the 

federal “Investment Company Act of 1940”.  
g. The purchase of any repurchase agreement of marketable securities.  

 
At December 31, 2014, the City’s investments (at fair value) are categorized as 
follows: 

 
 

Local Government Investment Pools – At December 31, 2014, the City had 
$4,293,542 and $3,936,457 invested in the Colorado Surplus Asset Fund Trust 
(CSAFE) and the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST), 
local government investment pools, respectively.  The pools operate under the 
Colorado Revised Statutes (24-75-701) and are overseen by the Colorado 
Securities Commissioner.  The pools invest in securities that are specified by the 
Colorado Revised Statutes (24-75-601).  Authorized securities include U.S. 
Treasuries, U.S. Agencies, commercial paper rated A1 or better, and bank 
deposits (collateralized through PDPA).  The pools operate similar to a 2a-7-like 
money market fund with a share value equal to $1.00 and a maximum weighted 
average maturity of 60 days.  The pools are rated AAAm by the Standards & 
Poor’s Corporation.  A custodial bank provides banking services and trust custody 
for securities held on behalf of the participating governments in the pools.  The  
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Note 3: Deposits and investments (continued)  

 
B. Investments (continued)  

 
custodian’s internal records identify the investments owned by the participating 
governments. 
 
Interest Rate Risk – In accordance with the City’s Investment Policy and State 
statutes, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair value losses arising from 
increased interest rates by limiting the maturity date of investment securities to five 
years from the date of purchase.   
 

Credit Risk – The City’s Investment Policy and Colorado statutes limit investments 
in money market funds to those that maintain a constant share price, with a 
maximum remaining maturity in accordance with Rule 2a-7, and either have assets 
of one billion dollars or the highest rating issued by a NRSRO.  State statutes limit 
investments in U.S. Agency securities to the highest rating issued by at least two 
NRSROs. 
   
Concentration of Credit Risk – The City’s Investment Policy and State statutes do 
not limit the amount the City may invest in one issuer.  At December 31, 2014, the 
City’s investments in US Treasury securities represented 35% of total investments, 
Federal Home Loan Bank securities represented 20% of total investments, and 
Fannie Mae securities represented 14% of total investments.   
 

Note 4: Receivables 
 
A. Property taxes 
 

Property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.  
Taxes are certified by December 31, levied on January 1 and paid in either one 
installment on April 30, or two installments on February 28 and June 15.  Boulder 
County bills and collects the City's property taxes. Property taxes are recognized 
as receivables and deferred revenues when a lien is placed on the property, and 
as revenue when due for collection in the following year. 

 
B. Allowance for doubtful accounts 
 

Due to the City’s ability to successfully collect on accounts, the allowance for 
doubtful accounts in the Water and Wastewater Fund at December 31, 2014, was 
$0. 
 

Note 5: Inter-fund receivables/payables, advances, and transfers 
 

The advances to/from funds represent interfund loans.  As of December 31, 2014, 
there was an outstanding interfund loan from the Water & Wastewater Utility Fund 
to the Golf Course Fund in the amount of $1,357,495.  This loan originated from a 
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Note 5: Inter-fund receivables/payables, advances, and transfers (continued) 

 
$700,000 advance in 2008, a $370,000 advance in 2009, and a $655,000 advance 
in 2010.  Accrued interest is applied on the outstanding balance.  Section 13-3(b) 
of the City of Louisville Charter states that any loan of money derived from a City-
owned utility to any other City-owned utility, or to any other City fund, shall be 
approved by ordinance, the motion approving the loan shall specify the term of the 
loan and the interest rate, and the interest rate shall be adjusted annually to a rate 
equal to the average return of City investments for the preceding twelve (12) 
months.  The Golf Course Fund is expected to repay the loan, with interest, with 
proceeds from golf course operations.  Complete repayment is not expected until 
2021. 
 
Inter-fund transfers occurring in 2014 are as follows:  

 
 

The General Fund and the Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund make annual transfers 
to the Cemetery Fund to help cover the cost of Cemetery operations.  The annual 
transfer from the Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund is equal to the interest earned in 
the Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund.   
 
The General Fund also made one-time transfers to the Capital Projects Fund to for 
capital projects and to the Golf Course Fund to help fund operations during the 
reconstruction period.   
 
In 2012, the General Fund made a one-time $1,500,000 transfer to the Historic 
Preservation Fund to assist with property acquisition.  Beginning in 2013, the 
Historic Preservation Fund began transferring funds back to the General Fund.  
The final transfer from the Historic Preservation Fund back to the General Fund will 
occur in 2015. 
 
The Capital Projects Fund transferred an amount to the Golf Course Fund to help 
fund the cost of course reconstruction. 
 
The Impact Fee Fund makes an annual transfer to the Open Space & Parks Fund 
and the Capital Projects Fund to expend impact fee revenue for transportation, 
facility, and recreation projects that are deemed eligible for impact fee funding. 
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Note 5: Inter-fund receivables/payables, advances, and transfers (continued) 
 

During 2014, the Building Maintenance Fund transferred the remaining amount of 
its working capital to the Capital Projects Fund to help fund capital projects.   

 
Note 6: Capital assets 
 
A. Governmental Activities 
 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2014 is 
as follows: 
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Note 6: Capital assets (continued) 
 
B. Business-type activities 
 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2014 is 
as follows: 
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Note 7: Long-term debt 
 
A. Changes in long-term liabilities 
 

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 
2014 is as follows: 

 

 
 
 

Compensated absences in both governmental and business-type activities are 
classified as long-term liabilities.  The City estimates that the current portion of 
compensated absences is $94,158 in the governmental funds and $21,284 in the 
business type activity funds for a total of $115,442.  Compensated absences of the 
governmental activities are expected to be paid from the General Fund, Open 
Space & Parks Fund, Cemetery Fund, Historic Preservation Fund, and the Capital 
Projects Fund. 
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Note 7: Long-term debt (continued) 

 
B. Bonds payable – government activities 

 
Bonds payable at December 31, 2014 are comprised of the following issues: 
 
The 2.0% - 4.25% Series 2004 Limited Tax General Obligation Library Bonds 
mature annually beginning on December 1, 2004 through December 2022.   
Remaining debt service at December 31, 2014 was $3,768,893. 
 
The 7% 2014 Urban Revitalization District (Louisville Revitalization Commission) 
Tax Increment Financing Bonds for the DELO Project were issued in the amount of 
$750,000.  The total maximum bond authorization is $4.5 million, which is 
expected to be issued over the next few years.  Payment on the bonds will not 
commence until the property tax increment generated by the DELO Project is 
sufficient to support payment.  Full payment on the bonds is projected to occur 
prior to 2031.  The District is a blended component unit of the City.  The debt does 
not constitute a direct obligation of the City.   

 
C. Bonds payable - enterprise funds 
 

On September 13, 2013, the 2003 Series Colorado Water Resources and Power 
Development Authority Water Resources Revenue loan was refinanced and 
completely paid on December 1, 2013 with the issuance of $8,355,000 of 2013 
Water & Wastewater Enterprise Revenue Refunding Bonds.  The interest rate on 
the refunding bonds is 2.47%.  The total dollar value savings from the refinancing 
is approximately $639,600 over the life of the bonds.  The net present value 
savings at time of issuance was approximately $550,100.  Pledged revenues of 
$10,529,398 were available to pay 2014 debt service on the bonds of $881,655.  
The remaining debt service on the refunding bonds at December 31, 2014 was 
$8,813,037.    
 

D. Capital lease payable - enterprise funds 
 

On November 3, 1994, the City entered into a water rights lease with option to 
purchase with the City of Greeley, Colorado for $708,457.  The interest rate is 
4.0% - 5.1%.  Payments of both principal and interest are due on April 1st of each 
year, through 2017.  Payments are calculated based on the debt service paid by 
the Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District.  At the end of the lease, title to 
the three units of Windy Gap Water will transfer to the City.  The lease is serviced 
by the Water & Wastewater Fund.  Remaining debt service at December 31, 2014, 
was $189,491.   
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Note 7: Long-term debt (continued) 
 
E. Debt requirements to maturity  
 

The annual debt service requirements for all bonds and notes outstanding as of 
December 31, 2014, are as follows: 
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Note 8: Retirement commitments – employee pension plan 
 

The City provides a qualified defined contribution pension plan, administered by 
the ICMA Retirement Trust, for all regular full-time and regular part-time 
employees.  At December 31, 2014, there were 183 plan members.  This plan is 
provided through the ICMA Retirement Corporation Prototype 401(a) Money 
Purchase Plan and Trust. This plan does not meet the standards of generally 
accepted accounting principles for inclusion as part of the reporting entity. 

 
In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to 
the plan plus investment earnings.  Employees are required to participate from 
date of employment.  For 2014, the City required the employee to contribute 5.0% 
of earnings with the City matching 5.5% for the plan year. Plan provisions and 
contribution requirements have been adopted by the City Council.  Changes to the 
plan can be made by the City Manager. 
 
Earnings include base pay, overtime, and any applicable bonuses.  The City’s 
matching contributions and earnings are vested as follows: 

 
 Years of Specified 
 Service Percent 
   Completed  Vested  
 Less than One  0% 
 One 50% 
 Two 100% 

 
All administrative costs of the plan are borne by the participants of the plan.  City 
contributions for, and interest forfeited by, employees who leave employment 
before partially or fully vested may be used to reduce future City contributions. The 
2014 contributions were $523,057 from employees and $575,363 from the City for 
a total of $1,098,420.  Wages paid by the City in 2014 totaled $11,436,488, with 
regular full-time and regular part-time benefited employees receiving $10,461,132.  
 
In addition, employees may participate in an Internal Revenue Code 457 Plan on a 
voluntary basis. The City only makes contributions to the City Manager’s 457 Plan, 
an amount equal to 10% of base salary.  
 

Note 9: Risk Management 
  

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural 
disasters.  The City carries commercial insurance for the risks of loss, including 
worker’s compensation and property/casualty loss insurance.  Settled claims 
resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in 
any of the past three fiscal years.  Limits of insurance coverage remain unchanged 
in the past three years. 
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Note 10: Commitments 
 
A.  Windy Gap 

The Municipal Subdistrict, Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District 
(Subdistrict) was established July 6, 1970, pursuant to the Water Conservancy 
District Act.  The Subdistrict is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado.  In 
1994, the City of Louisville entered into a lease purchase arrangement for three 
units of Windy Gap Water from the City of Greeley, Colorado. The Subdistrict 
currently provides a portion of the water supply for the cities of Boulder, 
Broomfield, Greeley, Longmont, Loveland, the Town of Estes Park, the Platte 
River Power Authority, and various other domestic water suppliers.   
 
In 2002, the City entered into an agreement with the Superior Metropolitan District 
No. 1 for the purchase of six units of Windy Gap Water.  The Subdistrict was 
formed by six municipalities to develop supplemental water supplies.  In 1981, the 
Subdistrict issued bonds to finance the cost of the Windy Gap Project.  Under this 
agreement, the City is responsible for all the Northern Colorado Water 
Conservancy District’s continuing obligations for the payment of those 
assessments due and owing on the six units of Windy Gap Water beginning in 
2003.  The City’s future payments under the contract are as follows:  
 

Year  Payment 
2015  124,125 
2016  127,347 
2017  127,509 
Total  $378,982 

 
The governing board of the Subdistrict is a Board of twelve (12) directors 
appointed for four-year terms by the presiding State District Court Judges of each 
of the four judicial districts located wholly or partly within the boundaries of the 
Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District. Officers are elected by the Board 
of Directors at its annual meeting.  The City and other participating entities have 
no direct control over the Subdistrict's budgeting or financing. 

 
In 1997, the City of Louisville received final acceptance and entered into the 
Subdistrict.  On August 23, 1995 the City entered into an allotment contract for 
capacity in the connecting pipeline from the main pipeline referenced above to the 
Superior/Louisville pump station.  From this point, Louisville has implemented, on 
their own, connections to their water treatment facilities. 

 
The City repaid $344,400 for preliminary and final design, project administration, 
environmental evaluations and other necessary work.  The City provided 
$948,600 for construction of the pipeline itself. 

 
On January 14, 1994, the City entered into an allotment contract with the Northern 
Colorado Water Conservancy District (District), acting by and through the 
Southern Water Supply Project Water Activity Enterprise, for flow capacity in the 
Southern Water Supply Project Pipeline.  The Southern Water Supply Project 
Pipeline begins below the Carter Lake Outlet Works and ends approximately 4 
miles north of Louisville.  Under this contract, the City, along with other Colorado 
governmental entities, has the perpetual exclusive right to use 2.58 million gallons 
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City of Louisville 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 
 
Note 10: Commitments (continued) 
 
A.  Windy Gap (continued) 

 
per day of capacity in the Pipeline.  The other entities and their flow capacity in the 
pipeline are the Cities of Broomfield (8.00), Fort Lupton (5.16), Fort Morgan (6.13), 
Longmont (8.71), the Towns of Berthoud (2.58), Erie (1.03), Hudson (1.03), and 
the Little Thompson/Central Weld County Water Districts (16.13).   During 2001, 
the City purchased additional capacity in the Pipeline for $374,315.  This 
increased the City’s capacity by an additional 80%. 

 
B. Redevelopment Agreement 

 
In December 2006, the City established the Louisville Revitalization Commission 
and approved an urban renewal plan for certain blighted areas within the City.  In 
2008, the Urban Revitalization District began collecting tax increment revenues to 
finance improvements in the blighted areas.  The agreement expires in December 
2032. 

 
C. Diverging Diamond Interchange 

 
In February 2013, the City executed a contract with the Colorado Department of 
Transportation concerning the funding, design, and construction of a diverging 
diamond interchange at U.S. 36 and McCaslin Boulevard.  Per the agreement, the 
City will contribute $3,518,195 to the $12.5 million project.  Payment will be made 
in three annual installments of $1,172,732 for 2013 through 2015. 
 

Note 11:  Contingent liabilities 
 

Litigation 
 
Various suits and claims are pending against the City as of December 31, 2014.  
Although the outcome of such suits and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, 
the City believes that the final outcome of these matters will not materially affect 
the financial statements of the City and that adequate insurance coverage exists in 
most cases to cover any potential settlement. 

 
Note 12:  Tax, spending, and debt limitations  
 

At the November 3, 1992 general election, Colorado voters approved an 
amendment to the Colorado Constitution commonly known as the Taxpayer’s Bill 
of Rights (TABOR).  TABOR became effective December 31, 1992, and its 
provisions limit government taxes, spending revenues, and debt without electoral 
approval.  Since this time several ballot issues have been presented to the 
Louisville citizens that impact the limitation. 

 
1993 – Open space tax approved. 
1994 – Open space bond issue and the use tax on residential building materials 
were approved. 
1996 – Authorization was given for the City to receive and expend all sales and 
use tax revenues, exempting these revenues from the TABOR limitation. 
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City of Louisville 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 
 
Note 12:  Tax, spending, and debt limitations (continued) 

 
1997 – A revenue-sharing intergovernmental agreement was approved, exempting 
these revenues from the TABOR limitations. 
1998 – The City Council, by ordinance, declared the Golf Course Fund an 
enterprise under the TABOR definition. 
1999 – Authorization to keep and spend the revenues collected and received 
during 1998 and each subsequent year from fees, state and local grants, developer 
contributions, intergovernmental revenues and payments in lieu of land 
dedications. 
2001 – Approval allowing the City to keep the excess property taxes collected in 
2000 and exempts all future property taxes from the TABOR limitations. 
2002 – Approval of a new Lodging Excise Tax in the amount of 3% and exempting 
these revenues from the TABOR limitations. 
2002 – Extension of the open space tax for another ten years beginning on 
January 1, 1994 and ending on December 31, 2013 and exempting these revenues 
from the TABOR limitations. 
2003 – Library bond issue and the additional mill levy not to exceed 1.581 were 
approved. 
2005 – A use tax on personal tangible property was placed on the ballot in 2005 
and failed. 
2006 – A use tax on personal tangible property was placed on the ballot in 2006 
and failed.  
2006 – The City Council, by ordinance, declared the Storm Water Utility Fund an 
enterprise under the TABOR definition. 
2008 – Approval of a 1/8% sales tax for historic preservation purposes for a period 
of ten years beginning January 1, 2009. 
2009 – The City Council, by ordinance, declared the Solid Waste & Recycling 
Utility Fund an enterprise under the TABOR definition. 
2010 – Approval of a 3½% consumer use tax, of which 2% is unrestricted, 1% 
restricted for capital projects, 3/8% restricted for open space acquisition and 
maintenance, and 1/8% restricted for historic preservation purposes.  
2012 – Extension of the open space tax for another ten years beginning January 1, 
2014 and ending December 31, 2023 and exempting these revenues from TABOR 
limitations.  

 
Under the TABOR Amendment, all taxes (except as previously noted), licenses 
and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeitures, and miscellaneous 
revenue (except developer contributions and payments in lieu of land dedications) 
are part of the limitation calculation. Transfers into the fund and debt service 
(except the open space bond) are deducted.  The remainder may increase by the 
combination of the local growth rate and the rate of inflation in the Denver/Boulder 
Area. 
 
TABOR Amendment provisions require that annual property tax revenue changes 
be restricted to the same growth rate applicable to the City’s general spending.  In 
2001 the voters approved exemption from this provision. 

 
The TABOR Amendment also requires the local government to reserve three 
percent of total expenditures for emergencies in 1995 and years thereafter.  (The 
definition of an “emergency,” under TABOR is restricted to natural events, but 
excludes “economic conditions, revenue shortfalls, or district salary or fringe 
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City of Louisville 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 
 
Note 12:  Tax, spending, and debt limitations (continued) 

 
benefit increase.”) Accordingly, the City has reviewed the existing reserves and 
determined that a minimum of 3%, or $933,822 existed at December 31, 2014, to 
comply with the provisions of the TABOR Amendment. 
 
The TABOR Amendment excludes activities or funds considered to be 
“enterprises.”  The classification of an “enterprise” under the TABOR Amendment 
is based on three criteria: (1) the entity be considered a government-owned 
business; (2) the entity be authorized to issue its own revenue bonds; (3) the entity 
receive under 10% of its annual revenue in grants from all Colorado and local 
governments combined.  The Water Utility Fund and Wastewater Utility Fund, as 
approved by Ordinance No. 1167 and 1168, Series 1994, were declared 
enterprises under the TABOR Amendment definition.  These two funds were 
combined as one enterprise fund by Ordinance No. 1412, Series 2003. 

 
Storm water activities were added to the Water and Wastewater Utility Fund by 
Ordinance No. 1502, Series 2006.  The Golf Course Fund, as approved by 
Ordinance No. 1280, Series 1998, was given enterprise status in 1998.  The Solid 
Waste & Recycling Fund, as approved by Ordinance No. 1554, Series 2009, was 
given enterprise status in 2009.  
 

Note 13:  Subsequent Event  
 

On May 28, 2015, the City executed a loan agreement with the Colorado Water 
Resources and Power Development Authority (CWRPDA).  Under this agreement, 
the CWRPDA will loan the City $32,273,375 at a subsidized yield of 2.18%.  
Proceeds from the loan will be used for the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Upgrade Project and the Louisville/Lafayette Drainageway Project.  Repayment of 
the loan will be made over 20 years with final payment in 2035.  
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Taxes:

Property tax 2,311,380$   2,311,380$  2,311,424$ 44$              2,254,404$ 
Sales tax 6,106,660     6,225,990   6,396,965  170,975       5,958,796  
Use tax 1,589,990     1,495,580   1,888,509  392,929       1,808,620  
Lodging tax 347,590       347,590      428,075     80,485         380,033     
Franchise tax 1,072,340     1,072,340   1,123,485  51,145         1,059,412  
Other taxes 186,530       192,610      282,947     90,337         260,545     

Licenses and permits 883,850       883,850      1,025,248  141,398       1,153,558  
Intergovernmental 1,047,540     1,449,910   1,329,779  (120,131)      1,121,515  
Charges for services 1,736,870     1,736,870   1,822,560  85,690         1,816,836  
Fines and forfeitures 233,050       233,050      250,633     17,583         223,608     
Miscellaneous 226,690       226,690      296,334     69,644         297,646     
Interest income 30,000         30,000        27,957       (2,043)          18,559       

Total revenue 15,772,490   16,205,860 17,183,916 978,056       16,353,532

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 2,593,360     2,610,190   2,309,740  300,450       2,191,113  
Finance 429,150       493,650      408,370     85,280         358,580     
Police 4,765,370     4,765,370   4,646,953  118,417       4,419,408  
Public works 2,137,120     2,601,970   2,474,100  127,870       2,073,155  
Planning 1,056,860     1,140,260   864,280     275,980       907,443     
Library services 1,683,200     1,690,130   1,616,093  74,037         1,499,791  
Parks and Recreation 2,810,380     2,810,380   2,776,040  34,340         2,858,014  

Total expenditures 15,475,440   16,111,950 15,095,576 1,016,374    14,307,504

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 297,050       93,910        2,088,340  1,994,430    2,046,028  

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Sale of Assets 1,000,000     1,000,000   -             (1,000,000)   
Transfers In 500,000       1,000,000   1,000,000  -               250,000     
Transfers Out (5,071,430)    (6,045,240)  (5,919,881) 125,359       (63,150)      

Total other financing
sources (uses) (3,571,430)    (4,045,240)  (4,919,881) (874,641)      186,850     

Net Change in Fund Balance (3,274,380)$  (3,951,330)$ (2,831,541) 1,119,789$  2,232,878  

Fund Balance, January 1 6,490,327    4,257,449    
Fund Balance, December 31 3,658,786$ 6,490,327$ 

Budget

City of Louisville, Colorado
General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

 See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Taxes:

Sales tax 1,147,660$   1,168,730$  1,227,792$ 59,062$        1,129,209$ 
Use tax 350,630       330,760      418,803     88,043          415,181     

Intergovernmental 750,000       603,750      283,660     (320,090)       26,865       
Miscellaneous -               -              115,564     115,564        127,743     
Interest income 40,000         40,000        21,731       (18,269)         21,323       

Total revenue 2,288,290     2,143,240   2,067,550  (75,690)         1,720,321  

Expenditures:
General government 1,842,760     1,857,430   1,728,545  128,885        1,096,603  
Capital outlay 3,254,800     4,091,570   2,834,406  1,257,164     1,697,687  

Total expenditures 5,097,560     5,949,000   4,562,951  1,386,049     2,794,290  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (2,809,270)    (3,805,760)  (2,495,401) (1,461,739)    (1,073,969)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 401,000       401,000      408,480     7,480            515,140     

Total other financing sources (uses) 401,000       401,000      408,480     7,480            515,140     

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,408,270)$  (3,404,760)$ (2,086,921) (1,454,259)$  (558,829)   

Fund Balance, January 1 7,340,069  7,898,898  
Fund Balance, December 31 5,253,148$ 7,340,069$ 

City of Louisville, Colorado

Budget

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Open Space & Parks Fund

See the accompanying independent auditors' report 
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City of Louisville, Colorado 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

December 31, 2014 
 
 

 
 

Note 1:  Budgets and budgetary accounting 
 
The City Council follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 
 

1. The City Manager submits a proposed operating budget to the Mayor and the City Council 
for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1.  The operating budget includes 
proposed expenditures of all funds and the means of financing them. 

 
2.   A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 
 

3. Prior to the end of the fiscal year, the budget is legally adopted through passage of a 
resolution. An appropriation resolution, based on the adopted budget, is enacted on or 
before the last day of December. 
 

4. Any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any fund must be approved by the City 
Council.  The City's department directors may approve budget transfers within their 
departments and the City Manager may approve budget transfers between departments 
within the same fund. 
 

5. The level on which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is the legally 
adopted annual operating budget for each fund in total.  All appropriations lapse at year-end. 
 

6. Budgets for the general, special revenue, debt service, capital projects, and permanent 
funds are adopted on a basis consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP). 
 

7. Budgets for proprietary funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles, except that the City excludes depreciation and amortization and 
includes debt service principal payments and capital outlay. 
 

8. The City Council may legally amend the budget by resolution once it has been approved. 
Budgeted amounts, including all amendments, are shown as adopted by the City Council. 
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 

Special Revenue Funds 
 
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted 
to expenditures for particular purposes 
 
PEG Fees Fund – This fund is was created in 2006 in response to Resolution No. 22, 
Series 2006, that approved an agreement between the City of Louisville and Citizens 
Community Access Cable Television Management.  Originally used to account for PEG 
grants, effective July 2009, the City’s cable provider began collecting and remitting to the 
City a $0.50 per account per month PEG Fee that is split evenly between the City and 
CCTV for capital outlay.    
 
Parking Improvement Fund – This fund was created in 2000 to track the downtown 
parking improvement fee of $10,500 per parking space established through Ordinance 
1341.  This fee is to be used for the purchase or lease of real and personal property for the 
construction, improvement, or provision of additional on-street and off-street public 
parking space to serve Downtown Louisville and other improvements associated with 
downtown parking.  The fee was amended to $3,600 per parking space in 2002 by 
Ordinance 1376.   
 
Conservation Trust – Lottery Fund – The City of Louisville, through Resolution No. 14, 
dated July 16, 1974, established a Conservation Trust Fund.  The City receives an annual 
distribution from the State of Colorado from the proceeds of the Colorado State Lottery.  
State law mandates that a Conservation Trust Fund be established to record revenues and 
expenditures and that these funds are restricted for the use in the acquisition, 
development, and maintenance of “new conservation sites” or for capital improvements 
or maintenance for recreational purposes on any public site.   
 
Impact Fee Fund – The Impact Fee Fund was created in 2004 as a result of Ordinance 
No. 1436 Series 2003.  This ordinance was to establish development impact fees for 
libraries, parks, trails, recreation, municipal facilities and transportation.  As a result of 
the 2006 Impact Fee Study, the fee structures have been modified and Impact Fees are 
categorized as Municipal Facilities, Transportation, Library, Recreation, and Parks & 
Trails.  A review and update to the Impact Fee Study was conducted in 2011, which 
resulted in a moderate reduction in Impact Fee rates.  
 
Cemetery Fund – The Cemetery Fund was created on November 3, 2008 by Ordinance 
No. 1542.  Unlike the Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund, all the revenue in the Cemetery 
Fund is less restricted and can be used for both cemetery maintenance and capital 
improvements.   Beginning in 2009, all the interest revenue earned in the Cemetery 
Perpetual Care Fund is transferred to the Cemetery Fund for maintenance of the lots.  In 
addition, the General Fund subsidizes the Cemetery Fund via annual interfund transfers. 
 
Urban Revitalization District Fund – The Urban Revitalization District (URD) Fund was 
approved and established by City Council in 2006.  Although the URD is a distinct and 
separate entity from the City, the City Council is essentially the governing body of the 
District, but appoints the Louisville Revitalization Commission (LRC) to oversee the 
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general operations.  The City provides all administrative, financial, and legal support 
services to the District.  By Cooperation Agreement between the City and the LRC, the 
City Council must approve the District’s budget, any expenditure made by the District, 
the issuance of any debt, and the execution of any contractual obligations. 
 
 Historical Preservation Fund – On November 4, 2008, Louisville voters approved a 
temporary sales tax increase of 1/8% for ten years, beginning January 1, 2009.  Revenue 
from this increase is restricted for historic preservation purposes within Old Town 
Louisville.  The Historic Preservation Fund was created by Ordinance No. 1544, Series 
2008.  Resolution No. 20, Series 2009, enacted additional provisions regarding the 
administration, structure, and uses of the Historic Preservation Fund. 
 
Debt Service Fund 
 
Library Debt Service Fund – In 2003, the Louisville voters approved a $7,405,000 bond 
issue for the construction of a new library building.  In addition, the voters approved an 
increase in the City’s property tax levy not to exceed 1.581 mills to pay the debt service 
on the bonds.  The majority of the construction was completed by August 2006.  A 
capital projects fund was created to account for the proceeds of the bond issue and the 
costs of construction of the new library.  The debt service payments are accounted for in 
the Debt Service Fund.   
 
Permanent Fund 
 
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund – This fund is used to account for principal trust amounts 
received and related interest income.  Beginning in 2009, all the interest revenue earned 
in the Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund is transferred to the Cemetery Fund for 
maintenance of the lots.   
 

6991



PEG Parking Conservation Impact 
Fees Improvement Trust-Lottery Fee Cemetery

Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 37,548$        6,091$          644,121$      331,757$       105,359$      
Receivables:

Property tax receivable -                -               -               -                -               
Sales and use tax receivable -                -               -               -                -               
Other revenue receivable 6,371            -               -               -                -               
Interest receivable 27                 4                  458              936                74                
Intergovernmental receivable -                -               -               -                -               

Total assets 43,946$        6,095$          644,579$      332,693$       105,433$      

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 348               -               20,511         60                 5                  
Accrued liabilities -                -               -               -                5,206           

Total Liabilities 348               -               20,511         60                 5,211           

Deferred Infows of Resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes -                -               -               -                -               

Total deferred inflows of resources -                -               -               -                -               

Fund Balance:
Nonspendable:

Cemetery care -                -               -               -                -               
Restricted for:

Conservation sites -                -               624,068       -                -               
URD Improvements -                -               -               -                -               
Historic preservation -                -               -               -                -               
Debt service -                -               -               -                -               

Committed to:
Public access television capital 43,598          -               -               -                -               
Public Parking Improvements -                6,095           -               -                -               
Development impact capital -                -               -               332,633         -               
Cemetery maintenance and capital -                -               -               -                100,222       
Total fund balance 43,598          6,095           624,068       332,633         100,222       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances 43,946$        6,095$          644,579$      332,693$       105,433$      

City of Louisville, Colorado
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014

Special Revenue Funds

   See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Debt 
Service Permanent
Fund Fund Total

Special Cemetery Nonmajor
Urban Historic Revenue Library Perpetual Governmental

Revitalization Preservation Total Debt Service Care Funds

944,208$       931,559$       3,000,643$   664,223$      455,952$      4,120,818$    

392,889         -                 392,889        697,652       -               1,090,541      
-                 56,281           56,281          -               -               56,281           
-                 -                 6,371            -               -               6,371             
137                639                2,275            472              325              3,072             
-                 8,900             8,900            -               -               8,900             

1,337,234$    997,379$       3,467,359$   1,362,347$   456,277$      5,285,983$    
  
  

217,737         87,986           326,647        30                21                 326,698         
-                 4,122             9,328            -               -               9,328             

217,737         92,108           335,975        30                21                 336,026         
  

392,889         -                 392,889        697,652       -               1,090,541      
392,889         -                 392,889        697,652       -               1,090,541      

  

-                 -                 -                -               456,256       456,256         

-                 -                 624,068        -               -               624,068         
726,608         -                 726,608        -               -               726,608         

-                 905,271         905,271        -               -               905,271         
-                 -                 -                664,665       -               664,665         

-                 -                 43,598          -               -               43,598           
-                 -                 6,095            -               -               6,095             
-                 -                 332,633        -               -               332,633         
-                 -                 100,222        -               -               100,222         

726,608         905,271         2,738,495     664,665       456,256       3,859,416      

1,337,234$    997,379$       3,467,359$   1,362,347$   456,277$      5,285,983$    

Special Revenue Funds (continued)

   See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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PEG Parking Conservation Impact 
Fees Improvement Trust-Lottery Fee Cemetery

Revenue:
Property taxes -$               -$                -$               -$               -$               
Sales and use taxes -                 -                  -                 -                 -                 
Licenses and permits -                 -                  -                 469,422         32,300           
Intergovernmental 25,437           -                  183,996         -                 -                 
Charges for Services -                 -                  -                 -                 31,227           
Interest income 204                21                   2,060             4,357             346                

 Total revenue 25,641           21                   186,056         473,779         63,873           

Expenditures:
General government 31                  -                  351                791                121,399         
Capital outlay 49,804           -                  63,398           -                 108                
Debt service:  

Principal -                 -                  -                 -                 -                 
Interest -                 -                  -                 -                 -                 

Total expenditures 49,835           -                  63,749           791                121,507         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (24,194)          21                   122,307         472,988         (57,634)          

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Developer Contributions -                 -                  -                 -                 -                 

Bond Proceeds -                 -                  -                 -                 -                 

Bond Issuance Costs -                 -                  -                 -                 -                 
Transfer In -                 -                  -                 -                 72,993           
Transfer Out -                 -                  -                 (984,900)        -                 

Total other financing sources (uses) -                 -                  -                 (984,900)        72,993           

Net Change in Fund Balance (24,194)          21                   122,307         (511,912)        15,359           

Fund Balance, January 1 67,792           6,074              501,761         844,545         84,863           
Fund Balance, December 31 43,598$         6,095$            624,068$       332,633$       100,222$       

Special Revenue Funds

City of Louisville, Colorado
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

 See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Debt 
Service Permanent

Fund Fund Total

Special Cemetery Nonmajor
Urban Historic Revenue Library Perpetual Governmental

Revitalization Preservation Total Debt Service Care Funds

191,316$       -$               191,316$       685,085$       -$               876,401$       
-                 549,180         549,180         -                 -                 549,180         
-                 -                 501,722         -                 32,300           534,022         
-                 8,900             218,333         -                 -                 218,333         
-                 -                 31,227           -                 -                 31,227           
512                6,819             14,319           3,700             1,563             19,582           

191,828         564,899         1,506,097      688,785         33,863           2,228,745      
  
  

36,022           328,901         487,495         866                265                488,626         
217,728         114,004         445,042         -                 -                 445,042         

-                 -                 -                 575,000         -                 575,000         
-                 -                 -                 145,223         -                 145,223         

253,750         442,905         932,537         721,089         265                1,653,891      
  
  

(61,922)          121,994         573,560         (32,304)          33,598           574,854         
  

  

93,440           -                 93,440           -                 -                 93,440           

750,000         -                 750,000         -                 -                 750,000         

(55,500)          -                 (55,500)          -                 -                 (55,500)          
-                 -                 72,993           -                 -                 72,993           
-                 (1,000,000)     (1,984,900)     -                 (1,563)            (1,986,463)     

787,940         (1,000,000)     (1,123,967)     -                 (1,563)            (1,125,530)     
 

726,018         (878,006)        (550,407)        (32,304)          32,035           (550,676)        
  

590                1,783,277      3,288,902      696,969         424,221         4,410,092      
726,608$       905,271$       2,738,495$    664,665$       456,256$       3,859,416$    

Special Revenue Funds (continued)

 See the accompanying independent auditors' report

7395



Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Intergovernmental 25,000$      25,500$      25,437$      (63)$             24,136$      
Interest income 500             150            204            54                129            

Total revenues 25,500        25,650       25,641       (9)                 24,265       

Expenditures:
General government 20               20              31              (11)               34              
Capital outlay -              50,000       49,804       196              34              

Total expenditures 20               50,020       49,835       185              68              

Net Change in Fund Balance 25,480$      (24,370)$     (24,194)      176$            24,197       

Fund Balance, January 1 67,792       43,595       
Fund Balance, December 31 43,598$       67,792$      

City of Louisville, Colorado
PEG Fees Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

Budget

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

 See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Charges for services -$            -$            -$            -$             6,120$        
Interest income 50               -             21              21                5                

Total revenues 50               -             21              21                6,125         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 50               -             21              21                6,125         

Net Change in Fund Balance 50$             -$            21              21$              6,125         

Fund Balance, January 1 6,074         (51)             
Fund Balance, December 31 6,095$        6,074$        

City of Louisville, Colorado
Parking Improvement Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

Budget

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

 See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Intergovernmental 189,610$     189,610$     183,996$     (5,614)$        201,131$     
Miscellaneous -               -               -               -               5,300           
Interest income 1,200           1,200           2,060           860              916              

Total revenue 190,810       190,810       186,056       (4,754)          207,347       

Expenditures:
General government 300              300              351              (51)               286              
Capital outlay 300,500       222,000       63,398         158,602       56,941         

Total expenditures 300,800       222,300       63,749         158,551       57,227         

Net Change in Fund Balance (109,990)$    (31,490)$      122,307       153,797$     150,120       

Fund Balance, January 1 501,761       351,641       
Fund Balance, December 31 624,068$     501,761$     

City of Louisville, Colorado
Conservation Trust - Lottery Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

Budget

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

 See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Licenses and permits 708,160$    708,160$    469,422$    (238,738)$    840,433$    
Interest income 5,000          5,000         4,357         (643)             3,952         

Total revenue 713,160      713,160     473,779     (239,381)      844,385     

Expenditures:
General government 700             700            791            (91)               1,149         

Total expenditures 700             700            791            (91)               1,149         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 712,460      712,460     472,988     (239,472)      843,236     

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
      Transfers out (985,000)     (985,000)    (984,900)    100              (1,089,490) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (272,540)$   (272,540)$   (511,912)    (239,372)$    (246,254)    

Fund Balance, January 1 844,545     1,090,799  
Fund Balance, December 31 332,633$    844,545$    

City of Louisville, Colorado
Impact Fee Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

Budget

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

 See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Licenses and permits 30,000$      30,000$      32,300$      2,300$         27,473$      
Charges for Services 33,000        33,000       31,227       (1,773)          26,673       
Interest income 400             400            346            (54)               173            

Total revenue 63,400        63,400       63,873       473              54,319       

Expenditures:
General government 120,330      161,980     121,399     40,581         103,435     
Capital Outlay 17,000        46,770       108            46,662         2,484         

Total expenditures 137,330      208,750     121,507     87,243         105,919     

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (73,930)       (145,350)    (57,634)      87,716         (51,600)      

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 73,930        73,930       72,993       (937)             64,173       

Net Change in Fund Balance -$            (71,420)$     15,359       86,779$       12,573       

Fund Balance, January 1 84,863       72,290       
Fund Balance, December 31  100,222$    84,863$      

 

Budget

City of Louisville, Colorado

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Cemetery Fund

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Property taxes 238,260$    194,726$    191,316$    (3,410)$        64,110$      
Interest income 250             250            512            262              40              

Total revenues 238,510      194,976     191,828     (3,148)          64,150       

Expenditures:
General government 35,930        35,930       36,022       (92)               63,560       
Capital outlay -              100,000     217,728     (117,728)      -             

Total expenditures 35,930        135,930     253,750     (117,820)      63,560       

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures 202,580      59,046       (61,922)      (120,968)      590            

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Developer Contributions -              93,440       93,440       -               -             
Bond Proceeds -              750,000     750,000     -               -             
Bond Issuance Costs -              (55,500)      (55,500)      -               -             

Total other financing sources (uses) -              787,940     787,940     -               -             

Net Change in Fund Balance 202,580$    846,986$    726,018     (120,968)$    590            

Fund Balance, January 1 590            -             
Fund Balance, December 31 726,608$     590$           

City of Louisville, Colorado
Urban Revitalization District Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Budget

For the Year Ending December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

See the accompanying independent auditors' report 
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Taxes:

Sales tax 382,810$     389,580$      408,725$     19,145$       376,410$     
Use tax 116,870       110,260        140,455       30,195         138,658       

Intergovernmental -               -                8,900           8,900           23,286         
Interest income 8,000           8,000            6,819           (1,181)          5,284           

Total revenue 507,680       507,840        564,899       57,059         543,638       

Expenditures:
General government 442,600       442,600        328,901       113,699       118,593       
Capital outlay -               400,800        114,004       286,796       99,208         

Total expenditures 442,600       843,400        442,905       400,495       217,801       

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures 65,080         (335,560)       121,994       457,554       325,837       

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Sale of Assets -               200,000        -               (200,000)      -               
Transfers Out (500,000)      (1,000,000)    (1,000,000)   -               (250,000)      

Total other financing sources (uses) (500,000)      (800,000)       (1,000,000)   (200,000)      (250,000)      

Net Change in Fund Balance (434,920)$    (1,135,560)$  (878,006)      257,554$     75,837         

Fund Balance, January 1 1,783,277    1,707,440    
Fund Balance, December 31 905,271$     1,783,277$  

 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Historic Preservation Fund

For the Year Ending December 31, 2014
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Budget

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Taxes:

Property taxes 680,400$    680,400$    685,085$    4,685$         664,014$    
Interest income 5,000          5,000         3,700         (1,300)          4,249         

Total revenue 685,400      685,400     688,785     3,385           668,263     

Expenditures:
General Operations 1,050          1,050         866            184              1,096         
Debt service:  

Principal 575,000      575,000     575,000     -               875,000     
Interest 147,500      147,500     145,223     2,277           178,733     

Total expenditures 723,550      723,550     721,089     2,461           1,054,829  

Net Change in Fund Balance (38,150)$     (38,150)$     (32,304)      5,846$         (386,566)    

Fund Balance, January 1 696,969     1,083,535  
Fund Balance, December 31 664,665$    696,969$    

Budget

City of Louisville, Colorado
Library Debt Service Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Licenses and permits 30,000$      30,000$      32,300$      2,300$         27,473$      
Interest income 2,500          2,500         1,563         (937)             1,024         

Total revenue 32,500        32,500       33,863       1,363           28,497       

Expenditures:
General operations 250             250            265            (15)               274            

Total expenditures 250             250            265            (15)               274            

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures 32,250        32,250       33,598       1,348           28,223       

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out (2,500)         (2,500)        (1,563)        937              (1,023)        

Net Change in Fund Balance 29,750$      29,750$      32,035       2,285$         27,200       

Fund Balance, January 1 424,221     397,021     
Fund Balance, December 31  456,256$    424,221$    

 

Budget

City of Louisville, Colorado
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Taxes:

Sales tax 3,052,910$   3,110,090$  3,197,060$  86,970$       2,976,598$ 
Use tax 785,140       720,680      1,292,501   571,821       1,446,376  

Intergovernmental 3,020,000     860,000      274,915      (585,085)      (3,964)        
Miscellaneous 22,360         22,360        62,719        40,359         20,120       
Interest income 15,000         15,000        29,382        14,382         23,465       

Total revenue 6,895,410     4,728,130   4,856,577   128,447       4,462,595  

Expenditures:
General government 506,120       506,120      492,981      13,139         475,102     
Capital outlay 12,554,580   11,393,120 5,546,709   5,846,411    4,595,500  
Debt service:  

Principal -               -              -              -               435,000     
Interest -               -              -              -               15,225       

Total expenditures 13,060,700   11,899,240 6,039,690   5,859,550    5,520,827  

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (6,165,290)    (7,171,110)  (1,183,113)  5,987,997    (1,058,232) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 5,584,000     6,648,800   6,641,193   (7,607)          574,350     
Transfers Out (1,625,000)    (4,010,620)  (3,620,370)  390,250       (434,038)    

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,959,000     2,638,180   3,020,823   382,643       140,312     

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,206,290)$  (4,532,930)$ 1,837,710   6,370,640$  (917,920)    

Fund Balance, January 1 5,904,028   6,821,948  
Fund Balance, December 31 7,741,738$  5,904,028$ 

Budget

City of Louisville, Colorado
Capital Projects Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

 
Individual Fund Budget Schedules 

 
Water and Wastewater Fund – This fund accounts for the provision of water, sewer and 
storm water services to residents and some outside users.  All activities that are necessary 
to providing such services are accounted for in these funds, including, but not limited to:  
administration, billing operations, environmental monitoring, capital outlay, and 
maintenance, financing and related debt.   
 
Golf Course Fund – The Golf Course Fund accounts for the activities of the Coal Creek 
Golf Course, which is owned by the City.  Prior to April 1, 2010, the City contracted with 
a golf course management company to operate the facility, supervise collection and 
disbursement of City funds, employ all personnel, and purchase/sell all food, beverages, 
and merchandise.  Effective April 1, 2010, the City executed License Agreement with the 
golf course management company, whereby they not only operated the facility but paid 
for all costs and retained all revenue.  In return, the management company paid the City 
an annual license fee.  Due to the necessity of completely reconstructing the flood-
damaged golf course during the 2014 season, on April 1, 2014, the City negotiated the 
termination of the agreement with the management company.  Once the golf course is 
completely reconstructed and operational, anticipated for Summer 2015, the City intends 
to operate, manage, and maintain the golf course itself.   
 
Solid Waste & Recycling Fund – This fund was created by Ordinance No. 1554, Series 
2009, to account for the resources generated and the costs incurred to provide solid waste 
pickup and recycling services.  Since inception, the City has contracted with a private 
solid waste disposal company to perform the pickup and recycling services.   
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2012
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Intergovernmental -$             270,830$     49,371$       (221,459)$     101,460$    
Charges for services 7,898,830     7,572,470   7,567,464   (5,006)           6,950,088  
Tap fees 4,019,640     4,019,640   2,750,564   (1,269,076)    4,582,766  
Miscellaneous 73,600         73,600        71,870        (1,730)           227,912     
Interest income 80,000         80,000        90,129        10,129          66,072       
Bond Proceeds -                   -                  -                  -                8,355,000  
Payment of Advances 180,000       -                  -                  -                90,000       

Total revenue 12,252,070   12,016,540 10,529,398 (1,487,142)    20,373,298

Expenditures:
General operations 5,166,720     5,386,060   4,938,761   447,299        4,808,378  
Capital outlay 8,285,350     13,047,380 4,066,702   8,980,678     2,935,891  
Debt service 943,500       943,500      934,896      8,604            9,335,299  

Total expenditures 14,395,570   19,376,940 9,940,359   9,436,581     17,079,568

Net Income (Loss), Budget Basis (2,143,500)$  (7,360,400)$ 589,039      7,949,439$   3,293,730  

Reconciliation from Budget Basis (non-GAAP) to GAAP:   
Add:  

Capitalized assets  3,874,993    2,643,226  
Principal retired  680,625       8,953,125  
Contributions from Development 2,014,353   -             

Subtract: 
Bond Proceeds -              (8,355,000) 
Depreciation and amortization (1,541,204)  (1,589,447) 
Loss on asset write-off -              (21,943)      
Payment of Advances -              (90,000)      

Change in Net Position GAAP Basis 5,617,806$  4,833,691$ 

Budget

City of Louisville, Colorado

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Water & Wastewater Fund

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue 4,875,000$  1,824,320$  1,978,938$  154,618       94,110$       
Miscellaneous income 180,000       -              61,271        61,271         132,288      
Interest income 500             500             4                 (496)             371             
Transfers In 1,625,000    4,344,430   3,828,821   (515,609)      434,038      

Total revenue 6,680,500    6,169,250   5,869,034   (300,216)      660,807      

Expenditures:
General operations -              333,810      248,676      85,134         133             
Capital outlay 6,500,000    7,334,940   5,599,307   1,735,633    470,221      
Debt service 10,000        10,000        5,139          4,861           6,376          
Payment of Advances 180,000       -              -              -               90,000        

Total expenditures 6,690,000    7,678,750   5,853,122   1,825,628    566,730      
 
Net Income (Loss), Budget Basis (9,500)$       (1,509,500)$ 15,912        1,525,412$  94,077        

Reconciliation from Budget Basis (non-GAAP) to GAAP:   
Add:  

Capitalized Assets 5,197,581   443,436      
Payment of Advances  -              90,000        

Subtract: 
Depreciation and amortization (49,048)       (69,090)       
Loss on Impairment of Assets -              (1,858,009)  
Loss on WGP Termination Agreement (21,050)       -              

Change in Net Position GAAP Basis 5,143,395$  (1,299,586)$ 

Budget

City of Louisville, Colorado

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Golf Course Fund

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue -$             -$             29$              29$              101$            
Charges for services 1,193,670    1,242,870    1,313,376    70,506         1,165,484    
Miscellaneous income 17,500         17,500         18,072         572              14,375         
Interest income 1,000           1,000           877              (123)             1,170           

Total revenue 1,212,170    1,261,370    1,332,354    70,984         1,181,130    

Expenditures:
General operations 1,227,600    1,227,600    1,308,423    (80,823)        1,215,817    

Total expenditures 1,227,600    1,227,600    1,308,423    (80,823)        1,215,817    
 
Net Income (Loss), Budget Basis (15,430)$      33,770$       23,931$       (9,839)$        (34,687)$      

Budget

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

City of Louisville, Colorado

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

Solid Waste & Recycling Fund

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

 
Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided 
by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to 
other government units, on a cost reimbursement basis.   
 
Building Maintenance Fund – In 2003, the City of Louisville established the Building 
Maintenance Fund for the purpose of accumulating funds for the future maintenance and 
improvement of municipal facilities, such as the Recreation Center, City Hall, Library, 
City Shops, Museum, and Arts Center.  In 2014, the remaining working capital in the 
fund was transferred to the Capital Projects Fund. 
 
Technology Management Fund – In 1999, the City of Louisville established the 
Technology Management Fund for the purpose of accumulating funds for the 
replacement of computer hardware and peripherals. 
 
Fleet Management Fund – In 1991, the City of Louisville established the Fleet 
Management Fund for the purpose of accumulating funds for the replacement of capital 
assets such as large machinery, heavy equipment, and vehicles.   
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Total
Internal

Building Technology Fleet Service
Maintenance Management Management Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents -$               162,611$       754,788$       917,399$       
Interest receivable -                 116                536                652                
Accounts receivable -                 -                 12,236           12,236           

Total current assets -                 162,727         767,560         930,287         

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets:

Buildings 374,536         -                 -                 374,536         
Machinery and equipment -                 -                 2,734,938      2,734,938      
Office furniture and fixtures -                 145,141         -                 145,141         
Accumulated depreciation (46,291)          (87,771)          (1,473,770)     (1,607,832)     

Total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation 328,245         57,370           1,261,168      1,646,783      

Total noncurrent assets 328,245         57,370           1,261,168      1,646,783      
Total assets 328,245         220,097         2,028,728      2,577,070      

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable -                 882                34                  916                
Total liabilities -                 882                34                  916                

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets 328,245         57,370           1,261,168      1,646,783      
Unrestricted -                 161,845         767,526         929,371         

Total net position 328,245$       219,215$       2,028,694$    2,576,154$    

City of Louisville, Colorado
Internal Service Funds 

Combining Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Total
Internal

Building Technology Fleet Service
Maintenance Management Management Funds

Operating revenue:
Charges for services -$               47,750$          216,460$       264,210         
Miscellaneous -                 -                 15,318           15,318           

Total operating revenue -                 47,750            231,778         279,528         

Operating expenses:
Costs of sales and services -                 123,327          2,359             125,686         
Depreciation 16,258           14,336            202,049         232,643         

Total operating expenses 16,258           137,663          204,408         358,329         

Operating income (loss) (16,258)          (89,913)          27,370           (78,801)          

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income -                 698                 3,554             4,252             
Loss on Asset Disposal (5,034)            (261)               (31,510)          (36,805)          

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (5,034)            437                 (27,956)          (32,553)          

Income before transfers, capital contributions (21,292)          (89,476)          (586)               (111,354)        
Transfers in (out) (424,773)        -                 -                 (424,773)        

Change in net position (446,065)        (89,476)          (586)               (536,127)        

Net position January 1 774,310         308,691          2,029,280      3,112,281      
Net position December 31 328,245$       219,215$        2,028,694$    2,576,154      

City of Louisville, Colorado
Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Total
Internal

Building Technology Fleet Service

Maintenance Management Management Funds

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users 201$              47,770$         219,474$       267,445$       
Payments to suppliers (18)                 (122,586)        (2,373)            (124,977)        

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 183                (74,816)          217,101         142,468         

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Internal activity - payments to other funds (424,773)        -                 -                 (424,773)        

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities (424,773)        -                 -                 (424,773)        
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Purchases of capital assets -                 (50,654)          (453,192)        (503,846)        

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest earnings -                 698                3,554             4,252             

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (424,590)        (124,772)        (232,537)        (781,899)        

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 424,590         287,383         987,325         1,699,298      
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 -$               162,611$       754,788$       917,399$       

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)    
 to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) (16,258)          (89,913)$        27,370$         (78,801)$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 16,258           14,336           202,049         232,643         

Change in assets and liabilities:     
Accounts receivable 201                20                  (12,304)          (12,083)          
Accounts payable (18)                 741                (14)                 709                

Net cash provided by operating activities 183$              (74,816)$        217,101$       142,468$       

   

 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Miscellaneous Income -$            -$            -$            -$             17,873$      
Interest Income -              -             -             -               907            

Total Revenue -              -             -             -               18,780       

Expenditures:
General Operations -              -             -             -               273            
Building Maintenance -              -             -             -               39,483       
Transfers Out -              424,800     424,773     27                -             

Total Expenditures -              424,800     424,773     27                39,756       

Net Income, Budget Basis -$            (424,800)$   (424,773)$   27$              (20,976)$     

Reconciliation from Budget Basis (non-GAAP) to GAAP:   
Subtract: 

Depreciation (16,258)      (16,258)      
Loss on Asset Disposal (5,034)        -             

Change in Net Position GAAP Basis (446,065)$   (37,234)$     

Budget

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

City of Louisville, Colorado
Building Maintenance Fund

For the Year Ending December 31, 2014
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Charges for Services 47,750$       47,750$       47,750$       -$             47,750$       
Interest Income 2,000           2,000           698              (1,302)          720              

Total Revenue 49,750         49,750         48,448         (1,302)          48,470         

Expenditures:
General Operations 1,050           1,050           643              407              879              
Capital Outlay 185,630       235,630       173,338       62,292         37,095         

Total Expenditures 186,680       236,680       173,981       62,699         37,974         

Net Income, Budget Basis (136,930)$    (186,930)$    (125,533)      61,397$       10,496         

Reconciliation from Budget Basis (non-GAAP) to GAAP:   
Add:    

Capitalized Assets   50,654         10,235         
Subtract: 

Depreciation (14,336)        (5,651)          
Loss on Asset Disposal (261)             -               

Change in Net Position GAAP Basis (89,476)$      15,080$       

City of Louisville, Colorado
Technology Management Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

Budget

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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Budget
Variance -

Actual Positive 2013
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenue:
Charges for Services 216,460$     216,460$     216,460$     -$             240,030$     

 Miscellaneous Income -               -               15,318         15,318         23,336         
Interest Income 5,000           5,000           3,554           (1,446)          2,726           

Total Revenue 221,460       221,460       235,332       13,872         266,092       

Expenditures:
General Operations 900              900              575              325              712              
Capital Outlay 827,410       865,410       454,976       410,434       390,380       

Total Expenditures 828,310       866,310       455,551       410,759       391,092       

Net Income (Loss), Budget Basis (606,850)$    (644,850)$    (220,219)      424,631$     (125,000)      

 
Reconciliation from Budget Basis (non-GAAP) to GAAP:   
Add:   

Capitalized Assets   453,192       388,051       
Subtract: 

Depreciation (202,049)      (171,962)      
Loss on Asset Disposal (31,510)        -               

Change in Net Position, GAAP Basis (586)$           91,089$       

Budget

City of Louisville, Colorado

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Fleet Management Fund

See the accompanying independent auditors' report
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STATISTICAL SECTION  

 
This part of the City of Louisville’s comprehensive annual financial report presents 
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the 
City’s overall financial health.  
 

Content  Schedules  Pages 
     
Financial Trends – These schedules contain trend 
information to help the reader understand how the City’s 
financial performance and well-being have changed over 
time. 

 

1-4 

 

97-101 

     
Revenue Capacity – These schedules contain information 
to help the reader assess the factors affecting the city’s 
ability to generate its property and sales taxes. 

 
5-12 

 
102-109 

     
Debt Capacity – These schedules present information to 
help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current 
levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue 
additional debt in the future. 

 

13-16 

 

110-113 

     
Demographics – These schedules offer demographic and 
economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the City’s financial activities 
take place and to help make comparisons over time and 
with other governments.   

 

17-19 

 

114-116 

     
Operating Information – These schedules contain 
information about the city’s operations and resources to 
help the reader understand how the City’s financial 
information relates to the services the City provides and the 
activities it performs. 

 

20-21 

 

117-118 

     
 
Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.   
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Schedule 1

 
 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Governmental activities:
  Net investment in capital assets 60,231,165$      67,285,245$    77,471,252$    79,066,972$      81,441,060$    82,256,705$     84,630,709$   87,258,423$   90,919,036$     95,447,349$    
  Restricted 8,504,909         7,439,484        10,119,161      9,689,202          9,928,902        9,803,747         14,354,176     19,077,005     17,412,130       17,305,576      
  Unrestricted 9,805,201         8,373,151        11,449,467      12,428,646        10,508,717      12,223,531       8,624,784       5,660,045       7,556,314         4,136,883        
Total governmental activities net position 78,541,275$      83,097,880$    99,039,880$    101,184,820$    101,878,679$  104,283,983$   107,609,669$ 111,995,473$ 115,887,480$   116,889,808$  
  
Business-type activities:          
  Net investment in capital assets 59,371,078$      59,309,326$    59,598,864$    60,205,842$      61,015,676$    61,853,539$     63,658,469$   65,677,762$   65,806,134$     75,983,429$    
  Restricted 849,457            904,328          916,878           1,030,617          2,100,617        3,013,817         1,250,000       1,394,377       144,392            144,407           
  Unrestricted 7,634,139         9,195,984        11,499,311      13,442,285        11,694,151      9,008,956         12,204,028     16,063,091     20,684,118       21,291,938      
Total business-type activities net position 67,854,674$      69,409,638$    72,015,053$    74,678,744$      74,810,444$    73,876,312$     77,112,497$   83,135,230$   86,634,644$     97,419,774$    

Primary government:
  Net investment in capital assets 119,602,243$    126,594,571$  137,070,116$   139,272,814$    142,456,736$  144,110,244$   148,289,178$ 152,936,185$ 156,725,170$   171,430,778$  
  Restricted 9,354,366         8,343,812        11,036,039      10,719,819        12,029,519      12,817,564       15,604,176     20,471,382     17,556,522       17,449,983      
  Unrestricted 17,439,340        17,569,135      22,948,778      25,870,931        22,202,868      21,232,487       20,828,812     21,723,136     28,240,432       25,428,821      
Total primary government net position 146,395,949$    152,507,518$ 171,054,933$  175,863,564$   176,689,123$ 178,160,295$   184,722,166$ 195,130,703$ 202,522,124$  214,309,582$ 

 

Fiscal Year 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Net Position by Component

Last Ten Years 
(accrual basis of accounting)
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Schedule 2

 
 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Expenses
Governmental activities:
  General government 2,378,313$     2,835,926$     3,591,749$     2,401,899$     4,743,094$     3,550,174$     3,813,741$     4,011,182$     4,314,413$     5,367,677$     
  Finance 284,270          285,780          284,449          350,868          416,179          585,012          498,640          601,538          359,659          408,029          
  Police 3,555,925       3,661,022       3,820,474       4,055,906       4,059,025       3,910,810       4,125,237       4,239,732       4,401,899       4,553,551       
  Public Works 2,877,708       3,110,188       4,655,225       4,704,093       5,015,984       4,360,451       3,881,729       4,363,102       4,682,257       4,936,452       
  Planning 806,051$        777,272          712,238          774,730          756,297          748,699          721,508          1,034,781       975,843          900,062          
 Library 931,615          1,047,748       1,064,353       1,269,493       1,207,838       1,394,965       1,445,773       1,512,330       1,577,901       1,702,806       
 Parks and recreation 4,049,684       3,985,487       3,632,168       4,707,323       3,279,120       3,662,949       3,184,424       3,628,345       3,861,451       3,590,187       
 Interest on long-term debt 388,999          366,358          298,680          304,554          288,172          268,997          248,327          225,414          200,664          143,261          

Total governmental activities expenses 15,272,565     16,069,782     18,059,336     18,568,866     19,765,709     18,482,057     17,919,379     19,616,424     20,374,087     21,602,024     
 
Business-type activities: 
  Water & wastewater 5,490,281       5,656,769       5,489,166       6,072,983       6,318,340       7,490,716       6,235,542       6,023,493       7,094,607       6,925,945       
  Golf 1,721,051       1,839,518       2,002,573       1,947,782       1,832,132       414,501          126,305          113,738          102,384          725,639          
  Solid Waste & Recycling -                  -                  -                  -                  591,374          1,021,794       1,095,806       1,158,653       1,215,817       1,308,423       
Total business-type activities 7,211,332       7,496,287       7,491,739       8,020,765       8,741,846       8,927,011       7,457,653       7,295,884       8,412,808       8,960,007       

Total primary government expenses 22,483,897$   23,566,069$  25,551,075$  26,589,631$  28,507,555$  27,409,068$  25,377,032$  26,912,308$  28,786,895$  30,562,031$  

Program Revenues 
Governmental activities: 
  Charges for services: 
    General government 42,359$          67,016$          206,239$        126,540$        87,300$          136,345$        132,240$        198,685$        214,871$        194,017$        
    Police 167,320          187,057          130,692          137,265          194,730          212,851          180,802          168,048          164,233          190,378          
    Public works 131,764          195,694          878,496          387,877          60,049            23,720            125,353          53,422            48,037            50,601            
    Planning 684,857          496,868          701,694          600,428          413,494          515,136          753,731          913,177          1,089,437       1,003,724       
    Library 34,563            34,708            82,688            72,264            59,848            63,972            111,829          139,181          129,121          93,910            
    Parks and recreation 1,671,585       1,700,446       1,793,316       1,728,499       1,728,663       1,816,161       2,072,765       2,559,998       2,479,965       2,241,053       
  Operating grants and contributions 783,739          1,077,782       689,551          720,388          695,752          798,576          1,033,901       1,030,853       1,090,656       1,187,323       
  Capital grants and contributions 202,624          320,168          3,273,201       346,603          1,925,542       2,021,184       347,156          1,189,700       229,807          946,517          
Total governmental activities program revenues 3,718,811       4,079,739       7,755,877       4,119,864       5,165,378       5,587,945       4,757,777       6,253,064       5,446,127       5,907,523       

Business-type activities: 
  Charges for services: 
    Water & wastewater 5,257,815$     6,118,479$     6,179,278$     6,836,012$     5,829,653$     6,070,081$     6,630,588$     7,653,168$     7,026,998$     7,639,334$     
    Golf 1,842,664       1,904,731       1,889,647       1,921,332       1,749,153       217,551          187,791          184,551          96,057            61,271            
    Solid Waste & Recycling -                  -                  -                  -                  605,476          1,060,460       1,128,108       1,164,080       1,179,859       1,331,448       
  Capital grants and contributions 1,005,669       582,828          1,409,453       1,221,728       492,695          461,473          2,686,553       4,154,421       4,778,437       6,793,255       
Total business-type activities program revenues 8,106,148       8,606,038       9,478,378       9,979,072       8,676,977       7,809,565       10,633,040     13,156,220     13,081,351     15,825,308     

Total primary government program revenues 11,824,959$   12,685,777$  17,234,255$  14,098,936$  13,842,355$  13,397,510$  15,390,817$  19,409,284$  18,527,478$  21,732,831$  

Fiscal Year 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Change in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

 

98
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Schedule 1

 
 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Governmental activities:
  Net investment in capital assets 60,231,165$      67,285,245$    77,471,252$    79,066,972$      81,441,060$    82,256,705$     84,630,709$   87,258,423$   90,919,036$     95,447,349$    
  Restricted 8,504,909         7,439,484        10,119,161      9,689,202          9,928,902        9,803,747         14,354,176     19,077,005     17,412,130       17,305,576      
  Unrestricted 9,805,201         8,373,151        11,449,467      12,428,646        10,508,717      12,223,531       8,624,784       5,660,045       7,556,314         4,136,883        
Total governmental activities net position 78,541,275$      83,097,880$    99,039,880$    101,184,820$    101,878,679$  104,283,983$   107,609,669$ 111,995,473$ 115,887,480$   116,889,808$  
  
Business-type activities:          
  Net investment in capital assets 59,371,078$      59,309,326$    59,598,864$    60,205,842$      61,015,676$    61,853,539$     63,658,469$   65,677,762$   65,806,134$     75,983,429$    
  Restricted 849,457            904,328          916,878           1,030,617          2,100,617        3,013,817         1,250,000       1,394,377       144,392            144,407           
  Unrestricted 7,634,139         9,195,984        11,499,311      13,442,285        11,694,151      9,008,956         12,204,028     16,063,091     20,684,118       21,291,938      
Total business-type activities net position 67,854,674$      69,409,638$    72,015,053$    74,678,744$      74,810,444$    73,876,312$     77,112,497$   83,135,230$   86,634,644$     97,419,774$    

Primary government:
  Net investment in capital assets 119,602,243$    126,594,571$  137,070,116$   139,272,814$    142,456,736$  144,110,244$   148,289,178$ 152,936,185$ 156,725,170$   171,430,778$  
  Restricted 9,354,366         8,343,812        11,036,039      10,719,819        12,029,519      12,817,564       15,604,176     20,471,382     17,556,522       17,449,983      
  Unrestricted 17,439,340        17,569,135      22,948,778      25,870,931        22,202,868      21,232,487       20,828,812     21,723,136     28,240,432       25,428,821      
Total primary government net position 146,395,949$    152,507,518$ 171,054,933$  175,863,564$   176,689,123$ 178,160,295$   184,722,166$ 195,130,703$ 202,522,124$  214,309,582$ 

 

Fiscal Year 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Net Position by Component

Last Ten Years 
(accrual basis of accounting)
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Schedule 2

 
 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Expenses
Governmental activities:
  General government 2,378,313$     2,835,926$     3,591,749$     2,401,899$     4,743,094$     3,550,174$     3,813,741$     4,011,182$     4,314,413$     5,367,677$     
  Finance 284,270          285,780          284,449          350,868          416,179          585,012          498,640          601,538          359,659          408,029          
  Police 3,555,925       3,661,022       3,820,474       4,055,906       4,059,025       3,910,810       4,125,237       4,239,732       4,401,899       4,553,551       
  Public Works 2,877,708       3,110,188       4,655,225       4,704,093       5,015,984       4,360,451       3,881,729       4,363,102       4,682,257       4,936,452       
  Planning 806,051$        777,272          712,238          774,730          756,297          748,699          721,508          1,034,781       975,843          900,062          
 Library 931,615          1,047,748       1,064,353       1,269,493       1,207,838       1,394,965       1,445,773       1,512,330       1,577,901       1,702,806       
 Parks and recreation 4,049,684       3,985,487       3,632,168       4,707,323       3,279,120       3,662,949       3,184,424       3,628,345       3,861,451       3,590,187       
 Interest on long-term debt 388,999          366,358          298,680          304,554          288,172          268,997          248,327          225,414          200,664          143,261          

Total governmental activities expenses 15,272,565     16,069,782     18,059,336     18,568,866     19,765,709     18,482,057     17,919,379     19,616,424     20,374,087     21,602,024     
 
Business-type activities: 
  Water & wastewater 5,490,281       5,656,769       5,489,166       6,072,983       6,318,340       7,490,716       6,235,542       6,023,493       7,094,607       6,925,945       
  Golf 1,721,051       1,839,518       2,002,573       1,947,782       1,832,132       414,501          126,305          113,738          102,384          725,639          
  Solid Waste & Recycling -                  -                  -                  -                  591,374          1,021,794       1,095,806       1,158,653       1,215,817       1,308,423       
Total business-type activities 7,211,332       7,496,287       7,491,739       8,020,765       8,741,846       8,927,011       7,457,653       7,295,884       8,412,808       8,960,007       

Total primary government expenses 22,483,897$   23,566,069$  25,551,075$  26,589,631$  28,507,555$  27,409,068$  25,377,032$  26,912,308$  28,786,895$  30,562,031$  

Program Revenues 
Governmental activities: 
  Charges for services: 
    General government 42,359$          67,016$          206,239$        126,540$        87,300$          136,345$        132,240$        198,685$        214,871$        194,017$        
    Police 167,320          187,057          130,692          137,265          194,730          212,851          180,802          168,048          164,233          190,378          
    Public works 131,764          195,694          878,496          387,877          60,049            23,720            125,353          53,422            48,037            50,601            
    Planning 684,857          496,868          701,694          600,428          413,494          515,136          753,731          913,177          1,089,437       1,003,724       
    Library 34,563            34,708            82,688            72,264            59,848            63,972            111,829          139,181          129,121          93,910            
    Parks and recreation 1,671,585       1,700,446       1,793,316       1,728,499       1,728,663       1,816,161       2,072,765       2,559,998       2,479,965       2,241,053       
  Operating grants and contributions 783,739          1,077,782       689,551          720,388          695,752          798,576          1,033,901       1,030,853       1,090,656       1,187,323       
  Capital grants and contributions 202,624          320,168          3,273,201       346,603          1,925,542       2,021,184       347,156          1,189,700       229,807          946,517          
Total governmental activities program revenues 3,718,811       4,079,739       7,755,877       4,119,864       5,165,378       5,587,945       4,757,777       6,253,064       5,446,127       5,907,523       

Business-type activities: 
  Charges for services: 
    Water & wastewater 5,257,815$     6,118,479$     6,179,278$     6,836,012$     5,829,653$     6,070,081$     6,630,588$     7,653,168$     7,026,998$     7,639,334$     
    Golf 1,842,664       1,904,731       1,889,647       1,921,332       1,749,153       217,551          187,791          184,551          96,057            61,271            
    Solid Waste & Recycling -                  -                  -                  -                  605,476          1,060,460       1,128,108       1,164,080       1,179,859       1,331,448       
  Capital grants and contributions 1,005,669       582,828          1,409,453       1,221,728       492,695          461,473          2,686,553       4,154,421       4,778,437       6,793,255       
Total business-type activities program revenues 8,106,148       8,606,038       9,478,378       9,979,072       8,676,977       7,809,565       10,633,040     13,156,220     13,081,351     15,825,308     

Total primary government program revenues 11,824,959$   12,685,777$  17,234,255$  14,098,936$  13,842,355$  13,397,510$  15,390,817$  19,409,284$  18,527,478$  21,732,831$  

Fiscal Year 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Change in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
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 Schedule 2
 (Continued)
 
 

 
 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Net (Expense)/Revenue 
Governmental activities (11,553,754)$  (11,990,043)$  (10,303,459)$  (14,449,002)$  (14,600,330)$  (12,894,112)$  (13,161,602)$  (13,363,360)$  (14,927,960)$  (15,694,501)$  
Business-type activities 894,816          1,109,751       1,986,639       1,958,307       (64,869)           (1,117,446)      3,175,387       5,860,336       4,668,543       6,865,301       
Total primary government expenses (10,658,938)$  (10,880,292)$ (8,316,820)$   (12,490,695)$ (14,665,199)$ (14,011,558)$ (9,986,215)$   (7,503,024)$   (10,259,417)$ (8,829,200)$   
 
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets 
Governmental activities: 
  Taxes:   
     Property taxes 2,546,533$     2,605,176$     2,612,945$     2,845,816$     2,851,029$     2,994,253$     3,004,038$     2,950,576$     2,982,528$     3,187,825$     
     Sales tax 10,432,646     9,189,242       9,487,467       9,417,834       9,087,268       8,800,525       9,086,243       9,747,679       10,441,013     11,230,542     

      Use tax 1,109,727       1,033,177       1,392,689       1,159,510       964,036          1,049,104       2,184,874       3,012,454       3,808,835       3,740,268       
      Franchise tax 940,659          988,912          997,982          1,142,519       953,819          998,022          1,013,415       994,447          1,059,412       1,123,485       
      Other tax 503,675          528,472          550,097          541,135          483,320          482,861          492,680          558,755          640,578          711,022          
  General intergovernmental revenue 131,344          138,710          131,461          123,434          154,825          165,274          61,753            65,192            78,281            123,200          
  Investment earnings 523,386          822,472          912,032          1,203,708       482,370          297,238          192,355          148,160          83,472            102,904          
  Miscellaneous 476,089          254,583          97,422            95,982            253,519          448,132          387,926          329,811          310,051          306,402          
  Gain on sales of asset -                  921,904          -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Transfers 64,000            64,000            64,000            64,000            64,000            64,000            64,000            (57,914)           (434,038)         (3,828,821)      
Total governmental activities 16,728,059     16,546,648     16,246,095     16,593,938     15,294,186     15,299,409     16,487,284     17,749,160     18,970,132     16,696,827     

Business-type activities :
  Investment earnings 186,480          509,213          682,776          769,384          260,568          186,587          116,781          104,480          67,613            91,010            
  Miscellaneous -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  60,724            8,020              -                  151,050          
  Transfers (64,000)           (64,000)           (64,000)           (64,000)           (64,000)           (64,000)           (64,000)           57,914            434,038          3,828,821       
Total business-type activities 122,480          445,213          618,776          705,384          196,568          183,311          60,801            162,394          652,701          3,919,831       

Total primary government 16,850,539$   16,991,861$  16,864,871$  17,299,322$  15,490,754$  15,482,720$  16,548,085$  17,911,554$  19,622,833$  20,616,658$  
 
Extraordinary Item
Governmental activities: 
  Loss on impairment of assets -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                (150,161)$       
Total governmental activities -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (150,161)         -                  

Business-type activities: 
  Loss on impairment of assets -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (1,821,826)      
Total business-type activities -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (1,821,826)      -                  

Total primary government -$                -$               -$               -$               -$                -$               -$               -$               (1,971,987)$   -$                

Change in Net Assets 
Governmental activities 5,174,305$     4,556,605$     5,942,636$     2,144,936$     693,856$        2,405,297$     3,325,683$     4,385,801$     3,892,011$     1,002,326$     
Business-type activities 1,017,296       1,554,964       2,605,415       2,663,691       131,699          (934,135)         3,236,188       6,022,730       3,499,418       10,785,132     
Total primary government 6,191,601$     6,111,569$    8,548,051$    4,808,627$    825,555$       1,471,162$    6,561,871$    10,408,531$  7,391,429$    11,787,458$  
 

Fiscal Year 

 

99
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 Schedule 2
 (Continued)
 
 

 
 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Net (Expense)/Revenue 
Governmental activities (11,553,754)$  (11,990,043)$  (10,303,459)$  (14,449,002)$  (14,600,330)$  (12,894,112)$  (13,161,602)$  (13,363,360)$  (14,927,960)$  (15,694,501)$  
Business-type activities 894,816          1,109,751       1,986,639       1,958,307       (64,869)           (1,117,446)      3,175,387       5,860,336       4,668,543       6,865,301       
Total primary government expenses (10,658,938)$  (10,880,292)$ (8,316,820)$   (12,490,695)$ (14,665,199)$ (14,011,558)$ (9,986,215)$   (7,503,024)$   (10,259,417)$ (8,829,200)$   
 
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets 
Governmental activities: 
  Taxes:   
     Property taxes 2,546,533$     2,605,176$     2,612,945$     2,845,816$     2,851,029$     2,994,253$     3,004,038$     2,950,576$     2,982,528$     3,187,825$     
     Sales tax 10,432,646     9,189,242       9,487,467       9,417,834       9,087,268       8,800,525       9,086,243       9,747,679       10,441,013     11,230,542     

      Use tax 1,109,727       1,033,177       1,392,689       1,159,510       964,036          1,049,104       2,184,874       3,012,454       3,808,835       3,740,268       
      Franchise tax 940,659          988,912          997,982          1,142,519       953,819          998,022          1,013,415       994,447          1,059,412       1,123,485       
      Other tax 503,675          528,472          550,097          541,135          483,320          482,861          492,680          558,755          640,578          711,022          
  General intergovernmental revenue 131,344          138,710          131,461          123,434          154,825          165,274          61,753            65,192            78,281            123,200          
  Investment earnings 523,386          822,472          912,032          1,203,708       482,370          297,238          192,355          148,160          83,472            102,904          
  Miscellaneous 476,089          254,583          97,422            95,982            253,519          448,132          387,926          329,811          310,051          306,402          
  Gain on sales of asset -                  921,904          -                  -                  -                  -                  
  Transfers 64,000            64,000            64,000            64,000            64,000            64,000            64,000            (57,914)           (434,038)         (3,828,821)      
Total governmental activities 16,728,059     16,546,648     16,246,095     16,593,938     15,294,186     15,299,409     16,487,284     17,749,160     18,970,132     16,696,827     

Business-type activities :
  Investment earnings 186,480          509,213          682,776          769,384          260,568          186,587          116,781          104,480          67,613            91,010            
  Miscellaneous -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  60,724            8,020              -                  151,050          
  Transfers (64,000)           (64,000)           (64,000)           (64,000)           (64,000)           (64,000)           (64,000)           57,914            434,038          3,828,821       
Total business-type activities 122,480          445,213          618,776          705,384          196,568          183,311          60,801            162,394          652,701          3,919,831       

Total primary government 16,850,539$   16,991,861$  16,864,871$  17,299,322$  15,490,754$  15,482,720$  16,548,085$  17,911,554$  19,622,833$  20,616,658$  
 
Extraordinary Item
Governmental activities: 
  Loss on impairment of assets -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                (150,161)$       
Total governmental activities -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (150,161)         -                  

Business-type activities: 
  Loss on impairment of assets -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (1,821,826)      
Total business-type activities -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (1,821,826)      -                  

Total primary government -$                -$               -$               -$               -$                -$               -$               -$               (1,971,987)$   -$                

Change in Net Assets 
Governmental activities 5,174,305$     4,556,605$     5,942,636$     2,144,936$     693,856$        2,405,297$     3,325,683$     4,385,801$     3,892,011$     1,002,326$     
Business-type activities 1,017,296       1,554,964       2,605,415       2,663,691       131,699          (934,135)         3,236,188       6,022,730       3,499,418       10,785,132     
Total primary government 6,191,601$     6,111,569$    8,548,051$    4,808,627$    825,555$       1,471,162$    6,561,871$    10,408,531$  7,391,429$    11,787,458$  
 

Fiscal Year 

 

99
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Schedule 3

 
 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 (1) 2012 2013 2014

General Fund
  Reserved 64,324$         630,573$       745,360$       770,140$       793,766$       729,274$       
  Unreserved 3,374,861      3,050,120      4,613,436      3,893,555      3,610,562      4,372,114      
  Nonspendable 155,739         184,727         70,552           185,255         
  Restricted 641,687         816,524         761,218         933,822         
  Assigned 160,664         14,784           61,239           242,521         
  Unassigned 5,374,697      3,241,366      5,597,320      2,297,188      
Total general fund 3,439,185$    3,680,693$    5,358,796$    4,663,695$    4,404,328$    5,101,388$    6,332,787$    4,257,401$    6,490,329$    3,658,786$    
 
All Other Governmental Funds
  Reserved 8,654,909$    6,983,206$    9,554,650$    9,236,301$    9,290,495$    9,230,903$    
  Unreserved, reported in: 
     Special revenue funds 1,001,822      1,471,179      2,148,344      2,219,022      2,057,673      2,121,948      
     Capital projects funds 4,244,142      2,573,119      3,042,767      4,136,295      3,084,324      2,953,722      
  Nonspendable 370,597         397,021         424,221         456,256         
  Restricted 13,341,892    17,863,460    16,226,691    15,915,498    
  Committed 1,493,579      1,206,684      1,003,273      482,548         
Total all other governmental funds 13,900,873$  11,027,504$  14,745,761$  15,591,618$  14,432,492$  14,306,573$  15,206,068$  19,467,165$  17,654,185$  16,854,302$  
 

Notes:
(1) Beginning in 2011, GASB 54 requires governmental fund balances to be reported as Nonspendable, Restricted, Assigned or Unassigned.  See Note 1 (D)(10) to the Financial Statements for more information.

Fiscal Year

City of Louisville, Colorado
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
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Schedule 4

 
 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Revenues
Taxes (see Schedule 5) 15,533,240$ 14,344,979$ 15,041,180$ 15,106,814$ 14,339,473$ 14,324,765$ 15,781,250$ 17,263,911$ 18,932,366$ 19,993,142$   
Licenses, fees, and permits 870,857        764,715        1,488,464     1,068,193     648,054        741,916        1,335,204     1,960,400     2,048,937     1,559,270       
Intergovernmental 961,157        1,097,175     4,014,245     1,169,212     2,776,119     2,988,264     1,444,060     2,285,745     1,396,933     2,106,687       
Charges for services 1,884,514     1,641,451     1,537,770     1,512,980     1,570,638     1,731,231     1,817,124     1,850,102     1,849,629     1,853,787       
Fines and forfeits 201,908        221,818        170,643        186,993        239,895        264,006        235,246        228,212        223,608        250,633          
Miscelleneous 895,517        3,034,285     1,545,173     1,266,937     748,691        719,792        506,154        462,477        525,964        573,269          
Total Revenues 20,347,193   21,104,423   23,797,475   20,311,129   20,322,870   20,769,974   21,119,038   24,050,847   24,977,437   26,336,788     
 
Expenditures 
General government 2,246,009     2,646,874     2,967,282     3,567,685     3,489,698     3,338,867     3,561,915     3,647,248     4,051,245     5,019,892       
Finance 280,176        281,500        284,252        348,696        400,688        588,651        505,486        609,416        358,580        408,370          
Police 3,460,502     3,579,830     3,765,004     3,867,488     3,945,723     3,940,528     4,108,953     4,276,707     4,419,408     4,646,953       
Public works 2,273,114     2,311,702     2,376,136     2,602,796     2,774,586     1,874,229     1,873,727     1,974,790     2,073,155     2,474,100       
Planning 805,010        776,036        714,330        777,449        755,699        757,086        722,348        1,025,080     907,443        864,280          
Library services 839,301        936,909        1,062,772     1,103,086     1,052,295     1,343,929     1,394,596     1,450,203     1,499,791     1,616,093       
Parks and recreation 3,010,774     3,029,910     2,843,613     2,499,768     2,398,776     2,586,552     2,691,679     2,737,470     2,858,014     2,776,040       
Non-capitalized budget basis capital 359,082        782,973        510,430        20,702          1,275,958     370,620        (710,612)       34,395          578,252        (34,864)          
Net Capital outlay 12,604,128   8,496,361     2,994,324     4,468,855     5,030,412     4,290,082     3,762,430     5,208,206     5,873,602     8,861,021       
Bond issuance costs -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
Debt service: 
  Principal 620,000        635,000        655,000        670,000        690,000        710,000        730,000        755,000        1,310,000     575,000          
  Interest 342,893        323,189        291,973        297,847        281,465        262,291        241,621        218,708        193,958        145,223          
Total Expenditures 26,840,989   23,800,284   18,465,116   20,224,372   22,095,300   20,062,835   18,882,143   21,937,223   24,123,448   27,352,108     

Excess of revenues over/(under) 
  expenditures (6,493,796)    (2,695,861)    5,332,359     86,757          (1,772,430)    707,139        2,236,895     2,113,624     853,989        (1,015,320)     

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Developer Contributions -                -                -                -                -                -                -                93,440            
Sale of fixed assets -                -                -                -                389,934        
Bond Proceeds -                -                -                -                -                -                -                750,000          
Bond Issurance Costs -                -                -                -                -                -                -                (55,500)          
Bonds premium -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
Transfers in 590,873        89,369          96,561          1,983,933     1,480,140     298,287        887,870        5,165,074     1,403,663     8,122,666       
Transfers out (435,018)       (25,369)         (32,561)         (1,919,933)    (1,516,140)    (434,287)       (993,870)       (5,092,988)    (1,837,701)    (11,526,714)   

Total other financing sources (uses) 155,855        64,000          64,000          64,000          353,934        (136,000)       (106,000)       72,086          (434,038)       (2,616,108)     

Net change in fund balance (6,337,941)$  (2,631,861)$  5,396,359$  150,757$     (1,418,496)$ 571,139$      2,130,895$  2,185,710$  419,951$     (3,631,428)$  
0

Debt service as a percentage of 7% 6% 6% 6% 6% 6% 6% 6% 8% 4%
  noncapital expenditures 

 

Fiscal Year

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Schedule 5

Fiscal Property Sales Use Franchise Lodging Other 
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Total

2005 2,546,533     10,432,646     1,109,727     940,659     297,122     206,553    15,533,240    
2006 2,605,176     9,189,242       1,033,177     988,912     329,954     198,518    14,344,979    
2007 2,612,945     9,487,467       1,392,689     997,982     356,701     193,396    15,041,180    
2008 2,845,816     9,417,834       1,159,510     1,142,519  369,019     172,116    15,106,814    
2009 2,851,029     9,087,268       964,036        953,819     297,912     185,409    14,339,473    
2010 2,994,253     8,800,525       1,049,104     998,022     304,674     178,187    14,324,765    
2011 3,004,038     9,086,243       2,184,874     1,013,415  335,556     157,124    15,781,250    
2012 2,950,576     9,747,679       3,012,454     994,447     365,883     192,872    17,263,911    
2013 2,982,528     10,441,013     3,808,835     1,059,412  380,033     260,545    18,932,366    
2014 3,187,825     11,230,542     3,740,268     1,123,485  428,075     282,947    19,993,142    

 
Change 

2005-2014 25.18% 7.65% 237.04% 19.44% 44.07% 36.99% 28.71%

City of Louisville, Colorado
Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
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Less: Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed Total Taxable Direct 

Fiscal Commercial Residential Industrial Other Tax-Exempt Assessed Tax 
Year Property Property Property Property Property Value Rate 

2005 137,015,460 167,946,830 72,939,990 14,813,515 40,465,620 392,715,795 6.710
2006 123,755,980 169,250,290 86,315,640 15,065,590 40,587,330 394,387,500 6.710
2007 137,832,080 182,113,910 87,164,810 16,396,625 42,906,540 423,507,425 6.710
2008 137,287,590 183,113,180 90,622,040 15,843,260 46,629,180 426,866,070 6.710
2009 147,081,680 191,231,710 90,613,200 18,403,610 51,468,920 447,330,200 6.710
2010 153,880,580 192,462,080 77,368,280 23,055,020 51,467,670 446,765,960 6.710
2011 163,845,209 197,030,711 48,727,078 28,285,269 45,656,047 437,888,267 6.710
2012 166,579,015 199,473,825 47,537,853 28,717,654 48,176,664 442,308,347 6.710
2013 165,615,716 211,996,360 48,186,748 30,562,660 51,619,426 456,361,484 6.710
2014 163,263,008 217,114,340 53,458,675 34,867,435 53,347,944 468,703,458 6.710

 
 Less: 

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Total Taxable
Fiscal Commercial Residential Industrial Other Tax-Exempt Actual
Year Property Property Property Property Property Value

2005 472,465,000 2,109,644,400 251,516,900 51,080,965 139,535,895 2,884,707,265
2006 426,742,300 2,126,160,300 297,639,700 51,950,600 139,959,695 2,902,492,900
2007 475,280,800 2,287,757,100 300,567,800 56,539,600 161,219,395 3,120,145,300
2008 473,403,050 2,300,345,600 312,489,200 54,629,800 175,040,095 3,140,867,650
2009 507,174,600 2,402,389,600 312,458,400 63,461,400 188,688,195 3,285,484,000
2010 530,619,400 2,417,846,000 266,786,300 79,500,300 188,611,395 3,294,752,000
2011 564,989,981 2,475,260,982 168,024,445 97,535,388 168,571,842 3,305,810,796
2012 574,414,786 2,505,953,508 163,923,627 99,026,401 177,038,426 3,343,318,322
2013 571,092,200 2,663,271,227 166,161,227 105,388,468 188,020,573 3,505,913,122
2014 562,976,293 2,727,567,402 184,340,240 120,232,525 195,862,054 3,595,116,460

Source:  Boulder County Assessor's Office 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years
 

Schedule 6 
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Schedule 7

Urban
Boulder Drainage Louisville Northern

Levy Collection Debt  Total Valley Boulder and Flood Fire Colorado
Year Year Operating Service (2) Direct Schools County Control District (1) Water Total

2004 2005 5.184 1.526         6.710         37.423           21.267           0.538         3.186         1.000         70.124           
2005 2006 5.184 1.526         6.710         37.685           21.867           0.532         3.186         1.000         70.980           
2006 2007 5.184 1.526         6.710         39.564           22.467           0.542         6.686         1.000         76.969           
2007 2008 5.184 1.526         6.710         37.865           22.467           0.507         6.686         1.000         75.235           
2008 2009 5.184 1.526         6.710         39.113           23.067           0.528         6.686         1.000         77.104           
2009 2010 5.184 1.526         6.710         39.999           23.667           0.508         6.686         1.000         78.570           
2010 2011 5.184 1.526         6.710         43.838           24.645           0.523         6.686         1.000         83.402           
2011 2012 5.184 1.526         6.710         44.843           24.645           0.566         6.686         1.000         84.450           
2012 2013 5.184 1.526         6.710         45.547           24.645           0.599         6.686         1.000         85.187           
2013 2014 5.184 1.526         6.710         45.372           25.120           0.608         6.686         1.000         85.496           

  

Urban
Boulder Drainage Louisville Northern

Levy Collection Debt  Total Valley Boulder and Flood Fire Colorado
Year Year Operating Service (2) Direct Schools County Control District (1) Water Total

2004 2005 2,005,390  590,321     2,595,711  125,759,422  100,896,978  1,777,428  1,283,405  4,352,070  237,255,335  
2005 2006 2,035,839  599,284     2,635,123  133,570,367  108,354,720  1,855,614  1,299,537  4,538,972  252,853,617  
2006 2007 2,044,505  601,835     2,646,340  140,792,830  112,630,364  1,902,890  2,742,042  4,593,229  265,909,530  
2007 2008 2,194,163  645,890     2,840,053  150,815,108  124,745,065  1,993,702  2,930,608  5,062,766  289,033,192  
2008 2009 2,211,265  650,924     2,862,189  156,938,470  129,119,905  2,100,059  2,950,539  5,416,619  300,038,705  
2009 2010 2,315,673  681,658     2,997,331  167,976,116  137,564,655  2,124,166  3,109,216  5,347,290  319,800,432  
2010 2011 2,316,565  681,921     2,998,486  183,864,077  142,564,068  2,176,881  3,106,029  5,322,753  340,714,215  
2011 2012 2,266,442  667,166     2,933,608  183,588,532  138,085,156  2,304,199  3,054,993  5,164,277  335,797,931  
2012 2013 2,288,932  673,787     2,962,719  186,936,602  139,022,459  2,445,639  3,083,219  5,173,950  340,298,375  
2013 2014 2,353,928  692,919     3,046,847  190,187,744  144,037,143  2,532,520  3,166,281  5,273,967  348,937,421  

Notes:  
(1) The Fire District passed a tax levy increase in 2005.
(2) The City of Louisville passed a tax levy increase in 2003 for the new library building debt service. 

Source:  Boulder County Assessor's Office (Summary of Levies)

Mill Levies 

Tax Levies

City of Louisville

City of Louisville

City of Louisville, Colorado
Property Tax Rates and Tax Levies

Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Schedule 8 

Percentage
2005 of Total

Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Rank Valuation

Storage Technology Corporation Electronic Manufacturing 26,494,980$   1      6.1%
Neodata Services Inc. Business Services 6,443,800       2      1.5%
Mack Cali Realty LP Retail 5,344,960       3      1.2%
Avista MOB II LLLP Medical Offices 4,843,610       4      1.1%
KDC Legacy Limited Partnership Financial Consultants 3,725,950       5      0.9%
Triumph 1450 LLC UND 50% INT & Business Services 3,281,700       6      0.8%
Columbine West LLC Business Services 3,190,000       7      0.7%
Piedra Properties LLP Business Services 3,062,400      8    0.7%

Totals 56,387,400$   13.0%

Percentage
2014 of Total

Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Rank Valuation

PHILLIPS 66 COMPANY Energy Training and R&D Center $12,735,826 1      2.4%
PUBLIC SERVICE CO OF COLORADO Energy  9,172,850       2      1.8%
FFI CO COAL CREEK LLC (Medronics) Electromedical 7,370,959       3      1.4%
NEODATA SERVICES Business Services 5,857,594       4      1.1%
INFINITE FUNDING COMPANY LLC Commercial Real Estate 4,482,791       5      0.9%
COLORADO TECH LLC Technology 4,434,854       6      0.8%
TKG LOUISVILLE COLORADO DEVELOPMENT LLC Commercial Real Estate 4,381,842       7      0.8%
BOULDER ROAD LLC Unknown 3,883,303       8      0.7%
VTR AVISTA MOB LLC Medical Offices 3,868,890       9      0.7%
LEXINGTON LOUISVILLE L P Commercial Real Estate 3,524,312       10    0.7%

Totals 59,713,221$   7.2%

Source:  Boulder County Assessor's Office

City of Louisville, Colorado
Principal Property Tax Payers

Current Year and Ten Years Ago 
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Urban Ratio of   City of Ratio of   
Revitalization City of Current Tax Louisville City of Total Tax

Total District Louisville Collections Delinquent Louisville Collections
Levy Collection Total Tax Current Tax Current Tax Current Tax to Total Tax Total Tax to Total 
Year Year Levy Collections Collections Collections Tax Levy Collections (1) Collections Tax Levy

2004 2005 2,595,711 2,543,986    2,543,986    98.01% 2,547                2,546,533   98.11%
2005 2006 2,635,123 2,602,571    2,602,571    98.76% 2,605                2,605,176   98.86%
2006 2007 2,646,340 2,605,482    2,605,482    98.46% 7,463                2,612,945   98.74%
2007 2008 2,840,053 2,833,997    18,439             2,815,558    99.14% 11,819              2,827,377   99.55%
2008 2009 2,862,189 2,849,814    23,529             2,826,285    98.75% 1,215                2,827,500   98.79%
2009 2010 2,997,331 2,992,335    49,106             2,943,229    98.19% 1,918                2,945,147   98.26%
2010 2011 2,998,486 3,000,678    43,310             2,957,368    98.63% 3,360                2,960,728   98.74%
2011 2012 2,933,608 2,947,165    57,253             2,889,912    98.51% 3,411                2,893,323   98.63%
2012 2013 2,962,719 2,979,244    64,110             2,915,134    98.39% 3,284                2,918,418   98.50%
2013 2014 3,046,847 3,184,802    191,316           2,993,486    98.25% 3,023                2,996,509   98.35%

 
Notes:  
(1)  Delinquent taxes reported by collection year because they are not available by levy year 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 9 
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Urban Ratio of   City of Ratio of   
Revitalization City of Current Tax Louisville City of Total Tax

Total District Louisville Collections Delinquent Louisville Collections
Levy Collection Total Tax Current Tax Current Tax Current Tax to Total Tax Total Tax to Total 
Year Year Levy Collections Collections Collections Tax Levy Collections (1) Collections Tax Levy

2004 2005 2,595,711 2,543,986    2,543,986    98.01% 2,547                2,546,533   98.11%
2005 2006 2,635,123 2,602,571    2,602,571    98.76% 2,605                2,605,176   98.86%
2006 2007 2,646,340 2,605,482    2,605,482    98.46% 7,463                2,612,945   98.74%
2007 2008 2,840,053 2,833,997    18,439             2,815,558    99.14% 11,819              2,827,377   99.55%
2008 2009 2,862,189 2,849,814    23,529             2,826,285    98.75% 1,215                2,827,500   98.79%
2009 2010 2,997,331 2,992,335    49,106             2,943,229    98.19% 1,918                2,945,147   98.26%
2010 2011 2,998,486 3,000,678    43,310             2,957,368    98.63% 3,360                2,960,728   98.74%
2011 2012 2,933,608 2,947,165    57,253             2,889,912    98.51% 3,411                2,893,323   98.63%
2012 2013 2,962,719 2,979,244    64,110             2,915,134    98.39% 3,284                2,918,418   98.50%
2013 2014 3,046,847 3,184,802    191,316           2,993,486    98.25% 3,023                2,996,509   98.35%

 
Notes:  
(1)  Delinquent taxes reported by collection year because they are not available by levy year 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 9 
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Category 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Agriculture 11,126$        9,864$          10,288$      14,692$      15,483$      12,386$      13,074$      14,889$      41,447$        48,617$        
Construction 35,048          23,958          28,251        23,760        9,991          15,463        12,491        16,189        47,163          56,161          
Manufacturing 451,986        108,794        166,047      109,387      127,496      245,502      298,269      437,847      306,078        310,406        
Trans/Comm/Utilities 1,449,739     1,472,573     1,525,889   1,611,432   1,398,287   1,436,159   1,421,166   1,390,636   1,432,477     1,503,040     
Wholesale 63,981          108,836        143,823      165,215      107,963      119,230      152,813      163,738      172,867        271,459        
Home Imrpovements Centers 2,010,061     1,336,629     1,259,846   1,163,491   1,112,998   1,142,131   1,148,411   1,292,138   1,457,538     1,413,014     
General Merchandise 2,407,114     1,872,976     1,969,137   1,863,152   1,799,936   983,285      921,223      835,033      901,844        938,333        
Grocery Stores 1,634,397     1,601,653     1,658,008   1,708,054   1,763,143   1,744,867   1,730,125   1,837,916   2,068,412     2,359,905     
Automotive 188,766        115,704        142,765      90,709        47,134        49,000        53,055        60,459        65,273          74,218          
Apparel/Accessory 1,672            15,054          15,471        21,067        37,480        36,736        53,918        61,782        68,029          75,105          
Furniture 56,786          80,320          105,467      129,802      101,337      148,801      172,292      196,291      227,122        235,225        
Food/Beverage 1,252,591     1,162,927     1,199,902   1,232,279   1,253,253   1,394,376   1,552,647   1,709,567   1,862,344     1,981,287     
Miscellaneous 64,799          530,644        398,081      311,289      254,702      308,912      372,326      560,135      472,182        651,849        
Financial/Insurance 124,017        165,818        194,936      238,279      304,251      278,138      311,410      215,114      267,178        278,582        
Services 680,988        583,492        576,696      676,867      708,817      814,047      895,681      958,919      1,024,827     996,453        

Total 10,433,071$ 9,189,242$   9,394,607$ 9,359,475$ 9,042,271$ 8,729,033$ 9,108,901$ 9,750,653$ 10,414,781$ 11,193,654$

Schedule 10

Fiscal Year 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Sales Taxes Collected by Category

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Category 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Agriculture 11,126$        9,864$          10,288$      14,692$      15,483$      12,386$      13,074$      14,889$      41,447$        48,617$        
Construction 35,048          23,958          28,251        23,760        9,991          15,463        12,491        16,189        47,163          56,161          
Manufacturing 451,986        108,794        166,047      109,387      127,496      245,502      298,269      437,847      306,078        310,406        
Trans/Comm/Utilities 1,449,739     1,472,573     1,525,889   1,611,432   1,398,287   1,436,159   1,421,166   1,390,636   1,432,477     1,503,040     
Wholesale 63,981          108,836        143,823      165,215      107,963      119,230      152,813      163,738      172,867        271,459        
Home Imrpovements Centers 2,010,061     1,336,629     1,259,846   1,163,491   1,112,998   1,142,131   1,148,411   1,292,138   1,457,538     1,413,014     
General Merchandise 2,407,114     1,872,976     1,969,137   1,863,152   1,799,936   983,285      921,223      835,033      901,844        938,333        
Grocery Stores 1,634,397     1,601,653     1,658,008   1,708,054   1,763,143   1,744,867   1,730,125   1,837,916   2,068,412     2,359,905     
Automotive 188,766        115,704        142,765      90,709        47,134        49,000        53,055        60,459        65,273          74,218          
Apparel/Accessory 1,672            15,054          15,471        21,067        37,480        36,736        53,918        61,782        68,029          75,105          
Furniture 56,786          80,320          105,467      129,802      101,337      148,801      172,292      196,291      227,122        235,225        
Food/Beverage 1,252,591     1,162,927     1,199,902   1,232,279   1,253,253   1,394,376   1,552,647   1,709,567   1,862,344     1,981,287     
Miscellaneous 64,799          530,644        398,081      311,289      254,702      308,912      372,326      560,135      472,182        651,849        
Financial/Insurance 124,017        165,818        194,936      238,279      304,251      278,138      311,410      215,114      267,178        278,582        
Services 680,988        583,492        576,696      676,867      708,817      814,047      895,681      958,919      1,024,827     996,453        

Total 10,433,071$ 9,189,242$   9,394,607$ 9,359,475$ 9,042,271$ 8,729,033$ 9,108,901$ 9,750,653$ 10,414,781$ 11,193,654$
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City of Louisville, Colorado
Sales Taxes Collected by Category

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Schedule 11

City County State  Regional
Fiscal of of of Transporation Cultural Football
Year Louisville Boulder Colorado District District District Total

2005 3.375% 0.65% 2.90% 1.00% 0.10% 0.10% 8.125%
2006 3.375% 0.65% 2.90% 1.00% 0.10% 0.10% 8.125%
2007 3.375% 0.65% 2.90% 1.00% 0.10% 0.10% 8.125%
2008 3.375% 0.65% 2.90% 1.00% 0.10% 0.10% 8.125%
2009 3.500% (1) 0.65% 2.90% 1.00% 0.10% 0.10% 8.250%
2010 3.500% 0.65% 2.90% 1.00% 0.10% 0.10% 8.250%
2011 3.500% 0.80% 2.90% 1.00% 0.10% 0.10% 8.400%
2012 3.500% 0.80% 2.90% 1.00% 0.10% 0.00% (2) 8.300%
2013 3.500% 0.80% 2.90% 1.00% 0.10% 0.00% 8.300%
2014 3.500% 0.80% 2.90% 1.00% 0.10% 0.00% 8.300%

 

Notes: 
(1)  City of Louisville sales tax rate includes voter approved Historic Preservation tax of 0.125% effective January 1, 2009

City of Louisville, Colorado
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Number of Percent Sales Tax Percent Number Percent Sales Tax Percent
Taxpayer Filers (1) of Total Revenue of Total of Filers of Total Revenue of Total

Agriculture N/A N/A 11,126$          0.1% 29 1.3% 48,617$        0.4%
Construction N/A N/A 35,048            0.3% 130 5.8% 56,161          0.5%
Manufacturing N/A N/A 451,986          4.3% 194 8.7% 310,406        2.8%
Trans/Comm/Utilities N/A N/A 1,449,739       13.9% 178 7.1% 1,503,040     13.4%
Wholesale N/A N/A 63,981            0.6% 137 5.3% 271,459        2.4%
Home Imrpovements Centers N/A N/A 2,010,061       19.3% 103 4.6% 1,413,014     12.6%
General Merchandise N/A N/A 2,407,114       23.1% 25 1.1% 938,333        8.4%
Grocery Stores N/A N/A 1,634,397       15.7% 60 2.2% 2,359,905     21.1%
Automotive N/A N/A 188,766          1.8% 8 0.2% 74,218          0.7%
Apparel/Accessory N/A N/A 1,672              0.0% 66 2.7% 75,105          0.7%
Furniture N/A N/A 56,786            0.5% 70 3.0% 235,225        2.1%
Eating/Drinking N/A N/A 1,252,591       12.0% 101 4.3% 1,981,287     17.7%
Miscellaneous N/A N/A 64,799            0.6% 399 15.4% 651,849        5.8%
Financial/Insurance N/A N/A 124,017          1.2% 231 10.3% 278,582        2.5%
Services N/A N/A 680,988          6.5% 663 28.1% 996,453        8.9%

Totals 10,433,071$  100% 2,394     100% 11,193,654$ 100%
 
 
Notes:  
 (1)  Number of filers was not available for year 2005. Also due to confidentiality issues, the names of the ten largest revenue payers are
       not available.  The categories presented are intended to provide alternative information regarding the sources of the City's revenue.  

Schedule 12

Fiscal Year 2005 Fiscal Year 2014

City of Louisville
Sales Tax Revenue Payers by Industry

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
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Ratio of
Sales Tax URA Tax G.O  Bonds Net G.O. Ratio of

General Refunding Increment General Water Windy Gap Total to Actual Bonds  Ratio of Total Debt to 
Fiscal Obligation Revenue  Financing Obligation Bonds Lease Primary Property  Per Total Debt Total Personal
Year Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Payable Payments Government Value Capita Per Capita Income

2005 6,820,000   3,145,000       1,615,000   16,408,333 535,188      28,523,521    0.29 467          1,581         3.36
2006 6,545,000   2,785,000       1,405,000   15,453,333 504,000      26,692,333    0.27 440          1,477         2.97
2007 6,260,000   2,415,000       1,190,000   14,458,333 470,812      24,794,145    0.24 413          1,373         2.68
2008 5,965,000   2,040,000       970,000      13,422,500 435,562      22,833,062    0.22 380          1,250         2.39
2009 5,660,000   1,655,000       740,000      12,337,500 398,093      20,790,593    0.19 351          1,139         2.37
2010 5,345,000   1,260,000       -             11,210,833 358,219      18,174,052    0.16 291          989            2.02
2011 5,020,000   855,000          -             10,029,166 315,781      16,219,947    0.15 270          874            1.69
2012 4,685,000   435,000          -             8,905,000   270,563      14,295,563    0.14 247          754            1.38
2013 3,810,000   -                  -             8,355,000   222,437      12,387,437    0.11 196          636            1.16
2014 3,235,000   -                  750,000        -             7,725,000   171,813      11,881,813    0.09 N/A N/A N/A

 
Notes: 
In 2004, the City incurred new debt for the new library building. 

Schedule 13 

Business-type Activities 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Ratios of Oustanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities 
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Schedule 14

Net General Percentage Amount
Obligation Applicable Applicable

Bonded Debt to to
Jurisdiction (1) Outstanding Louisville (2) Louisville

Direct:
     City of Louisville 3,235,000$       100.00% 3,235,000$       

Overlapping:
     Boulder Valley School
        District No. RE-2 #### 324,125,000    9.42% 30,533,507       
     Colorado Tech Center
        Metropolitan District #### 8,460,000        100.00% 8,460,000         
     Northern Colorado Water
         Conservancy District #### 4,204,322        3.19% 134,077            

     Takoda Metro District #### 8,725,000        100.00% 8,725,000         

Subtotal Overlapping Debt 345,514,322    47,852,585       

Total direct and overlapping debt 348,749,322$ 51,087,585$     

Notes: 
(1)   The following entities also overlap the City but have no general obligation debt outstanding:
       Louisville Fire District, Boulder County, Urban Drainage and Flood Control District and Urban Revitaliz

(2)   Percentage Applicable to Louisville is Louisville's total assessed valuation as a percentage of the
       jurisdiction's total assessed valuation.

Sources:  Individual taxing entities

City of Louisville, Colorado
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

 As of December 31, 2014

 
111138



  Schedule 15

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Total estimated actual value 2,884,707,265  2,902,492,900  3,120,145,300  3,140,867,650  3,285,484,000  3,294,752,000  3,305,810,796  3,363,669,938  3,569,232,380  3,659,860,273  

Debt limit:  3% of actual value 86,541,218       87,074,787       93,604,359       94,226,030       98,564,520       98,842,560       99,174,324       100,910,098     107,076,971     109,795,808     

Total net amount of debt applicable 
   to debt limit 8,435,000         7,950,000         7,450,000         6,935,000         6,400,000 5,345,000 5,020,000 4,685,000 3,810,000 3,235,000
 
Legal debt margin 78,106,218       79,124,787       86,154,359       87,291,030       92,164,520       93,497,560       94,154,324       96,225,098       103,266,971     106,560,808     

Total net debt applicable to the limit 9.75% 9.13% 7.96% 7.36% 6.49% 5.41% 5.06% 4.64% 3.56% 2.95%

Fiscal Year 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Computation of Legal Debt Margin

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Schedule 16

Operating Gross Less: Net Total
Fiscal Utility Tap Utility Operating Available Debt
Year Revenue (1) Fees Revenue (2) Expenses (3) Revenue Principal Interest Service Coverage

2005 5,444,295    1,005,669  6,449,964     3,351,083      3,098,881   948,542      700,527  1,649,069  1.88        
2006 6,627,692    582,828     7,210,520    3,538,451     3,672,069  986,188     660,287  1,646,475  2.23        
2007 6,862,054    1,409,453  8,271,507    3,517,303     4,754,204  1,028,188  616,359  1,644,547  2.89        
2008 7,605,396    1,221,729  8,827,125    4,125,973     4,701,152  1,073,167  584,204  1,657,371  2.84        
2009 6,103,529    492,695     6,596,224    4,254,750     2,341,474  1,122,469  516,902  1,639,371  1.43        
2010 6,256,347    461,473     6,717,820    4,181,847     2,535,973  1,166,542  470,095  1,636,637  1.55        
2011 6,744,604    2,089,806  8,834,410    4,480,936     4,353,474  1,224,105  415,786  1,639,891  2.65        
2012 8,138,286    4,082,601  12,220,887  4,645,172     7,575,715  1,169,385  364,256  1,533,641  4.94        
2013 (4) 7,345,532    4,582,766  11,928,298  5,101,043     6,827,255  615,000     321,244  936,244     7.29        
2014 7,778,834    2,750,564  10,529,398  5,130,470     5,398,928  630,000     251,655  881,655     6.12        

Notes:  
(1)  Operating Utility Revenue = all operating revenue, interest earnings, intergovernmental revenue, and gains on asset sales.

(2)  Gross Utility Revenue = Operating Utility Revenue plus Tap Fees.

(3)  Operating Expenses = total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation.

(4)  The final payment on the 1992 Water Resources and Power Development Authority Note ocurred in 2012

Debt Service 

City of Louisville, Colorado
Pledged Revenue Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water Revenue Bonds 
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Schedule 17

Estimated Percentage 
Number of of Total City 

Company Employees (2) Rank Employment (1)

Storage Technology Corporation 2,000 1 N/A

Kable Fulfillment Services 620 2 N/A

Electric Data Systems 600 3 N/A

Avista Hospital 550 4 N/A

Rock Bottom Resturants 482 5 N/A

Boulder Valley School District 465 6 N/A

McKesson HBOC 350 7 N/A

Transfirst 350 8 N/A

City of Louisville 310 9 N/A

Raindance Communications 250 10 N/A

Estimated Percentage 
Number of of Total City 

Company Employees (2) Rank Employment 

Avista Hospital 690 1 5.1%

Zayo 480 2 3.6%

Sierra Nevada Corp. 390 3 2.9%

Balfour 330 4 2.5%

Fresca Foods 320 5 2.4%

Medtronic 310 6 2.3%

City of Louisville 290 7 2.2%

GHX 240 8 1.8%

Design Mechanical 190 9 1.4%

Centennial Peaks Hospital 180 10 1.3%

13460
Notes: 
(1) Total City Employment not available for 2004.
(2) Represents full-time, part-time and temporary employees.

2014

City of Louisville, Colorado
Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

2004
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Schedule 18

 

Personal Per 
Income Capita

Fiscal  (thousands Personal Median School Unemployment 
Year Population (1) of dollars) Income (2) Age (1) Enrollment (3) Rate (4)

2005 18,045             850,010      47,105           34.7           27,866            4.5
2006 18,070             899,091      49,756           34.8           28,121            3.7
2007 18,055             924,308      51,194           34.9           28,423            3.3
2008 18,271             955,537      52,298           35.1           28,373            4.1
2009 18,248             878,805      48,159           35.5           28,861            6.8
2010 18,376             900,112      48,983           35.9           29,206            6.9
2011 18,568             959,371      51,668           36.3           29,433            6.3
2012 18,960             1,033,358   54,502           36.6           29,572            5.9
2013 19,469             1,070,172   54,968           36.9           30,134            5.2
2014 N/A N/A N/A 37.2           30,665            3.7

 
Notes:  
(1) Colorado Department of Local Affairs - State Demography Office.  2010 population reflects U.S. Census
results.  Population estimates are for the City of Louisville; Media Age estimates are for Boulder County.
Population estimates not available for 2014 at the time of schedule preparation.

(2)  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis for Boulder County Metropolitan Statistical A
Per Capital Personal Income not available for 2014 at the time of schedule preparation.

(3)  Boulder Valley School District Enrollment Count.

(4)  Colorado Department of Labor and Employment for Boulder County.

City of Louisville, Colorado
Demographic and Economic Statistics, 

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Function/Program Full-Time Full-Time Full-Time Full-Time Full-Time Full-Time Full-Time Full-Time Full-Time Full-Time
  
General Government
City Management 4 4 3 3 4 4 4 5 5 5
City Clerk 3 3 3 2 2 1 1 1 1 1
Human Resources 2 3 3 3 4 2 1 1 3 3
Finance and IT 9 9 8 9 11 11 10 10 9 9
Police 38 38 38 38 38 38 36 37 38 37
Public Works 42 42 42 45 45 43 41 44 41 40
Planning 8 8 8 9 9 8 9 9 9 9
Library 8 8 10 9 9 8 7 7 10 11
Recreation & Senior Services 14 14 13 11 11 9 9 10 9 13
Parks & Open Space 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 13 16 17
Total Full-Time Employees 141 143 142 143 147 138 132 137 141 145
  

Fiscal Year 

Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Louisville, Colorado
Full-time City Government Employees by Function/Program
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 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Function/Program 
  
General Government
  Building permits issued 2,210 889 924 919 1,059 1,140 1,098 1,281 1,205 1,249
  Building inspections concluded 5,332 4,117 3,857 4,249 4,119 4,333 4,996 7,412 7,212 N/A

Police 
  Physical arrests 367 317 279 343 275 245 252 285 341 238
  Parking violations 301 241 182 178 223 239 163 159 217 315
  Traffic violations 1,737 1,798 1,166 1,407 1,931 2,184 1,510 1,557 1,350 1,548

Other public works 
  Street sweeping - miles per year 5,095 4,834 5,761 3,842 2,063 2,517 2,687 2,733 2,234 1,853
  Potholes repaired 786 512 4,725 1,384 1,500 2,654 1,615 1,614 1,434 1,686
  Snow and Ice - miles per year cleared 13,749 17,841 16,090 7,060 19,336 11,254 17,299 10,191 15,262 12,532
  Square feet of buildings to maintain 118,570 141,916 141,916 146,496 146,496 146,496 146,496 146,496 148,933 155,033

Parks and Recreation
  Attendance 203,745 196,743 209,615 230,832 236,832 236,945 236,923 268,385 270,980 278,603
  Athletic field permits issued 9 8 23 25 21 20 20 26 26 29

Library 
  Volumes in collection 64,000 64,000 72,178 80,785 82,236 85,050 105,451 95,213 88,885 86,814

Water 
  New connections 17 5 6 18 20 16 72 107 40 87
  Water main breaks 5 10 5 6 9 8 12 6 7 10
  Average daily consumption 3,417,234 3,780,421 3,589,147 3,775,740 3,207,000 3,168,000 3,334,358 3,772,187 3,100,000 3,130,000
  Peak daily consumption 8,704,000 8,319,000 8,305,000 9,518,000 6,792,000 7,025,000 7,522,000 8,159,000 7,500,000 7,900,000

Wastewater 
  Average daily sewage treatment 1.859 MGD 1.859 MGD 1.815  MGD 1.7 MGD 1.794 MGD 1.773 MGD 1.670 MGD 1.80 MGD 1.70 MGD 1.83 MGD

Source:  Internally tracked departmental statistics

Fiscal Year 

Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Louisville, Colorado
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
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Schedule 21

 
 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Function/Program 
  
Police 
  Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
  Patrol Units 17 16 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17

Public Works 
  Streets and Highways (miles) 86 86 86 86 87 87 87 87 87 88

Parks and recreation 
  Parks Acreage 160 178 178.11 178.11 178.11 178.11 310 310 306 306
  Acres of Open space owned by the City and jointly 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 1768 1768 1755 1800
  Playgrounds 12 13 13 13 13 13 14 14 14 14
  Baseball/softball diamonds 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11
  Soccer/football fields 13 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 11 11
  Community centers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Water 
  Water mains (miles) (1) 115 127 127 127 127 127 123 123 125 122
  Fire hydrants 1118
  Storage capacity 8 MGD 8 MGD 8 MGD 8 MGD 8 MGD 8 MGD 8 MGD 8.5 MGD 8.5 MGD 8.5 MGD
  Treatment capacity 13 MGD 13 MGD 13 MGD 13 MGD 13 MGD 13 MGD 13 MGD 13 MGD 13 MGD 13 MGD

Wastewater 
  Sanitary sewers (miles) (1) 87 87 87 87 87 91 89 89 89 88
  Storm sewers (miles) (1) 51 51 51 51 40 40 40 41
  Treatment capacity (thousand of gallons) 3.4 MGD 3.4 MGD 3.4 MGD 3.4 MGD 3.4 MGD 3.4 MGD 3.4 MGD 3.4 MGD 3.4 MGD 3.4 MGD
 

Notes:
(1) Beginning in 2011 amounts reported only include public miles 

Source:  Internally tracked departmental statistics

Fiscal Year 

Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Louisville, Colorado
Capital Assset Statistics by Function/Program 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial  Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards  

To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Louisville, Colorado 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Louisville as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of 
Louisville’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 29, 2015.   

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Louisville’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Louisville’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Louisville’s internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not yet been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Louisville's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Golden, Colorado 
June 29, 2015 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control 
Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB 

Circular A-133 
 
 
 
To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Thornton, Colorado 
 
 
Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited the City of Louisville’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 
OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the City of Louisville’s 
major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2014. The City of Louisville’s major federal program is 
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility  
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to its federal programs.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance for the City of Louisville’s major federal program 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in  Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those 
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of 
Louisville’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Louisville’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, the City of Louisville complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major Federal program for the year ended December 31, 
2014. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 
Management of the City of Louisville is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the City of Louisville’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for its major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133,  but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Louisville’s internal control over compliance.   
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a compliance 
requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Louisville as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial 
statements.  We issued our report thereon dated June 29, 2015, which contained an unmodified opinion on those 
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information 
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal 
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  
 

 
Golden, Colorado 
June 29, 2015 
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City of Louisville, Colorado 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended December 31, 2014 
 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through

Grantor/Program Title CFDA No.

Pass-through 
Entity 

Identifying 
Number Expenditures

Passed through the State of Colorado Department of Emergency Management
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disaster) 97.036 Contract 66387 2,492,399$           
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 2,492,399             

Passed through from State of Colorado - Department of Transportaion
Highway Planning and Construction (Federal Aid Highway Program) 20.205 HAA20007 236,682                
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 236,682                

Total Federal Financial Assistance 2,729,081$           

U.S. Department of Homeland Security

U.S. Department of Transportation
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City of Louisville, Colorado 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended December 31, 2014 
 
 

City of Louisville, Colorado 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

December 31, 2014 

Note 1:  Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
City of Louisville, Colorado and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The 
information in the accompanying schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations.  Because the 
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not 
present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the City.  

 

Note 2:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Governmental fund types account for part of the City’s federal grant activity.  Expenditures in the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are recognized on the modified accrual basis for governmental 
funds and full accrual for the enterprise funds.  The City’s summary of significant accounting policies is 
presented in the City’s basic financial statements in Note 1. 

 

Note 3:  Department of Homeland Security Program 

The OMB A-133 Compliance Supplement issued in 2014 provided additional guidance regarding 
reporting of Disaster Grants awarded and informed recipients to report 2013 costs on their December 31, 
2014 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) if the funds were obligated by FEMA.  
Approximately $6,000 of expenditures related to 2013 are included in the 2014 SEFA as these amounts 
were not obligated until 2014.  
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City of Louisville, Colorado 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs  
Year Ended December 31, 2014 

 
Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified No
Significant deficiencies identified not

considered to be material weaknesses None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major program:
Material weaknesses identified No
Significant deficiencies identified not

considered to be material weaknesses None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a) No

Identification of major program:

Name of Federal Program CFDA Number

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disaster) 97.036

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A 
and type B programs: 300,000$         

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
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City of Louisville, Colorado 

Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs  
Year Ended December 31, 2014 

 
 
Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

 
None 

 
Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

 
None 

 
Section IV – Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 

 
None 

125152



Financial Planning
The public report burden for this information collection is estimated to average 380 hours annually.  Form # 350-050-3

City or County:
Louisville
YEAR ENDING :
December 2014

This Information From The Records Of City of Louisville: Prepared By: Graham Clark
Phone: 303.335.4504

A.     Local         B.       Local           C.  Receipts from   D.  Receipts from 
Motor-Fuel Motor-Vehicle State Highway- Federal Highway

Taxes Taxes User Taxes Administration
1.  Total receipts available
2.  Minus amount used for collection expenses
3.  Minus amount used for nonhighway purposes
4.  Minus amount used for mass transit
5.  Remainder used for highway purposes 

AMOUNT AMOUNT
A.  Receipts from local sources: A.  Local highway disbursements:
     1.  Local highway-user taxes     1.  Capital outlay (from page 2) 3,999,342
          a.  Motor Fuel  (from Item I.A.5.)     2.  Maintenance: 1,431,044
          b.  Motor Vehicle (from Item I.B.5.)     3.  Road and street services:
          c.  Total (a.+b.)          a.  Traffic control operations 78,940
     2.  General fund appropriations 4,157,774          b.  Snow and ice removal 163,000
     3.  Other local imposts (from page 2) 2,563,789          c.  Other
     4.  Miscellaneous local receipts (from p 188,008          d.  Total  (a. through c.) 241,940
     5.  Transfers from toll facilities     4.  General administration & miscellaneous 1,777,274
     6.  Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes:     5.  Highway law enforcement and safety
          a.  Bonds - Original Issues     6.  Total  (1 through 5) 7,691,540
          b.  Bonds - Refunding Issues B.  Debt service on local obligations:
          c.  Notes     1.  Bonds:
          d.  Total (a. + b. + c.) 0          a.  Interest
     7.  Total (1 through 6) 6,909,571          b.  Redemption
B.  Private Contributions 0          c.  Total (a. + b.) 0
C.  Receipts from State government     2.  Notes:
       (from page 2) 679,228          a.  Interest
D.  Receipts from Federal Government          b.  Redemption
       (from page 2) 102,741          c.  Total (a. + b.) 0
E.  Total receipts (A.7 + B + C + D) 7,691,540     3.  Total  (1.c + 2.c) 0

C.  Payments to State for highways
D.  Payments to toll facilities
E.  Total disbursements (A.6 + B.3 + C + D) 7,691,540

Opening Debt Amount Issued Redemptions Closing Debt
A.  Bonds (Total) 0
        1.  Bonds (Refunding Portion)
B.  Notes (Total) 0

A. Beginning Balanc B. Total Receipts C. Total Disbursements D. Ending Balance E. Reconciliation
7,691,540 7,691,540 0

Notes and Comments:

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev. 1-05)           PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE (Next Page)
1

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

I.  DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE

ITEM

III.  DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD

V.  LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE

ITEM

II.  RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES

IV.   LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show all entries at par)

ITEM
 AND STREET PURPOSES

(17x) HUTF-CY14-City of Louisville
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STATE:
Colorado
YEAR ENDING (mm/yy):
December 2014

AMOUNT AMOUNT
A.3.  Other local imposts: A.4.  Miscellaneous local receipts:
    a.  Property Taxes and Assessments          a.  Interest on investments
    b.  Other local imposts:          b.  Traffic Fines & Penalities 188,008
        1.  Sales Taxes 2,311,424          c. Parking Garage Fees
        2.  Infrastructure & Impact Fees 50,601          d.  Parking Meter Fees
        3.  Liens          e.  Sale of Surplus Property
        4. Licenses          f.  Charges for Services
        5. Specific Ownership &/or Other 201,764          g.  Other Misc. Receipts
        6.  Total (1. through 5.) 2,563,789          h.  Other
    c.  Total (a. + b.) 2,563,789          i.  Total (a. through h.) 188,008

(Carry forward to page 1) (Carry forward to page 1) 

AMOUNT AMOUNT
C.   Receipts from State Government D.  Receipts from Federal Government
    1.  Highway-user taxes 608,508    1.  FHWA (from Item I.D.5.)
    2.  State general funds    2.  Other Federal agencies:
    3.  Other State funds:        a.  Forest Service 
        a.  State bond proceeds        b.  FEMA 13,646
        b.  Project Match        c.  HUD
        c.  Motor Vehicle Registrations 70,720        d.  Federal Transit Admin
        d. Other  (Specify) - DOLA Grant        e.  U.S. Corps of Engineers
        e.  Other (Specify)        f.  Other Federal 89,095
         f.  Total (a. through e.) 70,720        g.  Total (a. through f.) 102,741
   4.  Total (1. + 2. + 3.f) 679,228    3.  Total (1. + 2.g)

(Carry forward to page 1) 

ON NATIONAL OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY HIGHWAY TOTAL
SYSTEM SYSTEM

(a) (b) (c)
A.1.  Capital outlay:
          a.  Right-Of-Way Costs 0 0 0
          b.  Engineering Costs 437,267 437,267
          c.  Construction:
               (1). New Facilities 272,428 272,428
               (2).  Capacity Improvements 0 0 0
               (3).  System Preservation 1,870,166 1,870,166
               (4).  System Enhancement & Operation 1,419,481 1,419,481
               (5).  Total Construction  (1) + (2) + (3) + (4) 3,562,075 0 3,562,075
         d.  Total Capital Outlay (Lines 1.a. + 1.b. + 1.c.5) 3,999,342 0 3,999,342

(Carry forward to page 1) 

Notes and Comments:

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev.1-05)           PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
2

III.  DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

II.  RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

ITEM ITEM

ITEM ITEM
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June 29, 2015 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council  
City of Louisville, Colorado 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Louisville (“City”) for the year ended December 31, 
2014. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under 
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133, as well as 
certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information 
in our letter to you dated August 25, 2014. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the County are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting 
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2014. We noted no 
transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper 
period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The 
City’s financial statements do not include any significant estimates. 
 
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were: 

 
The disclosure of Deposits and Investments in Note 3, Inter-fund receivables/payables, advances, 
and transfers in Note 5,  Capital Assets in Note 6, Long-term debt in Note 7, Commitments in 
Note 10, Tax, spending and debt limitations in Note 12.  

 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. No such 
misstatements were noted during our audit.   
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated June 29, 2015. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant 
to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition 
to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
 
The financial statements include the financial statements of the Urban Revitalization District, which for the 
purposes of our audit, we do not consider to be a significant component of the financial statements. Consistent 
with the audit of the financial statements as a whole, our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the 
Urban Revitalization District and its environment, including internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements of the City of Louisville and to design the nature, timing, and 
extent of further audit procedures, as determined to be necessary.  
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the budgetary schedules of the City’s General Fund and Conservation 
Trust - Land Acquisition Fund, which is required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic 
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
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We were engaged to report on the other statements and schedules as described in the table of contents to the 
financial statement that accompanies the financial statements but is not RSI. With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing 
the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves. 
 
We were not engaged to report on the introductory and statistical sections which accompany the financial 
statements but are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City of Louisville, 
Colorado and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
Golden, Colorado 
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
AGENDA ITEM 8C 

SUBJECT: PRESENTATION – BOULDER COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 
DATE:  AUGUST 4, 2015 
 
PRESENTED BY: HEATHER BASLER, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 
 
SUMMARY: 
Attached is the Boulder County Housing Authority (BCHA) annual report provided by 
Boulder County.  Willa Williford, Housing Director for Boulder County, will be in 
attendance to brief the City Council on BCHA’s initiatives in Louisville.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. BCHA 2015 Annual Report 
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
AGENDA ITEM 8D 

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/DIRECTION/ACTION - FINANCIAL 
CONTRIBUTION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE CONSORTIUM OF 
CITIES PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING STUDY   

 
DATE:  AUGUST 4, 2015 
 
PRESENTED BY: CHRIS LEH, CITY COUNCIL/CONSORTIUM OF CITIES CITY 

COUNCIL LIASION  
 HEATHER BALSER, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER 
 
SUMMARY: 
Throughout this year, the Boulder County Consortium of Cities (Consortium) has been 
studying the issue of homelessness in our region and reviewing strategies to address 
homelessness, particularly chronic homelessness.  A key strategy for addressing 
chronic homelessness that is included in Boulder County’s Ten Year Plan to Address 
Homelessness is permanent supportive housing (PSH).   
The link to the Ten-Year Plan website:  
http://buildinglivablecommunities.org/HomelessPlan/  
The link to the actual plan: 
http://buildinglivablecommunities.org/HomelessPlan/Homeless%20Plan_Final_web.pdf  
 
PSH is a nationally recognized best practice in helping chronically homeless people 
leave homelessness and stabilize, reducing the utilization of community resources.  
Although more PHS is needed to house the estimated 300 chronically homeless people 
across the county, no comprehensive PSH needs analysis has been conducted for the 
entire county or a plan developed on how to best address this need.  To address this 
issue and further the goals of the Ten-Year Plan, a countywide PSH study has been 
proposed by the Ten-Year Plan Board in coordination with the County. The Boulder 
County Consortium of Cities expressed an interest in supporting the Ten-Year Plan 
Board PSH study and has asked members to have discussions with their respective 
City Councils about funding this project.   
 
A Scope of Services has been developed for this study (attached) which includes 
assessing demand, availability and gaps for this type of housing across the county; 
identifying barriers and opportunities for developing additional permanent supportive 
housing; and recommending strategies for moving forward.  The Consortium has 
estimated the cost of the study to be $75,000 with plans to release the Request for 
Proposals in July 2015 with a targeted completion date of November 2015.   
 
The Consortium has requested that all government members share in the cost of the 
study, on roughly a per capita basis.  To date Boulder County and the City of Boulder 
have committed $20,000 each.  Longmont recently committed $15,000.  Lyons has 
committed their share, Lafayette has committed $5300 and Superior contributed $3,000.   
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

SUBJECT: CONSORTIUM OF CITIES HOUSING PLAN 
 
DATE: AUGUST 4, 2015 PAGE 2 OF 2 

 
A chart identifying financial contributions based on population is attached.  Louisville’s 
contribution request from the Consortium is $4,680.      
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The Consortium of Cities requests $4,680 as Louisville’s per capita share for 
participation in the study.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Council Member Leh and staff recommend $4,680 be allocated to the study in 2015 out 
of General Fund reserves.   
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Scope of Services 
2. Estimated Financial Contribution Per Community   
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Consortium of Cities 

Permanent Supportive Housing Study (PSH)  

Scope of Services Summary 

June, 20015 

 

 

Scope of Services 

Background 

 

On December 3, 2014, Boulder County Ten Year Plan Board representatives, including Boulder 

County and the cities of Boulder and Longmont presented an overview of the Ten Year Plan to 

Address Homelessness to the Consortium of Cities on the need for county-wide and regional 

engagement on addressing homelessness, particularly chronic homelessness. The Consortium has 

received information and data regarding homelessness and the need for permanent supportive 

housing at its meetings in February, April, and June. The Consortium has agreed in concept to 

support the study, with a distribution of costs calculated (attached) for each Consortium 

community.  To contract for a study the funding commitments need to be secured. To date, the 

City of Boulder and Boulder County have committed funds for the study.   

 

As identified in the Boulder County ten Year Plan to Address Homeless, the key strategy for 

addressing chronic homelessness is permanent supportive housing (PSH) and rapid re-housing. 

Key issues for Boulder County in addressing homelessness:  

 Homelessness is a county-wide and regional issue; 

 Boulder and Longmont are the key service and housing centers for county-wide and 

regional homeless population; 

 All communities in Boulder County can be engaged in solutions and support for 

addressing homelessness; 

 Lack of affordable housing is a significant barrier to successful long-term outcomes and 

impacts on public services; 

 High rents and low vacancy rates are impacting housing opportunities; 

 Lack of development opportunities; 

 Significant regional dialogues and partnerships are happening at the regional level (seven 

county Metro Denver Homeless Initiative; 25 Cities, Regional Housing Toolkit, Land 

lord Project). 

 

Scope of Study 

 

A permanent supportive housing study is needed to meet the goals and objectives identified for 

the Ten Year Plan, identify benchmarks for goals, and strategies for development of or 

acquisition of PSH. The scope of work includes:  

 

1. Assessment of total number available permanent supportive housing units across the 

county; 

2. Assessment of current need/demand for housing units; 

3. Assessment of number of vouchers and housing subsidies available and unused; 
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4. Assessment of numbers of chronically homeless individuals and families across the 

county by community; 

5. Analysis of available data on housing for the homeless gaps by community; 

6. Identification of barriers to creation of PSH, including market forces, development and 

land use barriers, or other regulatory barriers; 

7. Identification of existing and new opportunities and assets to create PSH;  

8. Leverage opportunities with regional projects currently underway; 

9. Recommendations for strategies to expand PHS. 

 

The scope of work would be completed from existing, available data and resources.  

  

At this time, it is anticipated the costs for this study $75,000 depending on final scope of work. A 

final scope of work will be detailed for an RFP depending on resources secured. An RFP could 

be released by July, 2015 Work on the study could be completed and end of the year. 

 

Timeline: 

 

Secure Consortium of Cities Funding:     June, 2015 

Release RFP:         July, 2015 

Secure Contractor        August, 2015 

Final Report         November, 2015 
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Consortium of Cities 

Permanently Supportive Housing Plan: Estimated per community financial contribution to plan 

development 

Estimated Plan Cost Per Capita cost 

$75,000 $0.234 

 

 2014 est. 
population 

Community 
Contribution 

Boulder 105,000 $24,570 

Boulder 
County, uninc. 

44,000 $10,296 

Erie 20,000 $4,680 

Jamestown 250  

Lafayette 27,000 $6,318 

Longmont 90,000 $21,060 

Louisville 20,000 $4,680 

Lyons 2,000 $468 

Nederland 1,500 $351 

Superior 13,000 $3,042 

Ward 150  
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
AGENDA ITEM 8E 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 52, SERIES 2015 - A RESOLUTION 
REMOVING THE LEE AVENUE CONNECTION FROM THE 
ADOPTED HIGHWAY 42 GATEWAY PLAN  

 
DATE:  AUGUST 4, 2015 
 
PRESENTED BY: TROY RUSS, PLANNING AND BUILDING SAFETY 
 
SUMMARY: 
On June 4, 2013, City Council adopted Resolution 31, Series 2013, a resolution 
approving the Highway 42 Gateway Plan as the preferred transportation strategy for 
Hwy 42 between Locke Street and Paschal Drive (northern City Limits).  This Plan was 
the culmination of years of cooperative land use and transportation planning between 
the City, Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT), Boulder County and the 
Regional Transportation District (RTD).   
 
The study found a 3-lane alternative with local network and transit enhancements would 
provide an acceptable level of service on Highway 42 while improving the safety and 
travel choices in the corridor when compared to a no-build, or 5-lane option. The 3-lane 
alternative was found to be superior in accomplishing the City’s goals of minimizing 
property and environmental impacts, improving pedestrian and bicycle mobility and 
meeting the land use vision (redevelopment of the revitalization district and stabilization 
of the Little Italy and Miners’ Field neighborhoods) for the corridor.   
 
The plan identified a total of three properties needing to be purchased to enable the 3-
lane option succeed beyond the 20-year forecast.  1125 Pine Street is the only property 
south of South Boulder Road. The other two properties are located north of South 
Boulder Road in Cristopher Plaza and the Davidson Highline Subdivision. 
 
On May 19, 2015 the City Council voted unanimously not to purchase the property 
necessary for the Lee Avenue connection (1125 Pine Street).  Council cited 
neighborhood impact concerns as reason for its decision.  Subsequently, Council 
directed staff to return with a resolution amending the corridor plan to reflect its decision 
and clear title for the subject property. 
 
The following Council Communication presents an analysis and corresponding 
resolution amending the 2013 Hwy 42 Gateway Plan by removing the Lee Avenue 
connection between Pine Street and Spruce Street (shown below).  All other aspects of 
the Hwy 42 Gateway Plan will remain unchanged with the attached resolution, including 
the closure of Spruce Street at Hwy 42. 
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

PAGE 2 OF 4 
 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 52, SERIES 2015  
 
DATE: AUGUST 4, 2015        PAGE 2 OF 4 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff mailed a public notice of the proposed amendment to all properties within 500-feet 
of the Pine Street and Hwy 42 intersection.  As of the published date of this 
communication, one comment was received from Jean Morgan.  A copy is attached. 
 
Staff also referred the Corridor Plan’s proposed amendment to the City’s project 
partners: Boulder County, CDOT, and RTD.  Copies of the correspondence received 
are also attached.  Both Boulder County and CDOT reiterated their support for the 3-
lane alternative and cautioned removing additional identified local connections from the 
plan could jeopardize the resiliency of the Plan, the ultimate effectiveness the 3-lane 
recommendation, and potentially their support.      
 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
Staff evaluated City Council’s direction to remove the Lee Avenue connection from the 
Hwy 42 Gateway Plan.  The analysis is presented below: 
 
 
 

42 Gateway Alternatives Report 

Page 21 

42 Gateway Alternatives Report 

Page 33 

Spruce Street 

closure to remain. 
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

PAGE 3 OF 4 
 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 52, SERIES 2015  
 
DATE: AUGUST 4, 2015        PAGE 3 OF 4 
 

1. Mobility and Access 
Staff believes removing the Lee Avenue connection would not alter the performance of 
traffic anticipated along the corridor and specifically at the Hwy 42 and Pine Street 
intersection presented in the Corridor Plan. 
 
The Hwy 42 Gateway Plan incorporates the Denver Regional Council of Governments’ 
(DRCOG) 2035 population and employment forecasts and travel demand model.  The 
analysis assigned all existing and anticipated traffic to Hwy 42 in the 20-year forecast.  
No traffic was assigned, or diverted, to Lee Avenue or any other recommended local 
street connection proposed in the Corridor Plan.  
 
Staff recognizes the intent of the Lee Avenue connection was to divert a percentage of 
traffic growth from using Hwy 42 in the future.  However, the additional capacity 
provided by the connection would not be needed in the project’s 20-year planning 
horizon. 
 
The Lee Avenue connection was proposed to create a parallel corridor to Hwy 42, 
increasing the corridor’s resiliency and capacity beyond the 20-year forecast, and 
ensuring the proposed 3-lane alternative would be the permanent solution for the State 
Highway.  The connection was also meant to provide the Miners’ Field Neighborhood an 
alternative access and egress to help offset the proposed closure of Spruce Street at 
Hwy 42. 
 
Not completing the Lee Avenue connection works against the overall purpose of the 
Hwy 42 Gateway Plan. However, eliminating it from the plan should not fundamentally 
change the performance of the anticipated traffic on the Highway over the next 20-
years, the typical life of most transportation plans. 

  
2. Safety 
Not completing the Lee Avenue connection should not impact the proposed safety 
improvements in the Hwy 42 Corridor Plan.  Staff believes the proposed closure of 
Spruce Street near the Pine Street intersection with Hwy 42 should still be completed.  
Additionally, not completing the Lee Avenue connection will not alter the proposed 
access management and off-set design for each intersection in the Plan.  Finally, and 
most importantly, staff believes the 3-lane (lower speed) alternative to that of a 5-lane 
(higher speed) alternative proposed for Hwy 42 is still viable without the Lee Avenue 
connection. 
 
3. Multi-Modal Connectivity 
Not completing the Lee Avenue connection will not impact the multi-modal character of 
Hwy 42.  The proposed transit, bicycle, and pedestrian improvements to Hwy 42 in the 
corridor plan remain unchanged.  Removing the Lee Avenue connection from the 
Corridor Plan eliminates a proposed pedestrian connection between the Miners’ Field 
neighborhood and Downtown Louisville, inconveniencing residents.  However, there are 
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CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

PAGE 4 OF 4 
 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 52, SERIES 2015  
 
DATE: AUGUST 4, 2015        PAGE 4 OF 4 
 

other ways to access the Miners’ Field neighborhood to and from Hwy 42, Downtown, 
and future RTD transit service. 

 
4. Land Use Integration 
Not completing the Lee Avenue connection will not negatively impact the existing and 
proposed land uses in the Hwy 42 corridor. No other local street connection shown in 
the Gateway Plan is being discussed for removal from the Plan.  As such, staff believes 
the primary recommendation of the Gateway Plan, Hwy 42 being 3-lanes, remains 
unchanged and is therefore consistent with the existing and proposed land uses in the 
corridor. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Removing the Lee Avenue connection from the Plan means the City will not have to 
expend funds to acquire property that would be required for the connection. Staff does 
not anticipate other fiscal impacts with the proposed amendment.  The City’s project 
partners, Boulder County, CDOT, and RTD, consent to the amendment.  As such staff 
continues to anticipate the City will be able to secure significant (likely over $15 million) 
assistance from County, RTD, State and Federal sources to implement  the Corridor 
Plan.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends City Council approve Resolution No. 52, Series 2015, a resolution 
removing the Lee Avenue connection from the adopted Highway 42 Gateway Plan.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Resolution No. 52, Series 2013 
2. Referral Boulder County – July 14, 2015 
3. Referral Colorado Department of Transportation - July 27, 2015 
4. Referral Regional Transportation District - July 27, 2015 
5. Public Comment – Jean Morgan - July 17, 2015 
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RESOLUTION NO. 52 
SERIES 2015 

 
 

A RESOULTION REMOVING THE LEE AVENUE CONNECTION FROM THE 
ADOPTED HIGHWAY 42 GATEWAY PLAN. 

           
  WHEREAS, the City of Louisville contracted with Atkins North America, Inc. 
(Atkins) to complete a Louisville FasTracks Station Area and Highway 42 Corridor 
Integrated Infrastructure Implementation Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the plan was renamed the Highway 42 Gateway Plan (The Plan); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City conducted public meetings on November 9, 2011, April 18, 
2012, and October 3, 2012 to introduce the project, discuss the goals and objectives of 
the plan, and present the project alternatives; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council held two duly noticed public meetings on The Plan 
on December 28, 2012 and January 22, 2013, where public testimony was entered into 
the record, and recommended modifications were made to The Plan;  and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly noticed public meeting and adopted the 
Highway 42 Gateway Plan  on June 4, 2013; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly noticed public meeting on the purchase 
of 1125 Pine Street for the extension of Lee Avenue on April 7, 2015, and continued to 
May 19, 2012, where public testimony was entered into the record and City Council 
denied the purchase of the property and directed staff to amend The Plan by removing 
the Lee Avenue Connection; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the Amended Plan has been reviewed and finds that it should be 
approved, without condition.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Louisville, Colorado does hereby approve removing the Lee Avenue connection from 
the 42 Gateway Plan. 
 
 PASSES AND ADOPTED this 4th day of August, 2014.  
 
 
      BY: ____________________________ 
       Robert P. Muckle, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:  
_________________________ 
Nancy Varra, City Clerk  

Resolution No. 52, Series 2015 
Page 1 of 1 
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Troy Russ

To: Hice-Idler, Gloria
Subject: RE: Amendment to the SH 42 Gateway Plan

 
 
From: Hice-Idler, Gloria [mailto:gloria.hice-idler@state.co.us]  
Sent: Monday, 27 July, 2015 1:40 PM 
To: Troy Russ 
Subject: Amendment to the SH 42 Gateway Plan 
 
Troy, 
 
CDOT has reviewed the the City's proposal to amend the Gateway Plan and has no objection. 

Gloria Hice-Idler 
Region 4 Permits Manager 
Region 4 Permits Unit - Traffic 

 

P 970.350.2148  |  C 970.381.2475  |  F 970.350.2198 
1420 2nd Street, Greeley, CO 80631 
gloria.hice-idler@state.co.us  |  www.coloradodot.info  |  www.cotrip.org 
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Troy Russ

From: Quinn, Chris <Chris.Quinn@RTD-Denver.com>
Sent: Monday, 27 July, 2015 11:46 AM
To: Troy Russ
Cc: Erving, Nataly
Subject: RE: Hwy 42 Gateway Plan

Troy,  

Thanks for providing the opportunity to review and comment on the plan amendment.  RTD does not have any 
comments or concerns with the proposal.   

Please let me know if you need any additional information.  

Thanks 

Chris 

 

From: Troy Russ [mailto:troyr@louisvilleco.gov]  
Sent: Monday, July 27, 2015 9:18 AM 
To: Erving, Nataly 
Cc: Quinn, Chris 
Subject: RE: Hwy 42 Gateway Plan 

 

Hi Natalie. 

 

Do you have any comments to the corridor plan amendment? 

 

Troy 

 

From: Troy Russ  
Sent: Friday, 10 July, 2015 3:53 PM 
To: 'Erving, Nataly <nataly.erving@rtd-denver.com> (nataly.erving@rtd-denver.com)' 
Cc: Heather Balser; 'Quinn, Chris (Chris.Quinn@RTD-Denver.com)' 
Subject: FW: Hwy 42 Gateway Plan 
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Hi Natalie! 

 

I sent the email below to Chris.  However, I received an out of office notice from his email.  Could you 
coordinate a response from RTD? 

 

Thanks, 

Troy 

 

From: Troy Russ  
Sent: Friday, 10 July, 2015 3:51 PM 
To: 'Quinn, Chris (Chris.Quinn@RTD-Denver.com)' 
Cc: Heather Balser 
Subject: Hwy 42 Gateway Plan 

 

Chris: 

 

I hope you are well.  Attached is a referral letter from the City of Louisville regarding City Council’s direction 
to remove the Lee Avenue connection from the Hwy 42 Gateway Plan.  The Plan was developed in partnership 
between Boulder County, CDOT, RTD and the City of Louisville.  

 

The City is seeking our project partners’ (CDOT, RTD, and Boulder County) comment on this proposed 
amendment.  The amendment will go before the Louisville City Council on August 4th.   

 

A written response from your agency is requested to be returned to the City no later than July 24th.  We 
understand this is a quick turnaround and appreciate your attention to this request. 

 

Troy 

 

Troy  P. Russ, AICP 

Planning and Building Safety Director 
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City of Louisville, Colorado 

 

749 Main Street 

Louisville, CO 80027 

Phone: (303) 335-4590 

troyr@louisivlleco.gov 
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Troy Russ

Subject: FW: Aug. 2 Public Hearing on the Hwy 42 Gateway Plan

 
From: Jean Morgan [mailto:missjeanbee322@gmail.com]  
Sent: Friday, July 17, 2015 12:51 PM 
To: City Council; Jean Morgan 
Subject: Aug. 2 Public Hearing on the Hwy 42 Gateway Plan 
 
July 17, 2015 

Dear City Council Members, 
Again, thank you very much for your vote in removing the Lee Avenue extension and maintaining the integrity 
of our Miners Field Neighborhood! 

In May when this was done, there was suggestion from council that other options for future Hwy 42 congestion 
be looked into.  I think now is an appropriate time to research options before accepting the Hwy 42 Gateway 
Plan on August 4, 2015. 

I would like to consider the following for possible research and feasibility: 
1)  creating a south-bound right-turn lane onto Pine Street from Short or South Street (the right-turn lane already 
exits from Short to South Street). 
2)  moving the lanes eastward to create such a lane if the room doesn't exist to do it on the west side of the 
highway 
3)  directing pedestrian/bike traffic through the Mines Field Neighborhood from Spruce Street to South or 
Short.  

I am hoping this research would be available to city council for the August 4th meeting.  Thank you for your 
thoughts! 

Sincerely,  
Jean Morgan 
missjeanbee322@gmail.com (new) 

PS  I am totally supportive of the closure of Spruce Street at Hwy 42 (with emergency vehicle access only) as it 
has become a very dangerous intersection! 
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